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(Pursuant to Section 230 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 6 and 7 the
Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016)

BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
CHANDIGARH BENCH, AT CHANDIGARH

CA (CAA) NO. 10/Chd/Hry/2023 (1t Motion)
In The Matter of the Companies Act, 2013
And

In the matter of Sections 230 And 232 of The Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016

And

In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation of

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED
A private limited company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
having its registered office at Plot No-321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20, Gurgaon —
122016, India, through its authorized representative, Ms. Suchali Jain, mobile no.:
9899743092, e-mail address: suchali@suchalisartisanbakehouse.com; Corporate Identity
Number U15490HR2018PTC076091
... Transferor Company/
Applicant No. 1
AND

MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

A private limited company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
having its registered office at D-173, Sushant Lok I, Gurgaon — 122002, India, through its
authorized representative, Mr. Matthew Joseph Chitharanjan, mobile no.: 9650800776, e-mail
address: matt@bluetokaicoffee.com; Corporate Identity Number U15492HR2012PTC047234

...Transferee Company/
Applicant No. 2
NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF
SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTICE is hereby given that by an order dated May 30, 2023 (Order) in the captioned
Company Application, the Hon’ble Chandigarh Bench of the Hon’ble National Company



Law Tribunal (Hon’ble Tribunal/NCLT) has directed a meeting to be held of the unsecured
creditors (Unsecured Creditors) of Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited (Transferee
Company) for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or without
modification(s), the proposed scheme of amalgamation (Scheme) between Suchalis
Confectionery Private Limited (Transferor Company) and the Transferee Company and
their respective shareholders and creditors.

In pursuance of the Order and as directed therein further notice is hereby given that a meeting
of the Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company will be held through video
conferencing (VC) on Saturday, the 22" day of July, 2023 at 1.00 PM (Meeting) at which
time the Unsecured Creditors are requested to attend and to consider, and if thought fit, to
approve with or without modification, the following resolution under section 230-232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force) approving the Scheme:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies
Act, 2013(hereinafter referred to as the “Act”) and the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016, and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the said Act and the rules, regulations, circulars and notifications issued thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)
as may be applicable, relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the said Act and the rules, regulations, circulars and notifications issued
thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time
being in force) as may be applicable, and subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of
Association and the Articles of Association of Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited
(“Transferor Company”) and subject to the approval of the Hon'ble National Company
Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“Hon’ble Tribunal”) and subject to such other
approvals, permissions and sanctions of any regulatory and other authorities, as may be
necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed
by the Hon’ble Tribunal or by any regulatory or other authorities, while granting such
consents, approvals and permissions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of
the Transferor Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall be
deemed to include committee(s) of the Board, constituted or being constituted by the Board
or any person(s) which the Board may nominate to exercise its powers including the powers
conferred by this resolution), the Scheme of Amalgamation between Muhavra Enterprises
Private Limited (“Transferee Company”) and the Transferor Company and their respective
shareholders and creditors, a copy of which is enclosed with this Notice and placed before
this meeting and initialled by the Chairperson of the meeting for the purpose of
identification, be and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts,
deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable,
appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution and effectively implement the
amalgamation embodied in the Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments,



limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the Hon ble
Tribunal while sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities under law, as considered
necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper. ”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the Unsecured Creditors shall have the facility and option
of voting on the resolution of the Scheme by casting their votes (a) through e-voting system
available at the Meeting to be held virtually on Saturday, 22" day of July 2023 at 1 p.m.
(IST) or (b) by remote electronic voting (“remote e-Voting”) during the period as stated
below:

REMOTE E-VOTING PERIOD
Commencement of VVoting Wednesday, July 19, 2023, at 09:00 a.m.
End of Voting Friday, July 21, 2023, at 05:00 p.m.

The remote e-voting module shall be disabled after the aforementioned time period for
voting, and the Unsecured Creditors will not be allowed to vote beyond the said date and
time. The facility for the e-voting will also be made available at the Meeting and those
Unsecured Creditors who have not already casted their vote by remote e-voting shall be
eligible to vote through e-voting system during the Meeting. Unsecured Creditors who have
already voted through remote e-voting prior to the Meeting date would not be entitled to cast
their vote again.

In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the circulars issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Hon’ble Tribunal convened Meeting of the Unsecured
Creditors of the Transferor Company is being held through VC without the physical
presence of the Unsecured Creditors at the common venue.

It may further be noted that the Notice is being issued to those Unsecured Creditors whose
names appear in the records of the Transferor Company, as given in the list of Unsecured
Creditors as on January 27, 2023 (Reference Date), and as filed with the Company
Application, to exercise their voting rights on the resolution proposed in the Notice.

The Hon’ble Tribunal has appointed Mr. Raghu Nayyar, Former Member (Technical)
NCLT, as the Chairperson and failing him, Ms. Ekakshra Mandhar, Advocate, as the
Alternate Chairperson of the Meeting. The Hon’ble Tribunal has also appointed Mr. Salil
Yadav, Chartered Accountant, as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting and to scrutinize the e-
Voting process, including for any adjournments thereof.

The Transferor Company has appointed National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), to
provide VC facility for the Meeting and the attendant enablers for the conduct of the
Meeting.
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The above-mentioned Scheme, if approved by the Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent
approval of the Hon’ble Tribunal and such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of
regulatory or other authorities, as may be necessary.

For Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited
Digitally signed by

SUCHALI SUCHALI JAIN
Date: 2023.06.17

JAI N 11:59:03 +05'30'

Suchali Jain

Director
(Authorized Signatory)

Date: June 17, 2023

Place: Gurgaon

Registered Office: Plot No-321,

Udyog Vihar Phase-2,

Sector-20, Gurgaon — 122016,

Website: https://suchalisartisanbakehouse.com/
E-mail: suchali@suchalisartisanbakehouse.com
Telephone: 9899743092

CIN: U15490HR2018PTC076091

NOTES:

1. Pursuant to the directions of the Hon’ble Tribunal vide the Order, the Meeting of the
Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company is being conducted through VC
facility to transact the business set out in the Notice convening the Meeting.

2.  The Explanatory Statement in respect of the business set out in the Notice of the
Meeting is annexed hereto.

3. Since the Meeting is scheduled to be convened through VC with facility of remote e-
voting, in pursuance to NCLT Order, therefore, physical attendance of Unsecured
Creditors has been dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies.
Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by members under Section 105 of
the Companies Act, 2013 will not be available for the Meeting and hence, the proxy
form and attendance slip are not annexed to this Notice.

4.  Interms of the directions contained in the Order, the Notice convening the Meeting is
being published by the Transferor Company through advertisement in the Financial
Express (English Daily) and Jansatta (Hindi Daily), both in Delhi NCR edition.

5.  The notice of the Meeting along with the explanatory statement is being sent by
electronic mode to those the Unsecured Creditors whose e-mail addresses are
registered with the Company. For Unsecured Creditors who have not registered their
e-mail addresses, physical copies are being sent by the registered post.

6.  Unsecured Creditors attending the Meeting through VC shall be reckoned for the
purpose of fulfilling the quorum. The quorum for the Meeting is fixed at 40% (Forty



10.

11.

Percent) in value of the Unsecured Creditors by the Hon’ble Tribunal. In case the
quorum is not present at the designated time, the Meeting shall be adjourned by half
an hour, and thereafter, the person(s) present and voting shall be deemed to constitute
the quorum.

A copy of the said Scheme, and of the Explanatory Statement under sections 230(3),
232(2) and 102 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, are enclosed and form part of this
Notice. Hard copies of the said Scheme, and of the Explanatory Statement can also be
obtained by the eligible Unsecured Creditors free of charge at the Registered Office of
the Transferor Company at Plot No-321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20, Gurgaon —
122016. The present Notice and annexures thereto will also be available on the
Transferor Company's website https://suchalisartisanbakehouse.com/ .

Further, any Unsecured Creditor which is a body corporate is required to send a legible
scanned certified true copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant board resolution/power
of attorney/authority letter, etc., as the case may be, in respect of the representative(s)
who are authorized to attend the Meeting through VC on its behalf and to vote through
remote e-Voting or during the Meeting, to the Scrutinizer by email to
casalilyadav@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in and to
suchali@suchalisartisanbakehouse.com not later than 48 hours before the scheduled
time of the commencement of the Meeting. It is also requested to upload the same in
the e-voting module in their login.

The facility to join the aforesaid meetings online will be opened 15 (Fifteen) minutes
before the scheduled time of the meetings and will be kept open through the
proceedings of the meetings. Unsecured Creditors who need assistance before or
during the meeting, may contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager NSDL at
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call on 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000.

In case of any query/grievance in relation e-voting, the same may be addressed to Ms.
Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in or to the representative
of the Transferor Company, Ms. Suchali Jain, Director, by addressing her at
suchali@suchalisartisanbakehouse.com or calling on +919899743092.

Instructions for remote e-voting and to join the Meeting of Unsecured Creditors
through VVC.

The remote e-voting for the Meeting of Unsecured Creditors begins Wednesday, July
19, 2023, at 09:00 a.m. and ends on Friday, July 21, 2023, at 05:00 p.m.

Instructions:

I.  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile.

ii.  Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon

“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/ Member/Creditor’ section.




ii.  Anew screenwill open. You will have to enter your User 1D, your Password
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

iv.  Your Login id and password details casting your vote electronically and for
attending the Meeting of Members through VC will be provided by NSDL
as per the process decided by company.

v.  For the first time the system will ask to reset your password.

vi.  Use your new password to login. Tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions”
by selecting on the check box.
vii.  Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
viii.  After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

iX.  You will be able to see the EVEN no. of meeting of Unsecured Creditors of
Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited.

X.  Click on “EVEN” of the company to cast your vote.

xi.  Now you are ready for e-Voting as the VVoting page opens.

xii.  Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, and
click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.
xiii.  Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

xiv.  You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the
print option on the confirmation page.

Xv.  Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.

xvi.  If you face any problems/experience any difficulty or if you forgot your
password, please feel free to contact at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022-2499 7000,
or contact on email id evoting@nsdl.co.in.

The instructions for members for e-voting on the day of the Meeting are as under:

i. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the Meeting of Suchalis Confectionery
Private Limited is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-
voting.

ii. Only those Members, who will be present in the Meeting through VC facility
and have not casted their vote on the resolutions through remote e-Voting and
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Voting system in the Meeting.

Instructions for attending the Unsecured Creditors Meeting through VC are as
under:

i. Members will be provided with a facility to attend the Meeting through VC
through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access the same at
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under ‘shareholders/members/Creditors’ login
by using the remote e-Voting credentials. The link for VC will be available in
‘shareholder/members/Creditor’ login where the EVEN of the Transferor
Company will be displayed.




PROCEDURE FOR INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

14.

15.

The relevant documents referred in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement are
available for inspection as referred to in the Notice and will be available
electronically/physically for inspection on all working days between 9 a.m. to 6 p.m.
(IST) within 1 (one) working day upon request, without any fee by the Unsecured
Creditor, from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of Meeting.
Unsecured Creditors seeking to inspect such documents can also do so on the website
of the Transferor Company at https://suchalisartisanbakehouse.com/.

Unsecured Creditors seeking any information with regard to the matter proposed to
be considered at the Meeting, are requested to write to the Transferor Company at
least 7 (seven) days before the date of the Meeting through email on
suchali@suchalisartisanbakehouse.com or by sending written requests at the

registered office of the Transferor Company. The same will be addressed by the
Transferor Company suitably.



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
CHANDIGARH BENCH, AT CHANDIGARH

CA (CAA) NO. 10/CHD/HRY/2023 (1ST MOTION)

IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 AND 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND
OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND
THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016

AND

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED

A private limited company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 having its registered
office at Plot No-321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20, Gurgaon — 122016, India, through its authorized
representative, Ms. Suchali Jain, mobile no.: 9899743092, e-mail address:
suchali@suchalisartisanbakehouse.com; Corporate Identity Number: U15490HR2018PTC076091

...Transferor Company/
Applicant No. 1

AND
MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

A private limited company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered
office at D-173, Sushant Lok I, Gurgaon — 122002, India, through its authorized representative, Mr. Matthew
Joseph Chitharanjan, mobile no.: 9650800776, e-mail address: matt@bluetokaicoffee.com; Corporate Identity
Number: U15492HR2012PTC047234

... Transferee Company/
Applicant No. 2

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230(3), 232(2) AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 TO THE NOTICE OF THE HON’BLE TRIBUNAL CONVENED
MEETING OF THE UNSECURED CREDITORS OF SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE
LIMITED

1. Pursuant to order dated May 30, 2023 (Order), passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Chandigarh Bench (Hon’ble Tribunal) in Company Application CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023 (1st
Motion), filed jointly by Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited (Transferor Company) and Muhavra
Enterprises Private Limited (Transferee Company), a meeting of the unsecured creditors of the
Transferor Company (Unsecured Creditors), is being convened through video conferencing with facility
of remote e-voting, on Saturday, the 22" day of July 2023 at 1:00 P A.M. (Meeting), for the purpose of



7.1

considering and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the scheme of amalgamation
between the applicant companies and their respective shareholders and creditors (hereinafter referred to
as the Scheme or Scheme of Amalgamation) under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Act). A copy of the Scheme, setting out details of parties involved in the proposed Scheme, appointed
date, effective date etc. is enclosed as Annexure 1. Capitalised terms used herein but not defined shall
have the meaning assigned to them in the Scheme, unless otherwise stated.

In terms of the Order, the Hon’ble Tribunal has appointed Mr. Raghu Nayyar, Former Member
(Technical) NCLT, as the Chairperson and failing him Ms. Ekakshra Mandhar, Advocate, as the Alternate
Chairperson of the Meeting, including for any adjournment or adjournments thereof. The Hon’ble
Tribunal has also appointed Mr. Salil Yadav, Chartered Accountant, as the Scrutinizer for the Meeting,
including for any adjournments thereof.

In terms of the Order, the quorum for the Meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor Company
is fixed at 40% in value of the Unsecured Creditors, as the case may be. In case the prescribed quorum is
not there at the designated time when the Meeting is called, then the Meeting shall be adjourned by half
an hour, and thereafter, the Unsecured Creditors, present and voting, shall be deemed to constitute the
quorum.

This statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230(3), 232(2) and 102 of the Act, read with
Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (Rules).

The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company at their respective
meetings held on 20 December 2022 and 2 January 2023, respectively, unanimously approved the Scheme
vide the respective board resolutions, subject to the approval of various authorities and shareholders and
creditors of the said companies. The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor
Company have come to a conclusion that the Scheme of Amalgamation is in the best interest of the said
companies and their respective shareholders and creditors.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be acted upon only
if a majority of persons representing three fourths in value of the Unsecured Creditors, of the Transferor
Company, voting through remote e-voting and e-voting during the meeting, agree to the Scheme.

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES
Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited (Transferee Company)

a) The Transferee Company was incorporated on 26 September 2012, as a private limited company
under the name and style “Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited”.

b) The  Corporate Identification = Number of the  Transferee  Company s
U15492HR2012PTC047234. The Permanent Account Number of the Transferee Company is
AAICM1839L. The Registered Office of the Transferee Company is situated at D-173, Sushant
Lok I, Gurugram — 122002.

c) The email address of the Transferee Company is matt@bluetokaicoffee.com.

d) The main objects of the Transferee Company as set out in Clause 111 (A) of its Memorandum of
Association are reproduced herein below:-

“1. To engage in the business of manufacturing, processing and selling goods and providing
services related to coffee, including sale of coffee beans, coffee powder and coffee products,
services for roasting and processing of coffee beans and allied activities for personal and
commercial use, throughout India and overseas.
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2. To carry on, in India or elsewhere, either alone or jointly with one or more persons,
companies, government, or other entities and bodies of any kind, the business of cafe,
Restaurant, hotel, tavern, snacks bar, refreshment room, tea room, beer House, lodging house
keepers, licensed victualed, wine, beer and spirit merchants, brewers, Maltsters, Distillers,
importers and manufacturers of aerated, mineral and artificial waters and other drinks,
purveyors and caterers.

3. To own, purchase, manage, franchise, run, use, maintain, operate, take over, acquire, erect,
construct, build, set up, furnish, adapt, or in any other manner and in all its aspects deal in,
cafe, restaurants of every kind and sort, including all land, buildings, premises, conveniences,
amenities and facilities adjunct thereto, whether owned by the Company or otherwise, and to
render technical services, managerial services, advisory services thereon, to promote, operate,
maintain, manage, market, enter into brand licensing arrangements, provide consultancy
services, technical services, operation and management services, facilities management
services, hospitality services, housekeeping services and other services, to any persons or
entities, in relation to the residential or commercial projects, immovable properties and other
real estate assets and to enter into any arrangements of licensing, brokerage, commission,
technical, business or financial collaboration with any other party or concern, in relation
thereto.”

The Transferee Company is engaged in the business of, inter alia, manufacturing, processing,
distributing, marketing and selling goods related to specialty food and beverage products,
including, but not limited to coffee products (beverages, roasted beans, coffee powder and
coffee products), chocolate products and mushrooms, and providing services such as saleable
drinks in a kiosk format or via delivery for personal and commercial use, and any other business
that may be conducted from time to time, throughout India and overseas.

During the last 5 (Five) years, there has been no change in the name, registered office and the
main objects (summarised above) of the Transferee Company.

Shares of the Transferee Company are not listed on any stock exchange.

The amount due to unsecured creditors of the Transferee Company, as on 27 January 2023, is
INR 5,19,62,349/--.

The capital structure of the Transferee Company as on 13 February 2023 was as under:

Particulars Amount (in INR)

Authorised Share Capital
2,20,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each; 2,77,00,000/-

50,000 preference shares of INR 10/- each;
25,000 preference shares of INR 1000/- each

Total Authorised Share Capital 2,77,00,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Issued, subscribed 1,01,26,260/-
15,766 equity shares of INR 10/- each

16,960 preference shares of INR 10/- each
9,799 preference shares of INR 1000/- each
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Paid up
15,766 equity shares of INR 10/- each

16,960 preference shares of INR 10/- each
9,300 preference shares of INR 1000/- each

96,27,260/-

Total Paid Up Share Capital

96,27,260/-

Note: Please note that the paid-up share capital of the Transferee Company has been increased

from INR 96,27,260/- to INR 1,01,26,260/- by way of allotment of 499 (Four Hundred Ninety
Nine) compulsorily convertible preference shares on 16 February 2023 to DSP HMK Holdings

Private Limited.

Names of the Promoters of the Transferee Company along with their addresses:

S. No.| Name of the Promoter

Address

1.| Mathew Joseph Chithranjan

D-173, Sushant Lok |, Chakarpur (74),
Gurgaon, DLF QE, Gurgaon, Haryana
122002

2.| Namrata Asthana

D-173, Sushant Lok I, Gurugram, Haryana
122002

3.| Shivam Shahi

2242 Sector B2, Green Glade Apartment,
Vasant Kunj, New Delhi, Delhi — 110070

Also at: 3375, Sector D, Pocket 3, Vasant
Kunj, New Delhi-110070

Names of the Directors of the Transferee Company along with their addresses:

S. No. Name of DIN Address Date of Designation
Directors Appointment
1. | Shuchi 03243097 | 57, Sea View, | 20 September Director
Hemendra Worli Seaface, | 2022
Kothari Worli Mumbai,
Maharashtra-
400025
2. | Mathew 06368646 | D-173, Sushant | 26 September Director
Joseph Lok I, 2012
Chitharanjan Chakarpur (74),
Gurgaon, DLF
QE, Gurgaon,
Haryana
122002
3. | Namrata 06368654 | D-173, Sushant | 26 September Director
Asthana Lok I, 2012
Gurugram,
Haryana
122002
5. | Christopher | 06477674 | Radha,453, 02 June 2015 Director
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S. No. Name of DIN Address Date of Designation
Directors Appointment

Leigh Gokhale Road,
Kolenaty Model Colony,
Pune,
Maharashtra-
411016 / 505,
West End AV
9B, New York
411016

6. | Shivam Shahi | 10002921 | 2242 Sector B2,| 18 December Additional
Green Glade 2022 Director
Apartment,
Vasant Kunj,
New Delhi,
Delhi — 110070
/ 3375, Sector
D, Pocket 3,
Vasant Kunj,
New Delhi-
110070

7. | Prasun 09533854 | B-8, 1%t Floor, | 13 January 2023 | Additional
Agarwal Geetanjali Director
Enclave, Near
Aurobindo
College,
Malviya Nagar,
S.0. South
Delhi, Delhi-
110017

8. | Abhay Kumar| 01650845 | B-1601, Lodha | 13 January 2023 | Additional
Pandey Bellissimo, Director
N.M. Joshi
Marg
Mahalakshmi,
Mumbai,
Maharashtra-
400011

Note: Please note that Mr. Prasun Agarwal and Mr. Abhay Kumar Agarwal were appointed as directors
of the Transferee Company in the board meeting held on 13 January 2023, followed by an extra-ordinary
general meeting held on 20 January 2023. The Transferee Company is in the process of filing form DIR-
12 in relation to their appointment as directors and accordingly their designation are yet to be updated
in the records of Ministry of Corporate Affairs as on date.

Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited (Transferor Company)

a) The Transferor Company was incorporated on 27 September 2018, as a private limited company
under the name and style “Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited”.

b) The  Corporate Identification =~ Number of the  Transferor Company is
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U15490HR2018PTC076091. The Permanent Account Number of the Transferor Company is
ABACS9199J. The Registered Office of the Transferor Company is situated at Plot No. 321,
Udyog Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20, Gurgaon, Haryana-122016, India.

The email address of the Transferor Company is suchali@suchalisartisanbakehouse.com.

The main objects as mentioned in Clause 3 (a) of the Memorandum of Association of Transferor
Company are as follows:

“I. To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, buyers, sellers, distributors,
commission agents, importers & exporters of all types & kinds of bread, biscuits,
bakery products, confectionery, sweets & namkeen foods products.

2. To carry on in India or elsewhere the business to process, prepare, disinfect,
fermentate, compound, mix, clean, wash, concentrate, crush, grind, segregate, pack,
repack, add, remove, heat, grade, preserve, freeze, distillate, boil, sterilize, improve,
extract, refine, buy, sell, resale, import, export, barter, transport, store, forward,
distribute, dispose, develop, handle, manipulate, consultant, collaborator, adatia,
stockists, liasioner, middleman, export house, jobworker or otherwise to deal in all
types, descriptions, tastes, uses and packs of consumer food items, their byproducts,
ingredients, derivatives, residues, including foods and vegetables, packed foods,
powders, pastes, liquids, drinks, beverages, juices, jams, jelly, squashes, pickels,
sausages, concentrates, extracts, essences, flavours, syrups, sarbats, flavoured drinks,
health and diet drinks, extruded foods, frozen foods, dehydrated foods, precooked
foods, canned foods, preserved foods, health foods, protien foods, cream, cheese,
butter, biscuits, breades, cakes, pastries, confectionery, sweets, chocolates, toffees,
funfoods, breakfast foods, protien foods, dietic products, strained baby foods, instant
foods, cereal products, table delicacies, and all other items whether natural, artificial
or synthetic.

3. To carry on the business of process, produce. Mix, pack, preserve, freeze, extract,
refine, manufacture, import, export, buy, sell, trade and deal in Bread, processed
foods, health foods, protein foods, food products, agro foods, fast foods, packed foods,
poultry products, sea foods, milk foods, health and diet drinks, extruded foods, frozen
foods, dehydrated foods, precooked foods, canned foods, preserved foods, bakery
products and confectionery items such as breads, biscuits, sweets, cakes, pastries,
cookies, wafers, condoles, lemon drops, chocolate, toffees, tinned fruits, chewing gum,
bubble gum, detergents, tea and coffee, vegetables, fruits, jams, jelly, pickles,
squashes, sausages, nutrient, health and diet foods/ drinks, extruded foods,
confectionery items, sweets, cereals products and any other food products in and
outside India.

4, To carry in India or elsewhere the business to process, prepare, disinfect, fennentate,
compound, mix, clean wash, concentrate, crush, grind, segregate, pack, repack, add,
remove, heat, grade, preserve, freeze, distillate, boil, sterilize, improve, extract refine,
buy, sell, resale, import, export, barter, transport, store, forward, distribute, dispose,
develop, handle, manipulate, consultant, collaborator, adatia, stockists, liasioner,
middleman, export house, jobworker or otherwise to deal in all types, descriptions,
tastes, uses and packs of consumer food items, their byproducts, ingredients,
derivatives, residues, including foods and vegetables, packed foods, powders, pastes,
liquids, drinks, beverages, juices, jams, jelly, squashes, pickles, sausages,
concentrates, extracts, essences, flavours, syrups, sarbats, flavoured drinks, cream,
cheese, butter, biscuits, breads, cakes, pastries, confectionery, sweets, chocolates,
toffees, fun foods, breakfast foods, dietic products, strained baby foods, instant foods,
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cereal products, table delicacies and all other items whether natural, artificial or
synthetic."”

The Transferor Company is engaged in the business of, inter alia, manufacturing, producing,
buying, selling, distributing of all types and kinds of bread, biscuits, baked goods and
confectionery food products.

During the last 5 (Five)years, there has been no change in the name and the main objects
(summarised above) of the Transferor Company. However, the registered office of the Company
was changed from U-25, DLF-111, VPO Nathupur, Gurgaon, Haryana-122002, India to Plot No.
321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20, Gurgaon, Haryana-122016, India, on 20 July 2020.

Shares of the Transferor Company are not listed on any stock exchange.

The amount due to unsecured creditors of the Transferor Company, as on 27 January 2023, is
INR 51,44,921/-.

The capital structure of the Transferor Company, as on 27 January 2023, is asunder:

Particulars Amount (in INR)

Authorised Share Capital 1,50,000/-

15,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each;

Total Authorised Share Capital 1,50,000/-

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Issued, subscribed 1,01,420/-

10,142 equity shares of INR 10/- each
Paid up 1,01,420/-
10,142 equity shares of INR 10/- each

Total Paid up Share Capital 1,01,420/-

Names of the Promoters of the Transferor Company along with their addresses:

S. No. Name of the Promoter Address

1. Suchali Jain A- 57, Near- S.D. College, Tribun Colony,
Ambala, Haryana-133001

2. Mitali Singh House No0-5127, Sector-B, Pocket-7, Vasant
Kunj, Delhi-110070

Names of the Directors of the Transferor Company along with their addresses:

S. | Name of Directors DIN Address Date of Designation
No. Appointment
1. Suchali Jain 08241627 | A-57, Near- 27 September Director
S.D. 2018
College, Tribun
Colony,
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Ambala,
Haryana-
133001

2. Mitali Singh 08241628 | House No- 27 September Director
5127, Sector- 2018
B, Pocket-7,

Vasant Kunj,
Delhi-110070

APPLICABILITY OF VALUATION REPORT

The Transferee Company, on the basis of the valuation reports dated 17 December 2022, prepared by
Mr. Subodh Kumar, an Independent Registered Valuer, registered with IBBI vide Registration No.
IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705, having his office at 210, 2" Floor, Wadhwa Complex, Street No. 10, Laxmi
Nagar, New Delhi-110092, India and a coordinating office at First Floor, 12/14, Dhakka, Near Kingsway
Camp, Delhi-110009, shall, without any further application, act, instrument or deed, issue and allot to
each of the Transferor Members (as defined in the Scheme), whose name is registered in the register of
members of the Transferor Company on the Record Date (as defined in the Scheme), shares in the
Transferee Company as follows:

For 2.426 shares of the Transferor Company, the Transferor Member shall be issued 1 (One) Equity
Share of the Transferee Company.

The employee stock option pool of the Transferee Company on a Fully Diluted Basis (as defined in the
Scheme) shall stand increased by 267 (Two Hundred and Sixty-Seven), to accommodate the employee
stock option pool of the Transferor Company.

RELATIONSHIP SUBSISTING BETWEEN PARTIES TO THE SCHEME

The Transferor Company has entered into a supply agreement dated 1 April 2022, with the Transferee
Company pursuant to which the Transferor Company supplies baked products and packaged goods on
Pan India basis to all the stores, cafes, and outlets of the Transferee Company. The said agreement is
valid for 3 (Three) years commencing from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2025.

The Transferor Company and Transferee Company have also entered into the following shop-in-shop
arrangements:

(i) “Shop-In-Shop Agreement’ dated 9 March 2022 executed by the Transferor Company with the
Transferee Company in relation to property situated at PSP, C-G-20, the Palm Spring Plaza, Golf
Course Road, Sector-54, Gurgaon, Haryana, wherein the Transferor Company has procured a store-
in-store space in the Transferee Company’s outlet for the purpose of selling its baked and packaged
products; and

(if) Shop-In-Shop Agreement’ dated 1 May 2022, executed by the Transferor Company with Transferee
Company in relation to property leased by the Transferor Company, situated at Plot No. 253, (MB-
690) Mohishbathan Salt Lake, Kolkata — 700059, the Transferee Company has procured a store-in-
store space in Transferor Company’s outlet for purpose of selling its products.

RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME

The proposed Amalgamation (as defined in the Scheme) as envisaged in Scheme, is a measure of
consolidation of the related entities in same line of business to achieve the following objectives:
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The Amalgamation is expected to achieve cost savings from more focused operational efforts,
rationalization and standardization of business processes by way of consolidation.

The Amalgamation is expected to achieve business synergies and is expected to enable carrying
on the businesses more economically.

The Amalgamation is intended to rationalize the business operations and activities, to utilize the
potential for growth and diversification and for better optimization of costs and resources.

The Amalgamation would result in consolidation to enable better and more efficient
management, and more opportunities to vigorously pursue growth and expansion.

It is, therefore, considered desirable and expedient to carry out the Scheme of Amalgamation pursuant
to Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act (as may be in force).

The Scheme is in the interest of the shareholders, creditors and employees of the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company.

SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME

a)

b)

c)

d)

The Scheme is presented under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable provisions
of the Act and the rules and regulations framed thereunder, to the extent notified, for
amalgamation of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee Company.

The Appointed Date as defined in the Scheme, is 1 April 2022 or such other date as may be
modified, upon mutual considerations and acceptance, by the Board of Directors of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, and / or being such date as may be approved
by the Hon’ble Tribunal.

The Effective Date of the Scheme has been defined as the date on which a certified copy of the
order of the Hon’ble Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme is filed with the Registrar of Companies.
Any reference in the Scheme to “upon the Scheme becoming effective” or “effectiveness of the
Scheme” or “Scheme coming into effect”, etc., shall mean the "Effective Date".

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the Hon’ble
Tribunal and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act, all assets of the Transferor Company Undertaking (as defined in
the Scheme), shall be and stand vested in or be deemed to have been vested in the Transferee
Company, as a going concern without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing so as to
become, as and from the Appointed Date, the undertaking of the Transferee Company by virtue
of and in the manner provided in the Scheme.

With effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, trade payables,
duties and obligations of the Transferor Company shall also, without any further act, instrument
or deed be transferred to and vested in and assumed by and/or deemed to be transferred to and
vested in and assumed by the Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230
to 232 of the Act, so as to become the liabilities of the Transferee Company and further that it
shall not be necessary to intimate or obtain the consent of any third party or other person who
is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such liabilities have arisen, in order
to give effect to this clause.

It is clarified that where any such debts, loans raised, liabilities, duties and obligations of the
Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date have been discharged or satisfied by the
Transferor Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge
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or satisfaction shall be deemed to be for and on account of the Transferee Company.

All loans raised and utilized and all liabilities, duties and obligations incurred or undertaken by
the Transferor Company in the ordinary course of business after the Appointed Date and prior
to the Effective Date shall be deemed to have been raised, incurred or undertaken for and on
behalf of the Transferee Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date,
shall, upon coming into effect of the Scheme and in terms of the provisions of the Act, without
any further act, instrument or deed be and stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed to
have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and shall become the loans and
liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company which shall meet, discharge and
satisfy the same.

All the legal proceedings of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor Company pending
and/or arising at or after the Appointed Date with respect to its properties, assets, debts,
liabilities, duties and obligations, shall be continued and/or enforced (as applicable) until the
Effective Date against the Transferor Company only. From the Effective Date, such proceedings
shall be continued and enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the manner and to the
same extent as would or might have been continued and enforced by or against the Transferor
Company.

In case of any litigation, suits, recovery proceedings which are to be initiated or may be initiated
against the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date, the Transferee Company shall be
made party thereto and any payment and expenses made thereto shall be the liability of the
Transferee Company after the Appointed Date.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, all employees of the Transferor Company as on such date
shall become the employees of the Transferee Company, and, subject to the provisions hereof,
on such terms and conditions as provided in the employment agreements to be executed with
the Transferee Company, without any interruption of service as a result of the Amalgamation.

The Transferor Company further agrees that for the purpose of payment of any retirement
benefit/compensation, such immediate uninterrupted past services with the Transferor Company
shall also be taken into account.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the accounts of the employees, who are employed by the
Transferor Company, relating to the provident fund, employee state insurance, gratuity fund and
pension and/or superannuation fund and any other fund for the benefit of the employees of the
Transferor Company, shall be identified, determined and transferred to the respective funds of
the Transferee Company and the employees shall be deemed to have become members of such
trusts/ funds of the Transferee Company.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Effective Date, all statutory licences, patents,
permissions, approvals, copyrights, trademarks, authorisations or consents to carry on the
operations and business of the Transferor Company shall stand vested in or transferred to the
Transferee Company without any further act or deed and shall be appropriately mutated by the
statutory authorities concerned in favour of the Transferee Company. The benefit of all statutory
and regulatory permissions, environmental approvals and consents, patents, authorisations,
registrations or other licenses and consents shall vest in and become available to the Transferee
Company pursuant to the Scheme. In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, rehabilitation
schemes, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by any government
body, local authority or by any other person, or availed of by the Transferor Company, are
concerned, the same shall vest with and be available to the Transferee Company on the same
terms and conditions.
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Subject to the other provisions of the Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, memorandum of
understandings, non-disclosure agreements, response to request for proposal or request for
information, insurance, letters of intent, agreements, arrangements and other instruments, if any,
of whatsoever nature relating to which the Transferor Company is a party or to the benefit of
which the Transferor Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect
immediately before the Effective Date, shall be in full force and effect against or in favour of
the Transferee Company, as the case may be, and may be enforced by or against the Transferee
Company as fully and eventually as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee
Company had been a party thereto. The Transferee Company shall enter into and/or issue and/or
execute deeds, writings or confirmations or enter into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations
or novations, to which the Transferor Company will, if necessary, also be party in order to give
formal effect to the provisions of the Scheme, if so required. Further, the Transferee Company
shall be deemed to be authorized to execute any such deeds, writings or confirmations on behalf
of the Transferor Company and to implement or carry out all formalities required on the part of
the Transferor Company to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme. The Transferee
Company shall, under the provisions of the Scheme, be deemed to be authorised to execute any
such writings on behalf of the Transferor Company and to carry out or perform all such
formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the Transferor Company to be carried
out or performed.

For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarified
that upon the Amalgamation coming into effect on the Effective Date, all consents, permissions,
licenses, certificates, clearances, authorities, powers of attorney given by, issued to or executed
in favour of the Transferor Company in relation to the Transferor Company Undertaking (as
defined in the Scheme) shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company as if the same were
originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Transferee Company, and the
Transferee Company shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder,
and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to the Transferee Company. The
Transferee Company shall make applications to relevant Governmental Authority as may be
necessary in this regard.

All taxes payable by the Transferor Company and the benefits/ credits of taxes available to the
Transferor Company, upto the Appointed Date, including all or any refunds and claims shall,
for all purposes, be treated as the tax liabilities or refunds and claims of the Transferee
Company.

Upon the Effective Date, the Transferee Company is expressly permitted to revise its income
tax returns, carry forward losses from the Transferor Company and to claim refunds, advance
tax and withholding tax credits, etc., pursuant to the provisions of the Scheme and the Income
Tax Act, 1961 and any amendments thereto.

Upon the Effective Date, the Transferee Company is also expressly permitted to claim
refunds/credits on account of income-tax, Goods & Service Tax (GST) and other taxes in
accordance with the rules prescribed in the relevant legislations.

All taxes paid or payable by the Transferor Company in respect of the operations and/or the
profits of the business on and from the Appointed Date, shall be on account of the Transferee
Company and, insofar as it relates to the payment of such taxes, whether by way of deduction/
collection at source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by the Transferor Company in respect
of the profits or activities or operation of the business on and from the Appointed Date, the same
shall be deemed to be the corresponding item paid by the Transferee Company, and shall, in all
proceedings, be dealt with accordingly. The relevant authorities shall be bound to transfer to the
account of and give credit for the same to the Transferee Company upon the passing of the
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orders on the Scheme by the Hon’ble Tribunal upon relevant proof and documents being
provided to the said authorities.

k) Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of Transferor Company shall
stand combined with the authorized share capital of Transferee Company. Filing fees and stamp
duty, if any, paid by the Transferor Company on its authorized share capital, shall be deemed
to have been so paid by the Transferee Company on the combined authorized share capital and
accordingly, the Transferee Company shall not be required to pay any fee/stamp duty for its
increased authorized share capital. However, the Transferee Company shall file the requisite
forms and fresh memorandum and articles of association with the Registrar of Companies

1) As on the Appointed Date, the reserves, surplus and balance in profit & loss account of the
Transferor Company will be merged with the respective reserves, surplus and balance in profit
& loss account of the Transferee Company in the same form as they appeared in the financial
statements of the Transferor Company.

The difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued (plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets) and the amount of share capital of the
Transferor Company shall be adjusted in reserves.

If, at the time of the Amalgamation, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have
conflicting accounting policies, a uniform set of accounting policies should be adopted
following the Amalgamation. The effects on the financial statements of any changes in
accounting policies should be reported in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 5 ‘Net
Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies’.

m) During the period between the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date, the
Transferor Company shall not declare any dividend without the prior written consent of the
Board of Directors of the Transferee Company.

For avoidance of doubt, the shareholders of the Transferee Company shall, save as expressly
provided otherwise in the Scheme, continue to enjoy their existing rights under their respective
articles of association including the right to receive dividends until the Effective Date and
nothing in the Scheme shall prevent Transferee Company from declaring and paying dividends,
whether interim or final, or issuing any bonus shares to its shareholders as on a Record Date
and the equity shareholders of the Transferor Company shall not be entitled to dividends or
bonus shares, if any, declared or issued by Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date.

n) Upon the Effective Date the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without being wound up
and the Board of Directors and any committees thereof of the Transferor Company shall without
any further act, instrument or deed be and stand dissolved.

0) Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the resolutions, if any, of the Transferor Company, which
are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be
considered as resolutions of the Transferee Company and if any such resolutions impose upper
monetary or other limits under the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable provisions,
then the said limits shall be added and shall constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the
Transferee Company

THE FEATURES SET OUT ABOVE BEING ONLY THE SALIENT FEATURES OF THE
SCHEME, THE UNSECURED CREDITORS ARE REQUESTED TO READ THE ENTIRE
TEXT OF THE SCHEME TO GET THEMSELVES FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE
PROVISIONS THEREOF.
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The Scheme does not contemplate any debt restructuring nor is the Transferee Company and the
Transferor Company undergoing any debt restructuring.

No investigations or proceedings have been instituted and are pending in relation to either the Transferee
Company or the Transferor Company under the Act, or the Companies Act, 1956 except the following:

S. Case Details pertaining to the | Pending with Current Status
No. | Transferor Company Authorities
1. [ITBA] Show Cause Notice u/s | Commissioner  Of | Ongoing
271(1)(c) of Income Tax Act Income Tax
1961 (Appeals)

Demand Reference Number
2018201637046667216C

DETAILS OF APPROVALS, SANCTIONS OR NO-OBJECTION(S), IF ANY, FROM
REGULATORY OR ANY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES REQUIRED,
RECEIVED OR PENDING FOR THE PROPOSED SCHEME:

The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company have filed a joint application before the Hon’ble
Tribunal for the sanction of the Scheme under sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the
Act and the Hon’ble Tribunal has given directions to, inter alia, convene the meetings of the respective
shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor
Company, vide order dated May 30, 2023.

The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company are governed by the Income Tax Department, the
Central Government through the Registrar of Companies, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Regional
Director, Northern Region and the Official Liquidator. Hence, representations from the aforementioned
authorities on the Scheme are awaited by the the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company. It is
hereby clarified that the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company are not governed by any other
governmental authority whose representations may be required for the purpose of the Amalgamation.

DISCLOSURE ABOUT EFFECT OF THE COMPROMISE OR ARRANGEMENT ON THE
FOLLOWING PARTIES:

a) Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

The KMPs of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company do not have any interest in
the Scheme financially or otherwise, except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the
Transferor Company.

b) Directors

The directors of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company do not have any other
interest in the Scheme financially or otherwise, except to the extent of their shareholding, if any,
in the Transferor Company.

Further, upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved
without winding up and accordingly, its board shall cease to exist.

c) Shareholders

As per the Scheme, the Transferee Company will issue new shares to the shareholders of the
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Transferor Company based on the Share Exchange Ratio, i.e., for every 2.426 shares of the
Transferor Company, the member of the Transferor Company shall be issued 1 equity share of
the Transferee Company, based on the share exchange ratio of 0.4122:1 (Share Exchange
Ratio).

The shareholders of the Transferor Company will cease to hold shares in the Transferor
Company and will receive shares in the Transferee Company in consideration of the
Amalgamation and in accordance with the Share Exchange Ratio.

Promoters and non-promoter members

The Promoters of the Transferee Company do not have any other interest in the Scheme except
to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Transferor Company.

The promoter/non-promoter shareholders of the Transferor Company will be treated at par with
the other shareholders of the Transferee Company, once they will be issued shares of the
Transferee Company.

Please refer to point (c) above for details regarding effect on the shareholders.
Depositors

As of date, the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company have not accepted any
deposits, therefore the effect of the Scheme on any such public deposit holders does not arise.

Creditors

The Transferee Company has 24 (Twenty Four) secured creditors and their total outstanding
principal amount as of 31 December 2022 is INR 20,17,38,129/-. Further, the Transferee
Company has 42 (Forty Two) unsecured creditors, and their total outstanding balances as of 27
January 2023 is INR 5,19,62,349/-. The Scheme does not cause any prejudice to the creditors
of the Transferee Company. Further, the creditors of the Transferee Company are also in no
way affected as there is no reduction in the amount payable to any of the creditors, no
compromise or arrangement is contemplated with the creditors and there is no significant
reduction in the security, which the creditors may have in the Transferee Company. Further, the
proposed Scheme would not in any way adversely affect the ordinary operations of the
Transferee Company or the ability of the Transferee Company to honor its commitments or to
pay its debts in the ordinary course of business.

The Transferor Company has 2 (Two) secured creditors and their outstanding principal amount
as on 31 December 2022 is INR 1,52,05,445/-. Further, the Transferor Company has 7 (Seven)
unsecured creditors and the total outstanding balances as on 27 January 2023 is INR 51,44,921/.
As per the Scheme, all the debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of the
Transferor Company, as on the Appointed Date, whether provided for or not in the books of
accounts of the Transferor Company and all other liabilities which may accrue or arise after the
Appointed Date but which relates to the period on or up to the day of the Appointed Date shall
be the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company including any
encumbrance on the assets of the Transferor Company or on any income earned from those
assets.

Debenture holders

As of date, the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company do not have any compulsory
convertible debentures, therefore the effect of the Scheme on any such debenture holders does
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not arise.

However, the Company has issued 200 (Two Hundred) senior, unsubordinated, secured,
redeemable non-convertible debentures of the face value of INR 5,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five
Lakhs only), each aggregating to INR 10,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Ten Crores only) to certain
identified investors on a private placement basis on 04 May, 2022.

h) Deposit trustee and debenture trustee

As of date, the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company do not have any debenture
trustee or deposit trustee, therefore the effect of the Scheme on any such deposit
trustee/debenture trustee does not arise.

i) Employees

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, all employees of the Transferor Company as on such date
shall become the employees of the Transferee Company, and, subject to the provisions hereof,
on such terms and conditions as provided in the employment agreements to be executed with
the Transferee Company, without any interruption of service as a result of the Amalgamation.

16. Unsecured Creditors to whom the Notice is sent may vote in the meeting through remote e-voting facility
before the meeting/e-voting facility during the meeting.

17. CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY - PRE AND POST SCHEME

(EXPECTED)
Particulars PRE-SCHEME AS ON 27 POST-SCHEME (EXPECTED)
January 2023
No. of shares | Amount (in INR)| No. of shares |Amount (in INR)

Authorised Share Capital 15,000 1,50,000/- - -
Equity Shares of INR10/-
each
Total Authorised Share 15,000 1,50,000/- - -
Capital
Issued, Subscribed and 10,142 1,01,420/- - -
Paid-up Share Capital
Equity Shares of INR10/-
each
Total Paid Up Share 10,142 1,01,420/- - -
Capital

18.  CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY - PRE AND POST SCHEME
(EXPECTED)

Particulars PRE-SCHEME AS ON 13 POST-SCHEME (EXPECTED)
FEBRUARY 2023

No. of shares Amount (in No. of shares | Amount (in INR)
INR)
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Authorised Share Capital 2,77,00,000/- 2,77,00,000/-

Equity Shares of INR 10/-

2,20,000 2,20,000
each

Preference shares of INR

10/- each 50,000 50,000

Preference shares of INR

1000/- each 25,000 25,000

Issued, Subscribed and
Paid-up Share Capital

Issued, subscribed

Equity shares of INR 10/-
each

1,01,26,260/- 1,72,75,060/-
15,766 19,946

Preference shares of INR

10/~ each 16,960 16,960

Preference shares of INR

9,799 16,906
1000/- each

Paid up 96,27,2601- 1,72,75,060/-
, 15,766 19,946

Equity shares of INR 10/-

each

Preference shares of INR 16,960 16,960
10/- each

Preference shares of INR 9.300 16,906
1000/- each

Note: Please note that the paid-up share capital of the Company (as mentioned under the pre-scheme
capital structure) has been increased from INR 96,27,260 to INR 1,01,26,260/- by way of allotment of
allotted of 499 (Four Hundred Ninety-Nine) compulsory convertible preference shares on 16 February
2023 to DSP HMK Holdings Private Limited.

The Scheme does not have a prejudicial effect on the Key Managerial Personnel, Directors, Shareholders,
Creditors, Employees of the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company, as no sacrifice or waiver
is, at all, called from them nor are their rights sought to be modified in any manner.

None of the Directors, Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Creditors and Employees of the
Transferor Company and Transferee Company respectively have any material interest in the Scheme.

No winding up petition is pending against the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the
Transferee Company and the Transferor Company, in their respective meetings held on 20 December
2022 and 2 January 2023, respectively, have adopted a report, inter alia, explaining the effect of the
Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoter and non-promoter
shareholders. Copy of the reports adopted by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company and
Transferor Company is enclosed herewith as Annexure 2 and Annexure 3, respectively.

Audited financial statements of the Transferee Company and Transferor Company for the period ended 31
March 2022, is enclosed as Annexure 4 and Annexure 5, respectively, while the unaudited financial
statements of Transferee Company and Transferor Company as on 31 December 2022 have been
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enclosed as Annexure 6 and Annexure 7, respectively.

24. INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS:

The following documents will be open for inspection to the Unsecured Creditors of the Transferor
Company at its registered office situated at Plot No-321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20, Gurgaon —
122016, India on all working days (except Saturday, Sunday and public holidays) between 9 a.m. and 6
p.m. up to the date of the ensuing Meeting:

a.

Copy of the order dated May 30, 2023, passed by the Hon’ble Tribunal in Company Application
CA (CAA) NO. 10/Chd/Hry/2023 (1st Motion) directing inter alia the convening of the
Meeting.

Copy of the Scheme as filed before the Hon’ble Tribunal.

Copy of the audited financials of the Transferee Company for the year ended 31 March 2022.
Copy of the audited financials of the Transferor Company for the year ended 31 March 2022.
Copy of the unaudited financial statements of Transferee Company as on 31 December 2022.

Copy of the unaudited financial statements of Transferor Company as on 31 December 2022.

Copy of the Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Transferee Company pursuant to the
provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

Copy of the Report adopted by the Board of Directors of Transferor Company pursuant to the
provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act.

Copies of the valuation reports dated 17 December 2022 prepared by Mr. Subodh Kumar, an
Independent Registered Valuer, registered with IBBI vide Registration No.
IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705, determining the share exchange value between the Transferee
Company and the Transferor Company.

Copies of the certificate issued by Auditors of the Transferee Company and Transferor
Company to the effect that the accounting treatment proposed in the Scheme of Amalgamation
is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

For Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

Digitally signed by
SUCHALI SUCHALIJAIN
Date: 2023.06.17
JAIN 12:00:52 +05'30'
Suchali Jain
Director

Authorized Signatory
Date: June 17, 2023

Place: Gurgaon

Registered Office:
Plot No-321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20, Gurgaon — 122016, India.
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Page 1 of 12
IN THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
BENCH AT CHANDIGARH

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)

Under Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with

Companies (Compromise,
Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF:

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED
with its registered office at:
Plot No-321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20, Gurgaon - 122016, India,
CIN: U15490HR2018PTC076091
PAN: AAICM1839L
...Transferor Company/Applicant
Company No. 1

AND
MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
with its registered office at:
D-173, Sushant Lok |, Gurgaon -122002, India,
CIN: U15492HR2012PTC047234
PAN: ABACS9199J

...Transferee Company/Applicant
Company No. 2

Order delivered on: 30.05.2023

Coram: HON’'BLE MR. HARNAM SINGH THAKUR, MEMBER (JUDICIAL)
HON’BLE MR. SUBRATA KUMAR DASH, MEMBER (TECHNICAL)

Present : -
For the Applicant Companies: Mr. Sahil Sharma, Advocate

Per: HARNAM SINGH THAKUR, MEMBER (JUDICIAL)

ORDER

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)
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This is a Joint First Motion Application filed by Applicant Companies

Page 2 of 12

namely; SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED (for short hereinafter
referred to as “Applicant Company/ Transferor Company No.1”) and MUHAVRA
ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED (for short hereinafter referred to as
“‘Applicant Company/Transferee Company No.2”) under Section 230-232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other applicable provisions of the Act read
with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements, and Amalgamations) Rules,
2016 (the Rules) in relation to the Scheme of Amalgamation between the
respective companies. The said Scheme is attached as Annexure 3 with the
Application.

2. The Transferor Company is presently engaged in the business of, inter
alia, manufacturing, producing, buying, selling and distributing all types and kinds
of bread bakery products, confectionery, sweets and namkeen foods products.

3. The Transferee Company is presently engaged in the business of, inter
alia, manufacturing, processing, distributing, marketing and selling goods related
to specialty food and beverage products, including, but not limited to coffee
products (beverages, roasted beans coffee powder and coffee products),
chocolate products and mushrooms and providing services such as saleable
drinks in a kiosk format or via delivery for personal and commercial use,
throughout India and overseas.

4. It is submitted that the registered offices of the Applicant Companies are
situated in Gurugram, therefore, the territorial jurisdiction of Applicant Companies
falls with this Bench.

5. The rationale of the Scheme is given below: -

a. The Amalgamation between the Applicant Companies (Amalgamation) is

expected to achieve cost savings from more focused operational efforts,

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)
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rationalization and standardization of business processes by way of

Page 3 of 12

consolidation.

b. The Amalgamation is expected to achieve business synergies and is

expected to enable carrying on the businesses more economically.

c. The Amalgamation is intended to rationalize the business operations and
activities, to utilize the potential for growth and diversification and for

better optimization of costs and resources.

d. The Amalgamation would result in consolidation to enable better and more
efficient management and more opportunities to vigorously pursue growth

and expansion.

6. It is stated that the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, in their meetings held on 02.01.2023 and 20.12.2022,
respectively, have considered and unanimously approved the Scheme subject to
the sanction of the same by this Tribunal. The copies of the Board Resolutions of
the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are attached as

Annexure-4 and Annexure-5 respectively of the Application.

7. The appointed date of the Scheme is 01.04.2022 as defined in Part-A
Clause 1.03 of Scheme of Amalgamation which is attached as Annexure- 3 with

the Application.

8. It is stated that the Transferor Company has filed audited financial
statements as on 31 March 2022 and unaudited financial statements as on 31
December 2022 as Annexure-11. It is further stated that the Transferee Company
has filed audited financial statements as on 31 March 2022 and unaudited

financial statements as on 31 December 2022 as Annexure-12.

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)
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10. It is further submitted that the valuation reports have been submitted by

Page 4 of 12

Mr. Subodh Kumar, an Independent Registered Valuer, bearing Registration No.
IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705, which are attached as Annexure-6 of the Application. As
per the said valuation reports dated 17.12.2022, the following share exchange

ratio has been proposed in the Scheme:-

“For 2.426 shares of the Transferor Company, the Transferor Member

shall be issued 1 (One) Equity Share of the Transferee Company.”

11. Itis deposed by way of affidavits furnished by authorised signatories of the
Applicant Companies that the Application with respect to the Scheme sets out all
material facts under Section 230(2)(b) and 230(2)(c) of the Act relating to the
Applicant Companies, and that the latest audited accounts of the Applicant
Companies as on 31 March 2022 have been filed. Further, there are no material
investigations or proceedings pending against the Applicant Companies under
the Companies Act, 2013 or any other provision of law which have a material
adverse effect on the sanction of the Scheme. There are no material legal
proceedings against the Applicant Companies under applicable laws that

adversely impact the sanction of the Scheme (Annexure-16 of the Application).

12. Itis deposed by way of affidavits furnished by authorised signatories of the
Applicant Companies that notice of the Scheme is to be issued and sent only to
the following statutory authorities: 1) the Regional Director, Northern Region,
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 2) the Jurisdictional Registrar of Companies, 3) the
Income Tax Department through the Nodal Officer — Principal Commissioner of
Income Tax, and 4) the Official Liquidator. Besides the above-mentioned
authorities, there are no other sectoral regulators/authorities pertaining to the

Applicant Companies (Annexure-18 of the Application).

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)
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13. It is submitted that in the present Scheme of Amalgamation that the do

Page 5 of 12

not involve the reduction of share capital in terms of Section 66 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and that the Scheme does not provide for any arrangement with the
outside creditors and thus thereby Corporate Debt restructuring is not applicable

to the Scheme.

14.  The authorized signatory of Applicant Company has stated that there are
no investigations or proceedings of any manner before any authority including
under Sections 210 & 226 of the Companies Act, 2013. The relevant paras for

the same at Para No. 40 and 41 of the application at Page No. 44.

15.  The Applicant Company have furnished the following documents:-
i. Proposed Scheme of Amalgamation (Annexure 3 with the application).

ii. Certificate of Incorporation along with Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Applicant Companies (Annexure 1 and 2 with the
Application).

ii. List of Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Companies duly certified
by Swati A Gupta & Associates, Chartered Accountants as on
09.02.2022 (Annexure 7 and 9 with the Application).

iv. List of Secured and Unsecured Creditors dated 19.09.2022 of the
Applicant Company duly certified by Swati A Gupta & Associates,
Chartered Accountants (Annexure 8 and 10 with the Application).

v. Certificate by the Statutory Auditor to the effect that the Accounting
treatment proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with Section 133 of

the Companies Act, 2013 (Annexure 13 with the Application).

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)
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vi. Audited Financial Statement for financial year 2021-2022 of the

Page 6 of 12

Applicant Companies (Annexure 11 and Annexure 12 with the
Application).

vii. Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ended on 30.09.2022 of
the Applicant Company (Annexure 11 and Annexure 12 with the
Application).

viii. Affidavits of sectoral regulators of the Applicant Companies (Annexure

18 with the Application).

ix. Affidavit with regard to no legal proceedings pending against the

Applicant Companies (Annexure 17 with the Application).

15. The Transferor Company/ Applicant Company No. 1 i.e. Suchalis
Confectionery Private Limited was incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 on 27.09.2018 bearing CIN U15490HR2018PTC076091
with the Registrar of Companies Delhi & Haryana and The Transferee Company/
Applicant Company No. 2 i.e. Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited was
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on 26.09.2012
bearing CIN U15492HR2012PTC047234 with the Registrar of Companies Delhi
& Haryana.

16. The Applicant Companies have furnished the details of the Equity

Shareholders, Secured Creditors and Unsecured Creditors which are as follows:

Name of the Shareholders along with their consent on Creditors along with their consents on affidavit
Applicant affidavit
Companies
Equity Consents |Preference | Consents | Secured Consent| Unsecured Consents
Shareholder{ submitted |[Shareholdeq submitted | Creditors s Creditors submitted
on affidavit [s on affidavit submitte on
d on affidavit
affidavit

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023

(1%t Motion)
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Page 7 of 12
prpplicant 4 Meetings to NA NA INR Meeting | INR Meetings to
ﬁgmfa”y be convened 1,52,0544 | stobe | 51,44,921/- | be convened
’ 5/-in convene | in value

value d
AApplicant 15 Meetings 79 Meetings to INR Meeting | INR Meetings to
Company to be be convened | 5) 17381 | stobe | 5,19.62,349/- | be convened
No. 2 convened . :

29/-in convene | in value

value d

17.  Accordingly, the directions of this Bench in the present case are as under:

. In_relation to Applicant Company No.1/Transferor Company:

The meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company
No.1/Transferor Company No.1 be convened as prayed for on
22.07.2023 (Saturday) at 03:30 PM through Video Conferencing with
facility of remote e-voting, subject to notice of the meeting being
issued. The quorum of the meeting of the Equity Shareholders shall be
2 in number or 40% in value of the Equity Shareholders;

The meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Applicant Company
No.1/Transferor Company No.1 be convened as prayed for on
22.07.2023 (Saturday) at 10:30 AM through Video Conferencing with
facility of remote e-voting, subject to notice of the meeting being
issued. Although, the total no. of Secured Creditors is not mentioned
in the list attached as Annexure 8. Therefore, the quorum of the
meeting of the Secured Creditors shall be 40% in value of the Secured
Creditors;

The meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Company
No.1/Transferor Company No.1 be convened as prayed for on
22.07.2023 (Saturday) at 01:00 PM through Video Conferencing with

facility of remote e-voting, subject to notice of the meeting being

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023

(1%t Motion)
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issued. Although, the total no. of Unsecured Creditors is not

Page 8 of 12

mentioned in the list attached as Annexure 8. Therefore, the quorum
of the meeting of the Unsecured Creditors shall be 40% in value of the

Unsecured Creditors;

Il. Inrelation to Applicant Company No.2/Transferee Company:

a. The meeting of the Equity Shareholders and all categories of
Preference Shareholders of the Applicant Company No.2/Transferee
Company be convened as prayed for on 23.07.2023 (Sunday) at
03:30 PM through Video Conferencing with facility of remote e-voting,
subject to notice of the meeting being issued. The quorum of the
meeting of the Equity Shareholders shall be 38 in number or 40% in
value of the Equity Shareholders ;

b. The meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Applicant Company
No.2/Transferee Company be convened as prayed for on 23.07.2023
(Sunday) at 10:00 AM through Video Conferencing with facility of
remote e-voting, subject to notice of the meeting being issued.
Although, the total no. of Secured Creditors is not mentioned in the list
attached as Annexure 10. Therefore, the quorum of the meeting of the
Secured Creditors shall be 40% in value of the Secured Creditors;

c. The meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of the Applicant Company
No.2/Transferee Company be convened as prayed for on 23.07.2023
(Sunday) at 01:00 PM through Video Conferencing with facility of
remote e-voting, subject to notice of the meeting being issued.
Although, the total no. of Unsecured Creditors is not mentioned in the

list attached as Annexure 10. The quorum of the meeting of the

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)
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Unsecured Creditors shall be 40% in value of the Unsecured

Page 9 of 12

Creditors;

lll. In case the required quorum as noted above for the meetings is not present
at the commencement of the meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned by 30
minutes and thereafter the persons present and voting shall be deemed to

constitute the quorum.

IV. Mr Raghu Nayyar, Former Member (Technical) NCLT, Chairperson,
address: A45 Retreat Apartments, Plot No. 20, IP Extension, New Delhi -

110092, Mobile No. 9811066745, Email id: raghunayyar@yahoo.com is

appointed as the Chairperson for the meetings to be called under this order.
An amount of ¥ 2,00,000/- (Rupees Two lakhs Only) be paid for his services

as the Chairperson.

V. Ms.Ekakshra Mandhar, Advocate, address: House Number-1081,
Sector-8,Chandigarh, Mobile No. 9814166666, e-mail id:
Ekakshra@amcpro.in, is appointed as the Alternate Chairperson for the
meetings to be called under this order. An amount of ¥1,25,000/- (Rupees
One Lakh Twenty Five Thousand Only) be paid for her services as the

Alternate Chairperson.

VI. Mr. Salil Yadav,Chartered Accountant, address: SCO 13 (2nd Floor)
Industrial Area, Phase-9, Mohali-160062, Mobile No.7814036887, email id:
casalilyadav@gmail.com, is appointed as the Scrutinizer for the above
meetings to be called under this order. An amount of ¥1,00,000/- (Rupees

One Lakh Only) be paid for his services as the Scrutinizer.

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)


mailto:raghunayyar@yahoo.com

34

VII. The fee of the Chairperson, Alternate Chairperson and Scrutinizer and other

Page 10 of 12

out-of-pocket expenses for them shall be borne by Applicant Company
jointly. It is further directed that along with the notices, Applicant Companies
shall also send, statements explaining the effect of the scheme on the
creditors, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-promoter
members, etc. along with the effect of the scheme of amalgamation on any
material interests of the Directors of the Company or the debenture trustees

if any, as provided under sub-section (3) of Section 230 of the Act.

VIll. It is also directed that the Provisional Account statements of Applicant
Companies as on 31.12.2022 or as on a subsequent date be also circulated

for the aforesaid meeting(s) in terms of Section 232 (2) (e) of the Act.

IX. That the Applicant Companies shall publish an advertisement with a gap of
at least 30 clear days before the aforesaid meeting, indicating the day, date
and place and time of the meeting as aforesaid, to be published in
‘Financial Express” (English) and “Jansatta” (Hindi), both in Delhi NCR
Edition. The publication shall also indicate that the explanatory statement
required to be furnished pursuant to Sections 230 & 232 read with Section
102 of the Companies Act, 2019 can be obtained free of charge at the
registered office of the Applicant Companies. Applicant Companies shall

also publish the notice on its website if any.

X. Voting shall be allowed on the “Scheme” through electronic means which
will remain open for a period as mandated under Clause 8.3 of Secretarial
Standards on General Meetings to the Applicant Companies under the Act

and the Rules framed thereunder.

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)
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Xl. The Scrutinizer’s report will contain his/her findings on compliance to the

Page 11 of 12

directions given in Para VIll to X above.

Xll. The Chairperson shall be responsible to report the result of the meeting to
the Tribunal in Form No. CAA-4, as per Rule 14 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 within 7
(seven) days of the conclusion of the meeting. The Chairperson would be
fully assisted by the authorized representative/Company Secretary of the
Applicant Companies and the Alternate Chairperson. The Scrutinizer will
assist the Hon’ble Chairperson and Alternate Chairperson in preparing and

finalizing the report.

Xlll. The Applicant Companies shall individually and in compliance with
sub-section (5) of Section 230 of the Act and Rule 8 of Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 send
notices in Form No. CAA-3 along with copy of the Scheme, Explanatory
Statement and the disclosures mentioned in Rule 6 of the “Rules” to (i)
Central Government through the Regional Director (Northern Region),
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, New Delhi; (ii) Jurisdictional Registrar of
Companies; (iii) the Official Liquidator; (iv) Income Tax Department through
the Nodal Officer — Principal Commissioner of Income Tax, NWR, Aayakar
Bhawan, Sector 17-E, Chandigarh mentioning the PAN number of the
Applicant Companies; and to such other Sectoral Regulator(s) governing
the business of the Applicant Companies, if any, stating that report on the
same, if any, shall be sent to this Tribunal within a period of 30 days from

the date of receipt of such notice and copy of such report shall be

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)
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simultaneously sent to the applicant companies, failing which it shall be
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presumed that they have no objection to the proposed Scheme.

XIV. The Applicant Companies shall furnish a copy of the Scheme free of charge
within one day of any requisition for the Scheme made by any creditor or

member/shareholder entitled to attend the meeting as aforesaid.

XV. The authorized representative of Applicant Companies shall furnish an
affidavit of service of notice of meeting and publication of advertisement and
compliance of all directions contained herein at least a week before the

proposed meeting.

XVI. All the aforesaid directions are to be complied with strictly in accordance
with the applicable laws including forms and formats contained in the Rules
as well as the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 by the Applicant

Companies

18.  With the aforesaid directions, this First Motion Application is allowed with
liberty to Applicant Companies to file Second Motion Petition. A copy of this order
be supplied to the learned counsel for the Applicant Company who in turn shall
supply a copy of the same to the Chairperson, Alternate Chairperson and the

Scrutinizer immediately.

Sd/- Sd/-
(Subrata Kumar Dash) (Harnam Singh Thakur)
Member (Technical) Member (Judicial)
May 30, 2023
SA/VN

CA (CAA) No. 10/Chd/Hry/2023
(1%t Motion)



SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

ANNEXURE 1 37

BETWEEN

MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED
AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

THEIR RESPECTIVE CREDITORS

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
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L PREAMBLE

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Transferor Company”) is a pri'38
limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 on 27% September 2018, bearing
CIN U15490HR2018PTC076091, and having its registered office presently at Plot No-321, Udyog
Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20, Gurgaon - 122016, India, that is engaged inter alia in the business_ of
creating naturally Jeavened sourdough breads and baked goods of the finest quality in (i) Delhi-
NCR, (ii} Kolkata, and (iii} Mumbai.

MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED (the “Transferee Company”) is a private
limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 26t September 2012, bearing
CIN U15492HR2012PTC047234, and having its registered office presently at D-173, Sushant Lok,
Gurgaon - 122002, India, that is engaged inter alia in manufacturing, processing, distributing,
marketing and selling goods related to specialty food and beverage products, including, but not
limited to coffee products (beverages, roasted beans, coffee powder and coffee products), chocolate
products and mushrooms, and providing services such as saleable drinks in a kiosk format or via
delivery for personal and commercial use, and any other business that may be conducted from time
to time, throughout India and overseas.

The Amalgamation pursuant to this Scheme shall take place with effect from the Appointed Date
and shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Boards of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company believe that it
will be mutually beneficial for the Transferor Company to merge into the Transferee Company as
their businesses are complementary to each other and the Amalgamation will help them rationalize
various functions. To this effect the Transferor Company, Transferee Company and Transferor

Members have entered into an Amalgamation Framework Agreement dated January 11, 2023
("AMA").

Considering the above factors, this scheme of arrangement (“the Scheme”) is presented under
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the Act (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment or amendment thereof} as an integrated Scheme which provides for:

(a}) Amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company without winding
up, and '

(b) Reorganization of the share capital of Transferee Company,

so as to become effective upon the Scheme being sanctioned by the Tribunal (s defined hereafler),

Upon completion of the said Amalgamation, the Transferee Company would inter-alia carry on the
business of the Transferor Company.




IL RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME
The Board of Directors of both the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have considered t§ 9
the Scheme involving amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company and

. reorganization of share capital of the Transferee Company would inter-alia have the following benefits:

(@) The Amalgamation is expected to achieve cost savings from more focused operational efforts,
rationalization and standardization of business processes by way of consolidation.

(b) The Amalgamation is expected to achieve business synergies and is expected to enable carrying on
the businesses more economically.

© The Amalgamation is intended to rationalize the business operations and activities, to utilize the
potential for growth and diversification and for better optimization of costs and resources.

(d) The Amalgamation would result in consolidation to enable better and more efficient management,
and more opportunities to vigorously pursue growth and expansion.

[Intentionally left blank]




III, DETAILS OF THE SCHEME
The Scheme is divided into the following parts: 40
Part A - Dealing with definitions and capital structure;

Part B - Dealing with the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company (Suchalis Confectionery
Private Limited) with the Transferee Company (Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited); and

Part C - General Terms and Conditions.

[Intentionatly left blank]




PART A 4 1
DEFINITIONS AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

1. DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the following expressions shall have the
following meaning:

.1.01 " Act” ‘means the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules and regulations made thereunder and shall
- include any statutory modifications, re-enactment or amendment thereof.

102  “Amalgamation” means the amalgamation of Transferor Company into Transferee Company in
accordance with this Scheme and in accordance with Section 2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

103 ”Appointed Date” means April 01, 2022 or such other date as may be modified, upon mutual
considerations and acceptance, by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, and / or being such date as may be approved by the Tribunal.

1.04  “Board of Directors” in relation to each of the Transferor Company and Transferee Company, as
the case may be, means the board of directors of the relevant company.

105 “Consideration Shares” means such number of Equity Shares being issued to the Transferor
Members as consideration for the Amalgamation as set out in detail in Clause 17.

1.06  “Effective Date” shall be the date on which a certified copy of the order sanctioning the Scheme
passed by the Tribunal is filed with the Registrar of Companies.

107  “Equity Shares” means the equity shares of the Transferee Company having a face value of INR

10/ - (Indian Rupees Ten) each.
1.08  “Fully Diluted Basis” shall mean the basis of calculation of share capital assuming deemed
conversion of any share, secutity, or other convertible instrument into Equity Shares in accordance

with the provisions of applicable Law and in accordance with the terms of issue of such share,
security, note, option, warrant, or instrument as of the relevant date.

109  “Governmental Authority” means: (a) any national or state government or any entity exercising

executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory or administrative functions of or pertaining to
government, (b) any public international organisation, or other political subdivision or other
government, governmental, regulatory or administrative authority, agency, board, bureau,
department, instrumentality or commission or any court, tribunal, judicial or arbitral body of
competent jurisdiction or stock exchange, (c) any agency, division, bureau, department or other
sector of any government, entity or organisation described in the foregoing sub clause (a) or (b) of
this definition, or (d) any company, business, enterprise or other entity owned or controlled by any
government, entity, organisation described in the foregoing clauses (a), (b) or (c) of this definition.

110 “INR” or “Rupees” means the lawful currency of the Republic of India. '

111 “Laws” includes (but is not limited to) all applicable:

a. statutes, enactments, acts of legislature or parliament, laws, ordinances, rules, by-laws,
regulations, listing agreements, notifications, guidelines, circulars, schemes or policies of
any applicable country and/or jurisdiction;

b. administrative interpretation, writ, injunction, directions, directives, judgment, arbitral
award, decree, orders or governmental approvals of, or agreements with, any
Governmental Authority; and

c.

international treaties, conventions and protocols; as may be in force from time to time.




1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16
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1.18

[ A
partnership (whether limited or unlimited), proprietorship, Hindu undivided family, trust, union,
association, society, co-operative society, government or any agency or political subd1v1412
thereof or any other entity that may be treated as a Person under the applicable Laws.

“Record Date” means a date to be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company,
being a date post sanction of the Scheme but before the Effective Date, and which shall thereafter
be intimated to the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company. The Record Date shall be a date
no later than 7 (Seven) days following the sanction of the Scheme.

“Registrar of Companies” or “RoC” means the registrar of companies, Delhi.
“Sanction of the Scheme” means the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme.

“Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” means this scheme of arrangement in its present
form or with any modification(s) made under Clause 24 of this Scheme as approved or directed by
the Tribunal or any other appropriate authority.

“Taxes” means and includes without limitation all taxes (Indian, and where applicable, non-
Indian), including income tax, dividend distribution tax, minimum alternate tax, capital gains tax,
fringe benefit tax, equalization levy, sales tax, GST, value added tax, excise duty (including,
without limitation, central and state excise), customs duty, local body tax, octroi, entry tax, wealth
tax, gift tax, stamp duty, any tax in relation to collection, gains, franchise, property (whether
immovable or movable), use, employment, license, imposts, payroll, occupation, transfer taxes,
governmental charges, fees, charges, deductions or withholdings by whatever name they are called
in the nature of tax, levies, statutory gratuity and provident fund payments or other employment
benefit plan contributions and similar charges of any jurisdiction and shall include any interest,
fines, penalties related thereto and, with respect to such taxes, any estimated tax, penalties and
interest on such penalties, “Tax” and “Taxation” shall be construed accordingly.

“Transferor Company Undertaking” means all the undertakings and entire business of the
Transferor Company as a going concern, including all assets and liabilities and without limitation:

(i) all the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or intangible, real or
personal, in possession or reversion, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or contingent of
whatsoever nature) of the Transferor Company, without limitation, all capital work-in-
progress, furniture, fixtures, office equipment, computers, machines, appliances, accessories,
power lines, stocks, current assets (including inventories, sundry debtors, bills of exchange,
loans and advances), investments of all kinds (including shares, scrips, stocks, bonds,
debenture stocks, units or pass through certificates), cash and bank accounts (including bank
balances), contingent rights or benefits, benefits of any deposits, earnest monies, receivables,
advances or deposits paid by or deemed to have been paid by the Transferor Company,
financial assets, benefit of any bank guarantees, performance guarantees and letters of credit,
leases (including lease rights), rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email,
internet, leased line connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other services,
reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties or other interest held in trust,
registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements of all kind, privileges and all other rights,
liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated belonging to or in the
ownership, power or possession and in the control of or vested in.or granted in favour of or
enjoyed by the Transferor Company or in connection with or relating to the Transferor
Company and all other interests of whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership, power,
possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the benefit of or
enjoyed by the Transferor Company, whether in India or abroad;

(i) all debts, borrowings, obligations, duties and liabilities, both present and future (including
deferred tax liabilities, contingent liabilities and the liabilities and obligations under any
licenses or permits or schemes) of every kind, nature and description whatsoever and
howsoever arising, raised or incurred or utilized, whether secured or unsecured, whether in
Rupees or foreign currency, whether provided for or noti
in the balance sheet of the Transferor




(iii) all permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, industrial and other licences, bids, tenders, letterf43
intent, expressions of interest, development rights (whether vested or potential and whe
under agreements or otherwise), municipal permissions, approvals, consents, subsidies,
privileges, income tax benefits and exemptions in respect of the profits of the undertakings of
the Transferor Company for the residual period, ie., for the period remaining as on the
Appointed Date out of the total period for which the benefit or exemption is available in Law
 if the Amalgamation pursuant to this Scheme does not take place;

(iv) all trade and service names and marks, formula, recipe, patents, copyrighis, designs and other
intellectual property rights of any nature whatsoever, technologies, software, books, records,
files, papers, engineering and process information, software licenses {(whether proprietary or
otherwise), drawings, computer programmes, manuals, data, catalogues, quotations, sales and
advertising material, lists of present and former customers and suppliers, other customer
information, customer credit information, customer pricing information and all other records
and documents, whether in physical or electronic form relating to business activities and
operations of the Transferor Company; and

(v) all employees engaged by the Transferor Company as on the Effective Date.

1.19  “Transferor Members” is a collective reference to Mrs. Suchali Jain, Mrs. Mitali Singh and White
Whale Venture Fund.

120  “Tribunal” means, the Honourable National Company Law Tribunal located at Chandigarh, India.

121  The words or expressions elsewhere defined in the Scheme will have the meaning(s) respectively
ascribed thereto. The words or expressions not defined in this Scheme, unless repugnant or
contrary to the context or meaning hereof, have the meaning ascribed to them under the articles of
association of the Transferor Company or Transferee Company, as the case may be, or the Act,

and/or other applicable Laws, rules, regulations, bye-laws, as the case may be, or any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof from time to time.

122  Any reference in this Scheme to the words “upon the Scheme becoming effective” or “effectiveness
of this Scheme” or “date of coming into effect of the Scheme” or “Scheme coming into effect” shall

mean the Effective Date.

2, SHARE CAPITAL

201  The Share Capital structure of the Transferor Company as on January 27, 2023 is as follows:

Particulars Amount (in INR)
Authorised
15,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each; INR 1,50,000/-

Issued, subscribed

+10,142 equity shares of INR 10/- each INR 1,01,420/-
Paid up
10,142 equity shares of INR 10/- each INR 1,01,420/-

2.02  The Share Capital structure of the Transferee Company as on February 13, 2023 is as follows:

Particulars

Cihuha,

e




301

Authorised _

2,20,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each;
50,000 preference shares of INR 10/- each;
25,000 preference shares of INR 1000/~ each

INR 2,77,00,000/-

Issued, subscribed

15,766 equity shares of INK 10/- each
16,960 preference shares of INR 10/- each
9,799 preference shares of INR 1000/~ each

Paid up

15,766 equity shares of INR 10/- each
16,960 preference shares of INR 10/- each
9,300 preference shares of INR 1000/- each

INR 1,01,26,260/ -

INR 96,27,260/ -

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND EFFECTIVE DATE

[Intentionally left blank]

44

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) and amendment(s) made

under Clause 24 of the Scheme shall be effective from the Appointed Date but shall be operative
from the Effective Date.



PART B

AMALGAMATION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY (SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVA:S
LIMITED) INTO TRANSFEREE COMPANY (MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED}

4, The Amalgamation under this Scheme will be effected under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
of the Act. The Amalgamation complies with the provisions of Section 2(1B) of the Income-tax Act,
1961 such that as on Effective Date: '

a) | all the property / assets of the Transferor Company before the Amalgamation becomes the
property of Transferee Company by virtue of the Amalgamation;

. b) all the liabilities of Transferor Company before the Amalgamation become the liabilities of
Transferee Company by virtue of the Amalgamation; and
) shareholders in the Transferor Company become shareholders of the Transferee Company

by virtue of the Amalgamation as provided for in this Scheme in the manner set out herein.

5. BOARD APPROVAL

501 The Scheme for the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company was
approved and recommended by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company at their meeting
held on January 02, 2023, and a decision was taken to file the application before the Tribunal, for
obtaining the necessary orders under Section 230-232 of the Act. The copy of such resolution passed
by the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company dated January 02, 2023, approving this
Scheme of Amalgamation is annexed and marked as Annexure- 1"

502  The Scheme for the Amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company was
approved and recommended by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company at their meeting
held on December 20, 2022, and a decision was taken to file the application before the Tribunal, for
obtaining the necessary orders under Section 230-232 of the Act. The copy of the resolution passed

by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company dated December 20, 2022, approving this
Scheme of Amalgamation is attached and marked as Annexure-‘2’.

6. TRANSEFER OF ASSETS

6.01  Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Tribunal
and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Act, all assets of the Transferor Company Undertaking shall be and stand vested in or
be deemed to have been vested in the Transferee Company, as a going concern without any further
act, instrument, deed, matter or thing so as to become, as and from the Appointed Date, the
undertaking of the Transferee Company by virtue of and in the manner provided in this Scherme.

6.02 The ftransfer and vesting as aforesaid shall be subject to the existing charges/

hypothecation/mortgages, if any, as may be subsisting and agreed to be created over or in respect

of the said assets or any part thereof, provided however, any reference in any security documents
or arrangements to which the Transferor Company is a party wherein the assets of the Transferor

Company have been or are offered or agreed to be offered as security for any financial assistance

or obligations shall be construed as reference only to the assets pertaining to the Transferor

Company and vested in the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme to the end and intent

that the charges shall not extend or deemed to extend to any assets of the Transferee Company.

6.03  Provided that the Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for the said labilities of the

Transferor Company which shall vest in the Transferee Company by virtue of the Scheme and the

Transferee Company shall not be obliged to create any further, or additional security thereof after

the Effective Date or otherwise. The transfer/vesting of the assets of the Transferor Company as

aforesaid shall be subject to the existing charges/hypothecation/ mortgages over or in respect of
the assets or any part thereof of the Transferor Company.

7. TRANSFER OF LIABILITIES




7.01

7.02

7.03

3.01

8.02

3.01

9.02

10.

10.01

With effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, trade payables,
duties and obligations of the Transferor Company shall also, without any further act, instru

or deed be transferred to and vested in and assumed by and/or deemed to be transferred to
vested in and assumed by the Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to
232 of the Act, S0 as to become the Habilities of the Transferee Company and further that it shall
not be necessary to intimate or obtain the consent of any third party or other person who is a party”
to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such Habilities have arisen, in order to give effect
to the provisions of this Clause.

Where any such debts, loans raised, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company
as on the Appointed Date have been discharged or satisfied by the Transferor Company after the
Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge or satisfaction shall be deemed to
be for and on account of the Transferee Company.

All loans raised and utilized and all Liabilities, duties and obligations incurred or undertaken by
the Transferor Company in the ordinary course of business after the Appointed Date and prior to
the Effective Date shall be deemed to have been raised, incurred or undertaken for and on behalf
of the Transferee Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall, upon
coming into effect of this Scheme and in terms of the provisions of the Act, without any further
act, instrument or deed be and stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and shall become the loans and liabilities,

duties and obligations of the Transferee Company which shall meet, discharge and satisfy the
same. '

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All the legal proceedings of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor Company pending
and/or arising at or after the Appointed Date with respect to its properties, assets, debts, liabilities,

- duties and obligations, shall be continued and/or enforced (as applicable) until the Effective Date

against the Transferor Company only. From the Effective Date, such proceeding shall be continued

and enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the manner and to the same extent as would
or might have been continued and enforced by or against the Transferor Company.

In case of any litigation, suits, recovery proceedings which are to be initiated or may be initiated
against the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date, the Transferee Company shall be made

party thereto and any payment and expenses made thereto shall be the liability of the Transferee
Company after the Appointed Date.

'APPOINTED DATE

All debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company, as on
the Appointed Date, whether provided for or not in the books of accounts of the Transferor
Company and all other liabilities which may accrue or arise after the Appointed Date but which
relates to the period on or up to the day of the Appointed Date shall be the debts, liabilities, duties
and obligations of the Transferee Company including any encumbrance on the assets of the
Transferor Company or on any income earned from those assets.

The Scheme does not cause any prejudice to the creditors of the Transferee Company. Further, the
creditors of the Transferee Company are also in no way affected as there is no reduction in the
amount payable to any of the creditors, no compromise or arrangement is contemplated with the
creditors and there is no significant reduction in the security, which the creditors may have in the
Transferee Company. Further, the proposed Scheme would not in any way adversely affect the
ordinary operations of the Transferee Company or the ability of the Transferee Company to honor
its commitments or to pay its debts in the ordinary course of business.

TRANSFER OF EMPLOYEES




such terms and conditions as provided in the employment agreements to be executed with the
Transferee Company, without any interruption of service as a result of the Amalgamation. 47

10.02  The Transferor Company further agrees that for the purpose of payment of any retirement
benefit/compensation, such immediate uninterrupted past services with the Transferor Company
shall also be taken into account.

1003  Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the accounts of the employees, who are employed by the
Transferor Company, relating to the provident fund, employee state insurance, gratuity fund and
pension and/or superannuation fund and any other fund for the benefit of the employees of the
Transferor Company, shall be identified, determined and transferred to the respective funds of the
Transferee Company and the employees shall be deemed to have become members of such trusts/
funds of the Transferee Company.

11. STATUTORY LICENSES, PERMISSIONS, APPROVALS

11.01  With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Effective Date, all statutory licences, patents,
permissions, approvals, copyrights, trademarks, authorisations or consents to carry on the
operations and business of the Transferor Company shall stand vested in or transferred to the
Transferee Company without any further act or deed and shall be appropriately mutated by the
statutory authorities concerned in favour of the Transferee Company. The benefit of all statutory
and regulatory permissions, environmental approvals and consents, patents, authorisations,
registrations or other licences and consents shall vest in and become available to the Transferee
Company pursuant to this Scheme. In so far as the various incentives, subsidies, rehabilitation
schemes, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by any government body,
local authority or by any other person, or availed of by the Transferor Company, are concerned,

the same shall vest with and be available to the Transferee Company on the same terms and
conditions.

12, CONTRACTS, DEEDS, ETC.

12.01  Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, memorandum of
understandings, non-disclosure agreements, response to request for proposal or request for
‘information, insurance, letters of intent, agreements, arrangements and other instruments, if any,
of whatsoever nature relating to which the Transferor Company is a party or to the benefit of which

the Transferor Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect immediately
before the Effective Date, shall be in full force and effect against or in favour of the Transferee
Company, as the case may be, and may be enforced by or against the Transferee Company as fully
and eventually as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a party
thereto. The Transferee Company shall enter into and/or issue and /or execute deeds, writings or
confirmations or enter into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations or novations, to which the
Transferor Company will, if necessary, also be party in order to give formal effect to the provisions
of this Scheme, if so required. Further, the Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorized
to execute any such deeds, writings or confirmations on behalf of the Transferor Company and to
implement or carry out all formalities required on the part of the Transferor Company to give effect
to the provisions of this Scheme. The Transferee Company shall, under the provisions of this
Scheme, be deemed to be authorised to execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor

Company and to carry out or perform all such formalities or cordpliances referred to above on the
part of the Transferor Company to be carried out or performed.

12.02  For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarified
that upon the Amalgamation coming into effect on the Effective Date, all consents, permissions,
licenses, certificates, clearances, authorities, powers of attorney given by, issued to or executed in
favour of the Transferor Company in relation to the Transferor Company Undertaking shall stand
transferred to the Transferee Company as if the same were originally given by, issued to or
executed in favour of the Transferee Company, and the Transferee Company shall be bound by the

terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same
shall be available to the Transferee Company. The Transferee Compan

relevant Governmental Authority as ma b5 F@Ee;ssary in this regs

11



13.  TAX 48

13.01  All taxes payable by the Transferor Company and the benefits/ credits of taxes available to the
Transferor Company, upto the Appointed Date, including all or any refunds and claims shall, for
all purposes, be treated as the tax liabilities or refunds and claims of the Transferee_Company.

13.02 Upon the Effective Date, the Transferee Company is expressly permitted to revise its income tax
returns, carry forward losses from the Transferor Company and to claim refunds, advance tax and
withholding tax credits, etc., pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme and the Income Tax Act,
1961 and any amendments thereto.

1303 Upon the Effective Date, the Transferee Company is also expressly permitted to claim
' refunds/credits on account of income-tax, Goods & Service Tax (GST) and other taxes in
accordance with the rules prescribed in the relevant legislations.

13.04  All taxes paid or payable by the Transferor Company in respect of the operations and/or the profits
of the business on and from the Appointed Date, shall be on account of the Transferee Company
and, insofar as it relates to the payment of such taxes, whether by way of deduction/ collection at
source, advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by the Transferor Company in respect of the profits
or activities or operation of the business on and from the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed
to be the corresponding item paid by the Transferee Company, and shall, in all proceedings, be
dealt with accordingly. The relevant authorities shall be bound to transfer to the account of and
give credit for the same to the Transferee Company upon the passing of the orders on this Scheme
by the Tribunal upon relevant proof and documents being provided to the said authorities.

13.05 The Transferee Company shall be entitled to claim and be allowed credit or benefits of all tax
deduction certificates, advance tax, self-assessment tax or other tax payments, credits or drawbacks

~ or any other credit or benefit of any tax, duty, cenvat, GST, incentive etc. relating to the Transferor
Company, notwithstanding that such certificates or challans or any other documents for tax
payments or credits/benefits etc. may have been issued or made in the name of the Transferor
Company. Such credit/ benefit shall be allowed without any further act or deed by the Transferee
Company or the need for any endorsements on such certificates, challans, documents etc, to be
done by the issuers or any authority. Further any taxes paid, and taxes deducted at source and
deposited by the Transferee Company on inter se transactions during the period between the
Appointed Date and the Effective Date shall be treated as advance tax paid by the Transferee
Company and shall be available to the Transferee Company for set-oft against its liability under

the Income Tax Act, 1961 and excess tax so paid shall be eligible for refund together with applicable
Interest,

13.06 Upon the Scheme coming into effect, all deductions related to Taxes otherwise admissible to
Transferor Company including payment admissible on actual payment or on deduction of
appropriate Taxes or on payment of tax deducted at source (such as under Section 43B, Section 40,
Section 40A, etc. of the Income Tax Act, 1961) shall be eligible for deduction to the Transferee
Company upon fulfilment of the required conditions under applicable Tax Law.

13.07

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, any Tax Deducted at Source (“TDS”) deposited, TDS
certificates issued, or TDS returns filed by the Transferor Company shall continue to hold good as
if such TDS amounts were deposited, TDS certificates were issued, and TDS returns were filed by
the Transferee Company. Any TDS deducted by, or on behalf of the Transferor Company on inter
se transactions will be treated as advance tax deposited by the Transferee Company.

13.08

Any refund under the Tax Laws due to the Transferor Company consequent to the assessments
made on Transferor Company and for which no credit is taken in the accounts as on the date
immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall also belong to and be received by the Transferee
Company. The relevant authorities shall be bound to transfer to the account of and give credit for
the same to Transferee Company upon the passing of the orders on this Scheme by the Tribunal

12




13.09 Since each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, remissions, special reservatons,
goods and service fax exemptions, incentives, concessions and other authorizations of ig
Transferor Company shall stand transferred by the order of the Tribunal to the Transfe
Company, the Transferee Company shall file the relevant intimations, for the record of the
statutory/ tax authorities who shall take them on file, pursuant to Tribunals vesting orders.

1310  All Tax assessment proceedings / appeals of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor
Company pending and/ or arising at the Appointed Date shall be continuted and/ or enforced until
the Effective Date as desired by the Transferor Company. As and from the Effective Date, the Tax
proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same
manner and to the same extent as would or might have been continued and enforced by or against
the Transferor Company. Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall neither abate or be
discontinued nor be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company or anything contained in the Scheme.

1311 This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to “Amalgamation” as
specified under the tax Laws, including section 2(1B) and other relevant sections of the Income Tax
Act, 1961. If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are found to be or interpreted to be inconsistent
with any of the said provisions at a later date, whether as a result of any amendment of law or any
judicial ot executive interpretation or for any other reason whatsoever, the aforesaid provisions of
the tax laws shall prevail. The Scheme shall then stand modified to the extent determined necessary
to comply with the said provisions. Such modification will however not affect other parts of the
Scheme. The power to make such amendments as may become necessary shall vest with the Board
of Directors of the Transferor Company and / or the Transferee Company, as the case may be,
which power shall be exercised reasonably in the best interests of the companies concerned.

1312  Without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits including under applicable Tax Laws
including with respect to income tax, GST, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, service tax, VAT,
efc., to which the Transferor Company is entitled to in terms of the applicable Tax Laws of the
Union and State Governments, shall be available to and vest in the Transferee Company.

14, CONDUCT OF BUSINESS UNTIL EFFECTIVE DATE
14.01  With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

(a) The Transferor Company shall carry on and be deemed to have been carrying on its
business and activities and shall stand possessed of and hold all of its properties and assets
for and on account of and in trust for the Transferee Company. The Transferor Company

hereby undertakes to carry on its business and activities and hold the said assets with
utmost prudence until the Effective Date. '

(b) The Transferor Company shall carry on its business and activities with reasonable
diligence, business prudence and shall not without the prior written consent of the
Transferee Company, obtain any loans from third parties, alienate, charge, mortgage,
encumber or otherwise deal with or dispose of its undertaking or any part thereof nor shall
it undertake any new business or a substantial expansion of its existing business.

(<) Without prejudice to the generality of the sub clauses (a)} and (b) above, the Transferor
Company shall not make any change in its capital structure, whether by way of increase
(by issue of equity shares on a rights basis, bonus shares) decrease, reduction,
reclassification, sub-division or consolidation, re-organisation, or in any other manner,
except under either of the following circumstances:

A. by mutual consent of the respective Board of Directors of the Transferee Company

and of the Transferor Company; or

B.  asmay be expressljr permitted under this Scheme.

@
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Date shall for all purposes and intents be treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the’
profits or incomes or expenditure or losses of the Transferee Company. 5 0

(e) All taxes (including income tax, sales tax, excise duty, customs duty, GST, VAT, efc.) 'paid
or payable by the Transferor Company in respect of the operations and/or the profits of
the business before the Appointed Date, shall be on account of the Transferor Company
and, insofar as it relates to the tax payment (including, without limitation, sales tax, excise
duty, custom duty, income tax, GST, VAT, etc.), whether by way of deduction at source,
advance tax or otherwise howsoever, by the Transferor Company in respect of the profits
or activities or operation of its business after the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed.
to be the corresponding item paid by the Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings,
be dealt with accordingly.

1) Any of the rights, powers, authorities and privileges attached or related or pertaining fo
and exercised by or available to the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been
exercised by the Transferor Company for and on behalf of and as agent for the Transferee
Company. Similarly, any of the obligations, duties and commitments attached, related or
pertaining to the Transferor Company Undertaking undertaken or discharged by the
Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been undertaken or discharged for and on
behalf of and as agent for the Transferee Company.

®) The Transferor Company shall not vary the terms and conditions of employment of any of

the employees except in the ordinary course of business or without the prior written
consent of the Transferee Company.

1)) The Transferee Company shall, pending the sanction of the Scheme, apply to the relevant
Governmental Authorities, for such consents, approvals, registration and sanctions, which
the Transferee Company may require pursuant to this Scheme.

'15. INTER - SE TRANSACTIONS

Without prejudice to the provisions of Clauses 4, 6 and 7, with effect from the Appointed Date, all
inter-party transactions between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be
considered as intra-party transactions for all purposes from the Appointed Date.

16. SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS
1601 The transfer and vesting of undertaking under Clause 6 and Clause 7 of this Scheme and the
continuance of proceedings by or against the Transferor Company under Clause 8 of this Scheme
shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already concluded by the Transferor Company on
or before the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee

Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Transferor
Company in respect thereto as done and executed on behalf of itself. '

17, CONSIDERATION

17.01 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to and in consideration of the transfer and

vesting of the Transferor Company Undertaking in the Transferee Company in terms of this
Scheme, the Transferee Company on the basis of valuation reports dated 17-12-2022 prepared by
Mr. Subodh Kumar an Independent Registered Valuer, registered with IBBI vide Registration
No.IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705, having his office at First Floor, 12/14, Dhakka, Near Kingsway
Camp, Delhi-400006, India shall, without any further application, act, instrument or deed issue and
allot to each of the Transferor Members, whose name is registered in the register of members of the
Transferor Company on the Record Date, shares in the Transferee Company as follows:

For 2.426 shares of the Transferor Company, the Transferor Member shall be issued 1 (One) Equity Share of
the Transferee Company. :




Diluted Basis, shall stand increased by 267 (two hundred and sixty-seven), to accommodate the
employee stock option pool of the Transferor Company. 5 1

17.02 Upon the Amalgamation coming into effect on the Effective Date, the Consideration Shares of the
Transferee Company to be issued and allotted to the members of the Transferor Company as
provided in the Scheme shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum of association and
articles of association of the Transferee Company.

17.03 Pursuant to the Scheme, the shares of the Transferor Company held by its equity shareholders
(both in physical and dematerialized form), shall, without any further application, act, instrument
or deed, be deemed to have been automatically cancelled. The said equity shares of Transferor -
Company held in physical form shall be deemed to have been automatically cancelled without any

requirement to surrender the certificates for shares held by the shareholders of the Transferor
Company.

1704 No fractional certificates, entitlements or credits shall be issued or given by the Transferee
Company in respect of the fractional entitlements, if any, to which the shareholders of the
Transferor Company are entitled on the issue and allotment of Equity shares by the Transferee
Company in.accordance with this Scheme. If any members of the Transferor Company have a

- shareholding such that such members become entitled to a fraction of a Consideration Shares, the
Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall consolidate all such fractional entitlements to
which the shareholders of the Transferor Company may be entitled on issue and allotment of the
equity shares of the Transferee Company as aforesaid and shall, without any further application,
act, instrument or deed, issue and allot such fractional entitlements directly to a nominee to be
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company, who shall hold such fractional
entitlements with all additions or accretions thereto in trust for the benefit of the respective
shareholders to whom they belong and their respective heirs, executors, administrators or
successors for the specific purpose of selling such fractional entitlements in the market at such price
or prices and at such time or times as the nominee may in its sole discretion decide and on such
sale pay to the Transferee Company, the net sale proceeds thereof and any additions and accretions,
whereupon the Transferee Company shall, subject to withholding tax and expenses, if any,
distribute such sale proceeds to the concerned shareholders of the Transferor Company in
proportion to their respective fractional entitlements.

1705 In the event of any reorganisation or restructuring of equity share capital of the Transferee

Company by way of share split/ consolidation/ issue of bonus shares, free distribution of shares
or instruments convertible into equity shares in relation to the share capital of the Transferee
Company at any time before the Record Date, the number of Consideration Shares to be issued as
set out above shall be adjusted appropriately to take into account the effect of such issuance or

corporate actions and assuming conversion of any such issued instruments convertible into equity
shares.

18, AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

18.01 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorized share capital of Transferor Company shall

stand combined with the authorized share capital of Transferee Company. Filing fees and stamp
duty, if any, paid by the Transferor Company on its authorized share capital, shall be deemed to
have been so paid by the Transferee Company on the combined authorized Share capital and
accordingly, the Transferee Company shall not be required to pay any fee/stamp duty for its
increased authorized share capital. However, the Transferee Company shall file the requisite forms
and fresh memorandum and articles of association with the Registrar of Companies.

18.02 Consequently, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the words and ﬁ'gures in clause V of the

memorandum of association of the Transferee Company shall be substituted to read as follows:

The Authorized share Capital of the Company is:

Particulars Amount (in INR)

we Coes
elase
S )
)
*

v

15




18.03

18.04

19.
19.01

19.02

11903

19.04

20.

20.01

Authorised

2,35,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each;
50,000 preference shares of INR 10/- each;
25,000 preference shares of INR 1000/ - each

INR 2,78,50,000/- -

The approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of Transferor Company fmd the Transferee
Company under sections 230 to 232 of the Act, whether at a meeting or otherw1fe, shall be deemed
to have the approval under Sections 13, 14, 61, 64 and other applicable provisions of the Act and
any other consents and approvals required in this regard. Further, the Transferee Company shail
file the amended copy of its memorandum and articles of association and requisite documents for
amendment of memorandum and articles of association with the Registrar of Companies and the
Registrar of Companies shall take the same on record.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the
Transferee Company shall stand suitably increased consequent upon the issuance of the
Consideration Shares in accordance with Clause 17 above. It is clarified that no special resolution
under Section 62(1)(c) or 62(1)(b) or 42 of the Act shall be required to be passed by the Transferee
Company separately in a general meeting or offers under Section 62(1)(2) be made separately for
issue of the Consideration Shares to the members of the Transferor Company under this Scheme
and on the shareholders of the Transferee Company approving this Scheme, it shall be deemed that
they have given their consent to the issue of the Consideration Shares of the Transferee Company
to the members of the Transferor Company in accordance with Clause 17 above.

Notwithstanding anything stated in this Scheme, the Transferee Company may at any time alter

its authorised share capital to accommodate any new issuance of securities and/or fund raising,
subject to compliance with provisions of the Act.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

Recognizing that the Amalgamation is to be considered as an “amalgamation in nature of merger”
as defined by paragraph 29 of the Accounting Standard on “Accounting for Amalgamations”
issued under the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 which has been notified through
notification no. G.S.R. 432(E) dated 23rd June, 2021 on Accounting Standards, (“AS-14"), the
accounting treatment in respect of assets, liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company shall
be governed, subject to the provisions of this paragraph, in accordance with what is described in
AS-14 as “the Pooling of Interests Method”. Accordingly, all the assets and liabilities of the

Transferor Company shall be recorded at their respective book values in the books of the Transferee
Company.

As on the Appointed Date, the reserves, surplus and balance in profit & loss account of the
Transferor Company will be merged with the respective reserves, surplus and balance in profit &

loss account of the Transferee Company in the same form as they appeared in the financial
statements of the Transferor Company.

The difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued (plus any additional

consideration in the form of cash or other assets) and the amount of share capital of the Transferor
Company shall be adjusted in reserves.

If, at the time of the Amalgamation, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have
conflicting accounting policies, a uniform set of accounting policies should be adopted following
the Amalgamation. The effects on the financial statements of any changes in accounting policies

should be reported in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 5 ‘Net Profit or Loss for the
Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies’.

DIVIDEND / BONUS ISSUANCE

During the period between the Appointed Date and up to and includ

Transferor Company shall not declare any dividend without

the pri tten consent of the Board
of Directors of the Transferee Com

2



20,02

21.

21.01

For avoidance of doubt, the shareholders of the Transferee Company shall, save as exggg
provided otherwise in this Scheme, continue to enjoy their existing rights under their res \b
articles of association including the right to receive dividends until the Effective Date and nothing

" in this Scheme shall prevent Transferee Company from declaring and paying dividends, whether

interim or final, or issuing any bonus shares to its shareholders as on a Record Date and the equity
shareholders of the Transferor Company shall not be entitled to dividends or bonus shares, if any,
declared or issued by Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY
Upon the Effective Date the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved without being wound up

and the Board of Directors and any committees thereof of the Transferor Company shall without
any further act, instrument or deed be and stand dissolved.

17




PART -C
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 5 4

22, VALIDITY OF EXISTING RESOLUTIONS, ETC.

22.01 Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, the resolutions, if any, of the Transferor Company, which
are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be
considered as resolutions of the Transferee Company and if any such resolutions impose upper
monetary or other limits under the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable provisions, then
the said limits shall be added and shall constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the Transferee
Company. :

23, APPLICATION TO THE TRIBUNAL OR SUCH OTHER COMPETENT AUTHORITY

2301 The registered office of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are located in
Gurgaon, India, The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall, with all reasonable
diligence, make and pursue applications to the Tribunal at Chandigarh or such other authority
having jurisdiction under Law, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act for sanction and carrying out
of the Scheme and for dissolution of the Transferor Company without winding up.

24, MODIFICATION / AMENDMENT TO THE SCHEME

24.01 The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, through their respective Board of Directors
and subject to the terms of their respective articles of association, may make or consent to, on behalf
of all persons concerned, any modifications or amendments to the Scheme or o any conditions or
limitations that the Tribunal or any other authority may deem fit to direct or impose or which may
otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by them (i.e., the Board of Directors)
and solve all difficulties that may arise for carrying out the Scheme and do all acts, deeds and things
necessary for putting the Scheme into effect. Such amendments shall be binding on all the
shareholders of each of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company.

2402 For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modification thereof, the directors of the
Transferee Company may give and are authorised to give such directions including directions for

settling any question of doubt or difficulty that may arise.

25, SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVAL / SANCTIONS

25.01 The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to the following:

{a) The requisite consent, approval or permission of the central government or any other statutory

or regulatory authority, which by Law, may be necessary for the implementation of this
Scheme;

(b) Apprdval by the requisite majority of the members and creditors of Transferor and Transferee
as may be required under applicable Laws; and

(c) The certified copies of the order of the Tribunal sanctioning the Scheme or of such other
authority having jurisdiction under Law being filed with the Registrar of Companies.

26. . EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS / SANCTIONS

26.01 Intheeventof any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in the preceding Clause not being

obtained and/or the Scheme not being sanctioned by the Tribunal or such other competent
authority and/or the order or orders not being passed as aforesaid, the Board of Directors of the
- Transferor Company and the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company shall mutually agree

and decide on the future course of action in relation to the continuity of the Scheme before the
Tribunal. e

18




27.

27.01

27.02

27.03

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

The legal costs associated with the Amalgamation including stamp duty, court fees and any5|t5
cost shall be borne by Transferee Company based on advice secured by it in this regard from its

advisors.

The Transferor Members shall bear their respective direct taxes relating to the issue of the
Consideration Shares that are to be issued to them pursuant to this Scheme.

The Transferor Company and Transferee Company shall bear their respective direct
consultancy/legal fees in connection with the drafting, negotiation and finalisation of the Scheme.

{Intentionally left blank]
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SUCHALI'S

CERTIEIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED (“THE COMPANY") (CIN:
U15490HR2018PTC076091) HELD ON MONDAY, 28P JANUARY, 2023 THROUGH VIDEO
CONFERENCING (MEETING COM_MENCED AT 11.00 AM AND CONCLUDED AT 12.00
P.M)

1. TQO CONSIDER AND APFROVE THE MERGER OF THE COMPANY WITH_THE
MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of Section 230 to 233 of the
Companies Act, 2013,( including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) read with rules and other applicable statutory regulations and subject to
‘applicable provision of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the company and
subject to the approval/no objection of the respective members and creditors of Suchalis
Confectionery Private Limited (“Company”), subject to the approval of Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), the concerned Registrar of Companies, Official
Liquidator, Income Tax Authority and any other statutory autherities having jurisdiction, as
may be necessary and subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or
imposed by Regional Director/ National Company Law Tribunal having jurisdiction or by
any other regulatory/ statutory authority while granting consents, approvals and
permissions which may be agreed by the Board of the Company and other necessary
consents and approvals, the arrangement embodied in the draft Scheme of Amalgamation
(‘Scheme’) concerning amalgamation of the Company into Muhavra Enterprises Private
Limited (“Transferee Company”); as produced at the meeting duly initialed by the
Chairperson for the purpose of identification, be and hereby accepted and approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board took on record the appointed date for the said
Scheme as 1%t April 2022 or such other date as the NCLT having jurisdiction may direct or
approve under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of amalgamation the Company- into the
Trans feree Company, based on the valuation reports dated 17-12-2022 prepared by
Mr. Subodh Kumar an Independent Registered Valuer, registered with IBBl vide

Registration No.IBBI/RV /05/2019/11705, having his office at First Floor, 12/14,
Dhakka, Near

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED
Corporate Office :- 321, Udyog Vihar Phase « Il, Gurugram — 122016
suchalisbakehouse@gmail.com
www,suchalisartisanbakehouse.com
CIN No. - U15490HR2018PTC076091
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AR T Kingsway Camp, Delli-400006, India, being the valuer appointed
- R for the purpose of the Scheme, the following share
s U C H A L I,S exchange/ entitlement ratio be and is hereby approved, subject

BAK- L O-U-5E

to approval of the shareholders of the Company, NCLT and other relevant statutofy
authorities:

For 2.426 shures of the Transferor Company, the Transferor Member shall be issued 1 (One} Equity Share of
the Transferee Company.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provision-of Section 110 and other applicable
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companjes (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, approval of the board be and is hereby accorded to conduct the

meeting to seek the approval of Members and shareholders of the Company for approval of
Scheme.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Ms. Suchali Jain (DIN: 08241627), director of the Company
be and is hereby severally authorised, empowered and deemed to have been authorised and
emnpowered to exercise all powers and discharge all the functions which the board is
authorised for the purpose of implementing the Scheme,

. FURTHER RESOLVED THAT a copy of this resolution be submitted to concerned
authorities duly certified by any Director of the company”.

2, TO AUTHORIZE MS. SUCHALI [AIN {DIN: 08241627) PURSUANT TO MERGER WITH
MUHEAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED.

“RESOLVED THAT Ms. Suchali Jain (DIN: 08241627), director of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its absolute
discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this resolution
and effectively implement the Scheme of Merger and to accept such modifications,
amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or
imposed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), if and when applicable
while sanctioning the Scheme of Merger or by any authorities under law and delegate such
powers as the Board may deem fit and proper or as may be required for the purpose of

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED
Corporate Office :- 321, Udyog Vihar Phase ~ I, Gurugram — 122016
suchalisbakehouse@gmail.com
www.suchalisartisanbakehouse.com
CIN No. - U15490HR2018PTC076091
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(.?'- Sy --‘*“».3 e resolving any questions or doubts or difficulties that may arise
e including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such
s U C H A L l s adjustments in the books of accounts as considered necessary in
giving effect to the Scheme and to engage advocates, consultants,
BA K E -0 U S F attorneys to represent the Company before the regulatory

authorities for the aforesaid purpose, and to do other incidental
acts, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”

Yor Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

Suchali Jain
Director

DIN: 08241627 _
Add: X-125, Tatvam Villas, Sohna Road,

Sector-48, Islampur (97), Gurgaon,
Haryana-122618

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIVIITED
Corporate Office :- 321, Udyog Vihar Phase — il, Gurugram 1220,1
suchalisbakehouse@gmail.com / e
WWW. suchaIlsartisanbakehouse.com : " o
CIN No. - U15490HR2018PTCO76091 | =
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MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
D 173, Sushant Lok, Phase 1, Gurgaon- 122002, Haryana, India
(+91) 9821126015, getcoffee@bluetokaicoffee.com
CIN: U15492HR2012PTC047234

EXTRACT OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED HELD ON FRIDAY,
THE 200 DAY OF DECEMBER, 2022 AT 02:30 P. M. THROUGH VIDEQ CONFERENCING

1. Approval and Consent for the proposed scheme of merger between Muhavra
Enterprises Private Limited (transferor company) with Suchalis Confectionery

Private Limited (transferee company) and their respective shareholders and

creditors;

“RESOLVED- THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of Section 230 to 233 of the
Companies Act, 2013 { including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force)} read with rules and other applicable statutory regulations, pursuant to
applidable provision of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and
subject to the approval of the respective members and creditors of the Muhavra Enterprises
Private Limited (“Company”), subject to the approval of Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal (“NCLT”), the conéerned Registrar of Companiés, Official Liquidator, Income Tax
Authority and any other statutory authorities having jurisdiction, as may be necessary and
subject to such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by NCLT
having jurisdiction or by any other regulatory/ statutory authority while granting consents,
approvals and permissions and other necessary consents and approvals, the arrangement
embodied in the draft Scheme of Amalgamation (‘Scheme’) produced at the meeting duly
initialed by the Chairman for the purpose of identification, be and hereby approved for

merger of the Transferor Company into the Company..

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board took on record the appointed date for the said
Scheme as 01st April 2022 or such other date as the NCLT having jurisdiction may direct or

approve under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of amalgamation the Transferor
Company into the Company, based on the valuation reports dated 17-12-2022 prepared by
Mr, Subodh Kumar an Independent Registered Valuer, registered with IBBI vide
Registration 'No.IBBI/ RV/05/2019/11705, having his office at First Floor, 12/14, Dhakka,
‘Near Kingsway | : )




MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
D 173, Sushant Lok, Phase 1, Gurgaon- 122002, Haryana, India
(+91) 9821126015, getcoffee@bluetokaicoffee.com
CIN: U15492HR2012PTC047234

Camp, Delhi-400006, India, being the valuer appointed for the purpose of the Scheme, the
following share exchange/entitlement ratio be and is hereby approved, subject to approval of
the shareholders of the Company, NCLT and other relevant statutory authorities:

For 2.426 shares of the Transferor Company, the Transferor Member shall be issued 1 (One) Equity Share of the
Transferee Company.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr. Matthew Joseph Chitharanjan (DIN: 06368646), director
of the Cbmpany, be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things
(including but not limited to filing of notice, aioplication, petition, affidavit, documents,
statutory forms, return, etc. with the concerned regulatory and/ or statutory authorities), as
may be, in their absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give
effect to this resolution and effectively implement the érrangement embodied in the Scheme
and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, which
may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT having jurisdiction while sanctioning the
arr'anggment embodied in the Scheme or by any authorities under law, or as may be required
for the purpose of resolving any ;:luestions or doubts or difficulties that may arise including
passing of such accounﬁng entries and/or making such adjustments in the books of accounts
as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme and to engage advocates, consultants,
attorneys to represent the Company before the regulatory authorities for the aforesaid

purpose, and to do other incidental acts, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT a copy of this resolution be submitted to concerned

authorities duly certified by any Director of the company”.

Matthew Joseph Chitharanjan

Director

DIN: 06368646 _
Add: D-173, Sushant Lok-1,

Chakarpur (74), Gurgaon, DLF ge
Gurgaon-122002, Haryana
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ANNEXURE 2 61

MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
D 173, Sushant Lok, Phase 1, Gurgaon- 122002, Haryana, India
(+91) 9821126015, getcoffee@bluetokaicoffee.com
CIN: U15492HR2012PTC047234

REPORT UNDER SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ADOPTED BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED EXPLAINING THE
EFFECT OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS

The Board of Directors (Board) of Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited (Transferee Company or
Company) at its board meeting held on 20 December 2022 has approved the scheme of amalgamation
(Scheme) in terms of and pursuant to, the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Companies Act), the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, and
other applicable laws, for the amalgamation of Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited (bearing CIN
U15490HR2018PTC076091) (Transferor Company) into and with the Transferee Company (Proposed
Amalgamation). The Scheme is subject to requisite approval(s) of the Honble National Company Law
Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (Hon’ble Tribunal) and other regulatory authorities.

While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board of the Transferee Company had, inter alia, considered the
following:

() Draft Scheme;

(if) Certificate of share swap ratio dated 17 December 2022, for the Proposed Amalgamation,
prepared by Mr. Subodh Kumar, an independent registered valuer, registered with IBBI vide
Registration No. IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705, having his office at 210, 2nd Floor, Wadhwa
Complex, Street No. 10, Laxmi Nagar, New Delhi-110092, India and a coordinating office at
First Floor, 12/14, Dhakka, Near Kingsway Camp, Delhi-400006; and

(iii) Valuation reports dated 17 December 2022, prepared by Mr. Subodh Kumar, an independent
registered valuer, registered with IBBI vide Registration No. IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705, having
his office at 210, 2nd Floor, Wadhwa Complex, Street No. 10, Laxmi Nagar, New Delhi-110092,
India and a coordinating office at First Floor, 12/14, Dhakka, Near Kingsway Camp, Delhi-
400006.

After considering the documents referred above, the Board of the Transferee Company has approved
the draft Scheme.

In accordance with Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, a report adopted by the Board of the
Transferee Company explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial
personnel (KMP), promoters and non-promoter shareholders is required to be circulated to the
shareholders or class of shareholders or creditors or class of creditors, as the case may be, for the
meeting of the shareholders or class of shareholders or creditors or class of creditors, as the case may
be, along with the notice convening such meeting.

() The Proposed Amalgamation seeks to achieve cost savings from more focussed operational
efforts, rationalization and standardization of business processes by way of consolidation.

(if) The Proposed Amalgamation is expected to achieve business synergies and is expected to
enable carrying on the business more economically.

(iii) The Proposed Amalgamation is intended to rationalize the business operations and activities,
to utilize the potential for growth and diversification and for better optimization of costs and
resources.

(iv) The Proposed Amalgamation would result in consolidation to enable better and more efficient

management and offering opportunities to vigorously pursue growth and expansion.
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MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
D 173, Sushant Lok, Phase 1, Gurgaon- 122002, Haryana, India
(+91) 9821126015, getcoffee@bluetokaicoffee.com
CIN: U15492HR2012PTC047234

(v) Upon the Scheme becoming effective (as defined in the Scheme) in terms of Clause 17 of Part B,
for every 2.426 shares of the Transferor Company, each shareholder of the Transferor Company
shall be issued 1 equity share of the Transferee Company, based on the share exchange ratio of
0.4122:1 (Share Exchange Ratio). The employee stock option pool of the Transferee Company
on a fully diluted basis, shall stand increased by 267 (Two Hundred and Sixty-Seven) shares,
to accommodate the employee stock option pool of the Transferor Company.

(vi) Upon the Scheme becoming effective (as defined in the Scheme), the Transferor Company shall
stand dissolved without being wound up and the board of directors and any committees
thereof of the Transferor Company shall without any further act, instrument or deed be and
stand dissolved.

Therefore, in accordance with Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, the Board of the Transferee
Company in its meeting held on 20 December 2022 took on record the following impact of the Scheme
inter alia on the shareholders, KMP, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Transferee
Company and the Transferor Company:

S. Category Transferee Company Transferor Company
No.
1. Shareholders In accordance with the Scheme, | The Transferor Company will

the Transferee Company will issue | be struck off from the register
new shares to the shareholders of | of companies maintained by
the Transferor Company based on | the concerned Registrar of
the Share Exchange Ratio, i.e., for | Companies, with effect from
every 2426 shares of the | the relevant effective date as
Transferor =~ Company,  each | specified in the Scheme
shareholder of the Transferor | without need for winding up
Company shall be issued 1 equity | in accordance with the
share of the Transferee Company. | Companies Act and other
applicable laws in India.

Accordingly, the shareholders
of the Transferor Company
will cease to hold shares in the
Transferor Company and will
receive  shares in  the
Transferee ~ Company  in
consideration of the Proposed
Amalgamation and in
accordance with the Share
Exchange Ratio.

2. Promoter Shareholders | As stated above, upon the Scheme | Upon the Scheme becoming
becoming effective, the | effective, the promoter
shareholders of the Transferee | shareholders will cease to be
Company will issue shares to the | promoters of the Transferor
shareholders of the Transferor | Company.

Company in terms of the Scheme.
The promoter shareholders of
the Transferor Company will
be treated at par with the other
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MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED
D 173, Sushant Lok, Phase 1, Gurgaon- 122002, Haryana, India
(+91) 9821126015, getcoffee@bluetokaicoffee.com
CIN: U15492HR2012PTC047234

S. Category Transferee Company

Transferor Company

The Scheme does not have any
special impact on the shareholders
of the Transferee Company.

shareholders of the Transferee
Company once they will be
issued shares of the Transferee
Company.

Please refer to point (1) above
for details regarding effect on

Company or their relatives do not
have any interest in the Scheme,
financially or otherwise. The
Scheme does not affect the office of
the KMPs of the Transferee
Company.

the shareholders.
3. Non-promoters Please refer to point (1) above for | Please refer to point (1) above
Shareholders details regarding effect on the | for details regarding effect on
shareholders. the shareholders.
4. KMPs The KMPs of the Transferee | In accordance with the

Scheme, all employees of the
Transferor Company as on
such date shall become the
employees of the Transferee
Company, and, subject to the
provisions hereof, on such
terms and conditions as
provided in the employment
agreements to be executed
with the Transferee Company,
without any interruption of
service as a result of the
Proposed Amalgamation.

5. Directors The directors of the Transferee
Company or their relatives do not
have any interest in the Scheme,
financially or otherwise. The
Scheme does not affect the office of
the directors of the Transferee
Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming
effective, the directors of the
Transferor ~Company will
cease to be directors of the
Transferor Company.

For Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited

Signatures:

Matthew Joseph Chitharanjan

Director

DIN: 06368646

Add: D-173, Sushant Lok-1, Chakarpur (74), Gurgaon,
DLF, Gurgaon-122002, Haryana

Date: 20 December 2022
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REPORT UNDER SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ADOPTED BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED EXPLAINING
THE EFFECT OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS

The Board of Directors (Board) of Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited (Transferor Company or
Company) at its board meeting held on 2 January 2023 has approved the scheme of amalgamation
(Scheme) in terms of and pursuant to, the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Companies Act), the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, and
other applicable laws, for the amalgamation of Transferor Company into and with Muhavra Enterprises
Private Limited (bearing CIN U15492HR2012PTC047234) (Transferee Company) (Proposed
Amalgamation). The Scheme is subject to requisite approval(s) of the Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (Hon’ble Tribunal) and other regulatory authorities.

While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board of the Transferor Company had, inter alia, considered the
following:

(i) Draft Scheme;

(if) Certificate of share swap ratio dated 17 December 2022, for the Proposed Amalgamation,
prepared by Mr. Subodh Kumar, an independent registered valuer, registered with IBBI vide
Registration No. IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705, having his office at 210, 2nd Floor, Wadhwa
Complex, Street No. 10, Laxmi Nagar, New Delhi-110092, India and a coordinating office at
First Floor, 12/14, Dhakka, Near Kingsway Camp, Delhi-400006; and

(iii) Valuation reports dated 17 December 2022, prepared by Mr. Subodh Kumar, an independent
registered valuer, registered with IBBI vide Registration No. IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705, having
his office at 210, 2nd Floor, Wadhwa Complex, Street No. 10, Laxmi Nagar, New Delhi-110092,
India and a coordinating office at First Floor, 12/14, Dhakka, Near Kingsway Camp, Delhi-
400006.

After considering the documents referred above, the Board of the Transferor Company has approved
the draft Scheme.

In accordance with Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, a report adopted by the Board of the
Transferor Company explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial
personnel (KMP), promoters and non-promoter shareholders is required to be circulated to the
shareholders or class of shareholders or creditors or class of creditors, as the case may be, for the
meeting of the shareholders or class of shareholders or creditors or class of creditors, as the case may
be, along with the notice convening such meeting.

() The Proposed Amalgamation seeks to achieve cost savings from more focussed operational
efforts, rationalization and standardization of business processes by way of consolidation.

(if) The Proposed Amalgamation is expected to achieve business synergies and is expected to
enable carrying on the business more economically.

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED
Corporate Office :- 321, Udyog Vihar Phase - ll, Gurugram — 122016
suchalisbakehouse@gmail.com

www.suchalisartisanbakehouse.com
CIN No. - U15490HR2018PTC076091
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(i)

(iv)

The Proposed Amalgamation is intended to rationalize the business operations and activities,
to utilize the potential for growth and diversification and for better optimization of costs and
resources.

The Proposed Amalgamation would result in consolidation to enable better and more efficient
management and offering opportunities to vigorously pursue growth and expansion.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective (as defined in the Scheme) in terms of Clause 17 of Part B,
for every 2.426 shares of the Transferor Company, each shareholder of the Transferor Company
shall be issued 1 equity share of the Transferee Company, based on the share exchange ratio of
0.4122:1 (Share Exchange Ratio). The employee stock option pool of the Transferee Company
on a fully diluted basis, shall stand increased by 267 (Two Hundred and Sixty-Seven) shares,
to accommodate the employee stock option pool of the Transferor Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective (as defined in the Scheme), the Transferor Company shall
stand dissolved without being wound up and the board of directors and any committees
thereof of the Transferor Company shall without any further act, instrument or deed be and
stand dissolved.

Therefore, in accordance with Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, the Board of the Transferor
Company in its meeting held on 2 January 2023 took on record the following impact of the Scheme inter
alia on the shareholders, KMP, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Transferee Company
and the Transferor Company:

S. Category Transferee Company Transferor Company
No.
1. Shareholders In accordance with the Scheme, | The Transferor Company

the Transferee Company will | will be struck off from the
issue new shares to the |register of companies
shareholders of the Transferor | maintained by the
Company based on the Share | concerned Registrar  of
Exchange Ratio, i.e., for every | Companies, with effect
2.426 shares of the Transferor | from the relevant effective
Company, each shareholder of | date as specified in the
the Transferor Company shall | Scheme without need for
be issued 1 equity share of the | winding up in accordance

Transferee Company. with the Companies Act
and other applicable laws
in India.

Accordingly, the

shareholders of the
Transferor Company will
cease to hold shares in the
Transferor Company and
will receive shares in the

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED
Corporate Office :- 321, Udyog Vihar Phase - ll, Gurugram — 122016
suchalisbakehouse@gmail.com

www.suchalisartisanbakehouse.com
CIN No. - U15490HR2018PTC076091
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S. Category Transferee Company Transferor Company

No.
Transferee Company in
consideration ~ of  the
Proposed  Amalgamation
and in accordance with the
Share Exchange Ratio.

2. Promoter Shareholders As stated above, upon the | Upon the Scheme becoming

Scheme becoming effective, the
shareholders of the Transferee
Company will issue shares to
the shareholders of the
Transferor Company in terms
of the Scheme.

The Scheme does not have any
special ~impact on the
shareholders of the Transferee
Company.

effective, the promoter
shareholders will cease to
be promoters of the
Transferor Company.

The promoter shareholders
of the Transferor Company
will be treated at par with
the other shareholders of
the Transferee Company
once they will be issued
shares of the Transferee
Company.

Please refer to point (1)
above for details regarding
effect on the shareholders.

Non-promoters Shareholders

Please refer to point (1) above
for details regarding effect on
the shareholders.

Please refer to point (1)
above for details regarding
effect on the shareholders.

KMPs

The KMPs of the Transferee
Company or their relatives do
not have any interest in the
Scheme, financially or
otherwise. The Scheme does
not affect the office of the
KMPs of the Transferee
Company.

In accordance with the
Scheme, all employees of
the Transferor Company as
on such date shall become
the employees of the
Transferee Company, and,
subject to the provisions
hereof, on such terms and
conditions as provided in
the employment
agreements to be executed
with the Transferee
Company, without any
interruption of service as a

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED
Corporate Office :- 321, Udyog Vihar Phase - ll, Gurugram — 122016
suchalisbakehouse@gmail.com
www.suchalisartisanbakehouse.com

CIN No. - U15490HR2018PTC076091
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S. Category Transferee Company Transferor Company
No.
result of the Proposed
Amalgamation.
5. Directors The directors of the Transferee | Upon the Scheme becoming

Company or their relatives do
not have any interest in the
Scheme, financially or
otherwise. The Scheme does
not affect the office of the
directors of the Transferee
Company.

effective, the directors of
the Transferor Company
will cease to be directors of
the Transferor Company.

For Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

Signatures:

Suchali Jain
Director
DIN: 08241627

Add: A-57, Near S D College,
Tribune Colony, Ambala GPO,

Haryana - 133001
Date: 2 January 2023

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED

Corporate Office :- 321, Udyog Vihar Phase - ll, Gurugram — 122016

suchalisbakehouse@gmail.com
www.suchalisartisanbakehouse.com
CIN No. - U15490HR2018PTC076091
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. Vinod Kuniar
i . . (S ASSOCIATES

: Chartered Accountants

www.vinodjainca.com

- INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
MUBAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion |

We have audited the accompﬁmying consolidated financial statements of MUHAVRA

ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED (hercinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) its - |

subsidiary, joint venture-and associate (the Holding Company, its subsidiary, associate and joint |
. venture together referred to as “the (Group™), which comprises the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at !
March 31, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Cash f
flow for the year then ended, notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the
Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and.

‘based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statement of a subsidiary

- and joint venture, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by

. ' the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Agt”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
! conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of

affairs (financial position) of the Group as at March 31, 2022 and its consolidated loss and its
consolidated Cash Flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinioil

We conducted our audit of the consglidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obfained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in -
terms of their report referred in otl'\Lr matter para below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements. -

Head Bffice: Corporate Office: Nehry Place: Mumbai: Karol Bagh: . Ul

4B96 Brij Bhawan GLOBAL BUSRIESS SQUARE 503, Ghiranjiy Tower, a05-206, 3° Floor. 174/55, Triveni Plaza, SC0-705, 13!: Floor,
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Other Matters

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements and the other
financial information in respect of subsidiary which reflects total assets of Rs'4.38 lakhs as at 3 1%
March, 2022, total revenue of Rs 0.12 lakhs, net loss after tax of Rs 5.91 lakhs, and net cash outflow
of Rs 4.35 lakhs for the year ended|on that date, and the financial statements and other financial
information in respect of joint venture which reflects share of the Holding company’s in total assets
of Rs 71.67 lakhs as at 31% March, 2022, total revenue of Rs 56.52 lakhs, net loss after tax of Rs 0.08
lakhs and net cash Outflow of Rs 0.06|1akhs for the year ended on that date. These financial statements
and other financial information have[been andited by other independent auditors whose audit report
have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of subsidiary and joint venture
and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiary and joint ventures is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements also includes Holding company’s share of net
loss of Rs Nil for the year ended March 31, 2022, as considered in the Consolidated Financial
Statements, in respect of its associate, whose financial statements, other financial information have
not been audited and whose unaudited financial statements, other unaudited financial information
have been furnished o us by the Management. Our opinion, in so far as it relates amounts and
disclosures included in respect of associates, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section
143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on such unaudited
financial statements and other unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the

information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements and other
financial information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Aunditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s
Annual report, but does not include|the Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude

that there is a material misstatement|of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard, :

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)

of the Act with respect to the preparlation and presentatton of these eonsohdated ﬁnancnal statements
that give a true and fair view it

performance and consolidated cash
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generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 13?: of the
Act. The respective. Board of Dirgctors of the entities included in the Group responsible for
maintenance of adequate accountiig records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group|and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operatirlg effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial

statements that give a true and fair [view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directots of the companies
included in the Group are responsiblle for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless respective management, either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. ;

The Respcctive Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibi]ities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errot, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Rleasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted injaccordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually

ot in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decnslons of users
taken on the basis of these oonsohdated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs; we exercise professional judgment and maintain -

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, dwgn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

& Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has

adequate internal financial ¢ontrols system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going COTBEY basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matey rAoay A i

related to events or conditjons that may cast significant doubt on he
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continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditer’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence ¢btained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concermn.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements

represent the underlying tran{ctmns and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such
entities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose financial
information we have audited| to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial

.

statements of such entities 1

luded in the consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors.

or the other entities included in the consolidated financial

statements, which have been hudited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible

.

for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion. '

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards. '

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requiremeﬁts

M

(i)

a) We/ the other auditors who

b) In our opinion, proper bool

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order"/ "CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of
Section 143(11) of the Act, to|be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information
and explanations given to usl and based on the CARO report issued by us for the holding
company included in the consolidated financial statements of the group, to which reporting

under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in its
CARO report.

Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, and on the consideration of report
of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of

subsidiary and joint venture, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

. se report we have relied upon, have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary

for the purposes of our audi of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

<s of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated finapcial statements have been kept so far as it appeas

examination of those books|and the reports of the other auditors;
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The Consolidated Balance |Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standard specified under Seqtion 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March,| 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
“Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary company and joint venture
which is incorporated in Indja as on 31st March, 2022, none of the directors of these entities

is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

Being a Private Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 464(E) dated 5th June, 20135,
as amended by Notification No. GSR No.583(E) dated 13th June, 2017, issued by the Central
Government of India, reponting requirement prescribed in clause (i) of sub-section (3) of
section 143 of the Act is not|applicable to holding company; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31% March 2022 on its

financial position in its Consolidation Financial Statements — Refer note 32 to the
consolidated financial [statements;

ii. The Group did not lgave any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

1iii. There have been no gmounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund| by the Holding Company, its subsidiary and joint venture,
incorporated in India during the year ended 31st Match, 2022; and

iv. (a) The management|has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company
or its subsidiary or jpint venture incorporated in India to or in any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in|writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

¢ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
- in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of

the Holding Company, its subsidiary and joint venture incorporated in
India; or
¢ provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behg/f ot P& tilimate

Beneficiaries;

$
-
. *O




(iii)

For Vinod Kumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

M.No. 511741
UDIN: 225{{F4{BEDHAD 5274
Date: 27t September, 2022
Place: New Delhi

no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary or joint
venture incorporated in India from any persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Holding Company or its subsidiary or joint venture

(b) The managcmcntflis represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
incorporated in India shall:
s directly or mtccﬂy, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified

in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of
the Funding Barties; or

e provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Benrimanes

{(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothm has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material
misstatement.

The Group has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed
final dividend for the year. Accordingly, reporting in this regard is not applicable to the
Group. : .

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors” Report under section 197(16) of
the Act:

The Holding Company is net a public company, accordingly prov131on of Section 197(16)
of the Act is not apphcable to Holding Company.
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Muhat? Enterprises Private Limited
{ - U15492HR2012PTCD47234)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022
- (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars Notcs As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
A, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Sharcholders’ funds
(8) Share Capital 2 31 2.65
{b) Reseive and Surphis 3 6,332.32 3.641.67
8335.43 364,32
2, Minority lulcres! (0.00) 0.00
(0.00) 0.00
3. Non Curreni Linhilities
{2) Long-term borrowings 4 52,75 75.36
(b) Other Long term liakilities 5 12.84 .
() Long-term provisions 6 _141.86 32,17
) 20745 107.53
4. Current Liabilitics
(a) Short Term Borrowings 7 1,037.08 517.03
(b) Tinde Payables 8 '
-Duga of micre enterprises and small enterpriscs 46.79 12.97
-Dues of ereditors viher than micro enterprises and small entdrprises 624.46 33325
() Other Current Liabilities o 9 243.00 127.88
(d) Short-ierm provisions 10 2234 66.22
: 1,973.67 1,057.35
TOTAL 8,516.55 | 4,809.20 |
B, ASSETS
1, Non-Current Asscts
{a) Property Plant and Equipment & Intangible Asscls
(i) Property, Plant & Equipments 11{A) 2,16149 1,454,37
(iiy Intangible Assets 11(B) 106,31 45.24
(iii) Capital Work in Progress _ . 11(C) - 30.65
{iv) lntangible assets under development 11{D) 49,60 1729
{b) Non-Currant Investments 12 67.42 -
{¢) Deferved Tax Asscls (Net) 13 837.19 12.05
{d) Long Term Loans & Advances 14 53,03 7.18
() Other Non-Cusrenr Assets 15 320.37 271.28
3,670.41 2,338.06
2, Carrent Assets
(a) Current Invesiments 16 . 498.83
(b) Inventotics 17 1,466.79 §27.36
(¢) Trade Receivables 18 583,22 LN
(d) Cash and Bank Balances 19 1,877.09 471,32
{e) Shortsterm loans and advarces 20 270.91 316.09
(1) Other current assets 2 48.13 .43
4,846.14 247114
TOTAL 8,516.55 4;309.20
The Accempanyiug notes | {o 42 form an integral part of these .ronsolidatcd Financial Statements |
As per vur Report of oven datc attached : 7. e
For Vinod e 2 2 . 7 For and'on Behalf of the Boaryt of Dirdeiors - Yn
Charter .‘n‘ TR As X TN 4:.: Y
FRN NG . S
( o
ks }!
uk‘cs\ N Cr""' .
I(\ﬁpambgi‘ - (Director)
[Membersliip B DIN ; 06368654
Date; 1™ vrben y 2922,
Place: New Dodhi
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - [J15492HR2012PTC047234)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31 2022
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
ded For the year ended
Particulars Note For the year ende € year en
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
1 [Income
Revenue from Operations 22 7,396.19 4,096.50
Other Income 23 83.65 3426
Total Income (A) 1,479.84 4,130.76
2 |Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 24 2,609.35 ] 1,514.29
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 25 521.93 37533
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods work-in-progress and
Stock-in-Trade [ro 26 4145 (160.51)
Employee Benefits Expense 27 2,200.87 1,250.02
Finance Costs 28 170.09 96.23
Depreciation and Amortization expense 11 635,17 498.70
Other Expenses 29 2,859.18 1,651.99
"otal Expenses (B) 9,038.04 5226.05
3 Proﬂtf(Loss) before (ax (A) - (B) {1 ,558.20* (1,095.29)
4 |Tax Expense
Current tax - -
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement - -
Deferred tax (325.14)“ (379.12)
Share in Profit/ (Loss) of Associate after Tax - -
Profit/(Loss) transferred to minority (0.00) (0.00)
5 |Profit/(Loss) after tax (1,233.06) {71617
Ea’rulhg Per Equity Share (in Rupees) 36 .
Basic (8,506.21) (4,940.45)
Diluted (4,333.60) (2,94647)
The Accompanying notes 1 te 42 form an integral paﬂ ol these Consolidated Financial Statements
Ag per our Report of even date attached s ‘- "f;‘ R
For Vinod Kumar & Associates ~ For andpn beh fof Board o /IS: optor ™2\
” ' "\ G N \
< L [
Al Lot
l{:_ Ao
..... ) o
_;'._;_ -, c '
Matthew Joseph-Cliitharanjan Namrata Asthana
. (Director) (Director)
Membership No.5 17;1 : DIN : 06368646 DIN : 06368654
Date: 274 bﬂ-"\,')_o 1= \ :
Place: New Delhi
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Muhayra Enterprises Private Limited
{CIN { U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March _31, 2022
{Amount in Bs. Lakhs)
: For the year ended For the year ended
. Particulars 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021
A Cash Flow from operating activitics:
Profit/(Loss) before tax . (1,558.20) (1,095.19)
Adjusiments for ;
Depreciation 63547 498.70
ESOP 166.21 -
Interest Expense +70.09 96.23
Property, Plant & Equipment Written off - 22.50
(Profit)oss on sale of Propemy, Plant & Equipment - 0.07
Tuterest Income {42.61) {25.79)
Operating Proflt before working capital changes (629.34) (503.58)
Adjustment for: t
Increase / (Deercase) in Tradc Payables - 325.03 68,32
Increase f (Decreasc) in Other Current Liabilities 11512 {0.51)
Increase £ (Deetease) in long-tem provisions 105,69 kAN
Increase / (Decrcase) in long-term Liablities 12,34 -
Increase / (Deercase) in short-term provisions (43.88) 66.22
D / (norcosc) in L ics © (639.43) {113.34)
Decesase / (Inerease) in Trade Reoeivables 232.11) (53.58)
Deerease £ (Inerease) in Long Term Loan and Advances (50.85) {36.01)
Deerease / (Inerease) in Short Term Loan and Advances (354.82) (101.43)
Decreass / (incmasc) in Other Non Current Assets (119.09) -
Decrease / ([nercase) in Other Current Assets - {4730} 4.7
Cash Genersied/ (Used [n) Qperating Actlvitics (1,125.20) {90.4%)
Tax {expensey Refund - .
Net Cash Inflow / (Qutllow) from Operating Asdvitics (1,754.54) (594.01)
B Cash Flow from Investing Activitls:
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets - 4.68
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets (1,405.03) (42503}
Sale/{Purchase) of Investments 43141 {498.83)
inforest Beceived 42.51 25.79
{Investments) Realisation in Bank d p (1,151.74) 239.50
Net cash Inflow {Outfow) Trom Investing Activitics {2,082.75) (653.88)
€ Cash Flow from Financing Activitics: !
Proceeds/ (Repayment) from Borrowings, Net 497.47 (2,485.88)
Proceeds from Minority 0.00) T 600
Intcrest paid {170.09) {96.23)
Issue Of Sharcs 0.45 0.75
Sceurity Premium Money Received 175750 1.857.65
Net cash Inflow / (Outllow) from Finuncing Actlvitics 4,055.33 1]1',‘6.29
Net Increase/(Decrcase) in Cash and Cash Equivatents 248.03 28.40
Cash and Cash equivalents {Qpening Balance) 55.02 26.62
Cash and Cash cquivalents (Closing Balance)Refer Note-19) 303,08 5502
The Accompanying nolcs 1 to 42 form an Intogral part of these Consplidated Financial Stotements
As per our Report of Lo .
For Vinad - For and on Behalf of the Board-of Direvtars' -
Chartere : L M
FRN N A
‘olsc » cm‘: ‘s"‘ 9 \u?’ N Asthang” e
ukiesh 'l\P ; /'3473@” (ﬁf”r A Asthans
(Partner) - DIN:
Membership No. .
Date: 9 -T+% S&b‘{\u\’\bm 9 212
Place : New Delhi




Muhavxﬁz Enterprises Private Limited
(CTN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 Significant Accounting policies and notés ou accoutits

P 1.1 Corporate Information

Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited is a private limited company incorporated on 26th September, 2012 under the Companies Act, 1956 in India. The
registered office of the company is located at D-173, Sushant Lok-l, Gurgaon, Haryana-122002, India. The company is engaged in the the business of
manufactoring, processing, distributing, marketing and selling goods related to speciality foods and beverage preducts, including, but not limited to coffee
products (beverages, roasted beans, coffec powder and offee products), chacalate products, and providing services such as saleable drink in a kiosk format
o via delivery for personal and commercial use, and amy other business that may be conducted from time 1o time, throughout India and overseas.

GAC Enterprises Private Limited (“the subsidiary cothpany") is a private company incorported in India.
Origami Dripbag Private Limited ("the jointly controlled entity” or “joint venture”) is a private company incorported in India.

Blue Tokal Coflfee Japan ("the associate company") is p company incorporated in Japan.

The holding company, its subsidiary, jointly controlled ¢ntity and associate company is collectively referred to as “the Group”,

1,2 Basis of Preparation and presentation

(@)  Statement of cnpliance

These Consolidated Financial Siatements acc prepared ip accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (*Indian GAAP') 10 comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Aet, 2013,

1 (b) Funciional & presentation currency

These Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Group's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded
offto the nearest lakhs or decima) thereof, unless otherwise indicated,

{¢)  Basis ol measurement

. ) The Consolidated Financial Stawﬂlmts have been prepated under the historical cost convention on accral basis except for Defined benefit obligation which
) have been measured ot fair value amount.

it} Principles of Consolidation-

(i)  The Financial Statements of the holding company and its subsidiary have been consclidated. on a line by line basis by adding together the book values of like
itenis of assets, liabilities, income and cxpenses after fully eliminating intea gronp balances, intra group transactions and unrealized profits or losscs, if any,

(i)  The difference of the cost 6f invesiment 10 the holding|company in subsidiaries over its proportionate share in the equity of the investee company as on the
date of acquisition is recognised in the Consolidated Figancials Statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be,

{iii) Minority Interest’s share of net profit of consolidated dubsidiary for the year is {dentified and adjusted against the income of the group in order to armive at
the net income attributable to. shareholders of the Holding Company.

iw)  Minarity Interest’s share of net assets of cousolidated stbsidiary is identified and presented in the consclidated balance sheet separate from liabilities and the
equity of the Holding Company’s shareholders. ’

() Invesiment in jointly controlied entity is accounted for pnder proportionate consotidation method as per Accounting Standard (AS) 27 - “Financial Reporting
of Interests in Joint Ventures”.

i {vi) The Holding Company accounts for its share of cach of
consolidated financial statements.

the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the jointly controlled entity as separate line jtems in the

{(vii) The Jifference between the cost of investment in the jointly controlled entity and the share of net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the jointly
. cantrolled entity is identified in the consolidated financjal stalements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

{viii) As far as possible, the Consoliduted Financial Staternents are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances and are presented in the same manner as|the Holding Company’s separate Financial Statements.

{ix)  Investment in Associate entity is accounted for under|Equity methed as per Accounting Standard (AS) 23 - “Accounting for lnvestments in Associates in
Consoalidated Finaneial Statements”. )

(xj  On woquisition of the invesiment in Associate, the diﬁr‘lcncc between the cost of acquisition and the investor's share of the equity of the associate is
described as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

Goodwill/capital reserve arising on the acquisition of ap associate by an investor should be included in the camying amonnt of invesunent in the associate
and disclosed separately. . '




78

Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
{CIN - U15492HR2012PTCQ47234)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1  Significant Accounting policies and notes on aceoun
{8)  Current and non-current classlfication
"The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance shect based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in nosmal operaling cycle,
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading, :
- Bxpected to be realised within twelve months after tl1e reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from beingjexchanged of wsed 10 seitle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period,

All other assets are clagsified as non-current,

A liability is current when:
-Ttis expected 10 be seitled in normal operating cyele,
- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,
= It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ¢lassified as non-gurrent asseis and liabilities,

The operdlihg cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle. .

(I} VUse of estimates and judgements

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions thar affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Although these estimates are
based on the best knowledge of current event and actions, so actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected

(g) Changes in accounting policles
The Group has consistently applied the accounting poliries set out below to all periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements.

1.3 Siguificant accounting polocles

(@) luventories
Inventory is valued a1 the lower of the cost or net realizable vatue.

Cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase price, duties and 1axes (other than refundable duties and taxes), cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. .

Cost of raw material, packing material, trading materia] and finished foods are determined on First in First out basis.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an itemn by itern basis. The Group periodically assesses the inventory for obsol&cence and slow
moving stocks,

(v  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits With bank. Cash equivalent are short tezm, highly liquid investments that are readily conveniible into

known amount of cash and which are subject 1o insignificant changes in value. The Growp considers highly liquid investments as a cash equivalent cnly
when it has a short maturity of three month or less from the date of acquisition.

(¢ Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended tL be held for not more than a year are clussified as current investmenis, All other invesiments are
classified as non current investments.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost a! faif value ,

Non curment Investments are valued at cost of acqmpltlon The can'ymg values of non cument investmenis are reduced by the diminution {other than
semporary) in the value of investment.

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

liems of property, plant and equipment are measured [at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of propesty, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and repates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item o its working condition for its |ntended use
and eslimated costs of dismantling and removing the itbm and restoring the site on which it is localed




Muhavrg Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN|- U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

MNote 1 Significant Accounting policies and notes on accounts

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and lequipment comprises the cost of materials and direct Jabor, any other costs direcfly altribu.tabI‘e t‘o
bringing the item to working condition for its intended uge, and estimaied costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located, . : _ )
1f significant pans of an item of propety, plant and equipment have different uscful lives, then they are accounted for as separale ilems {major components}
of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it islprobabl 2 that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the entity.

Depreclation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment on a written down value tmethod from the month in which each asset is ready to use to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values {i.e. 5%), over their estimated useful lives of as prescribed in Schedule U of the companies Act, 2013 except in respect
of the assets where useful life is different other than thosd prescribed in Schedule [ are used, based on technical evaluation by considering the nature & usage
of assets, expected physical wear & toar ete,
Depreciation on assets added, sold or discarded during thi: year has been provided on pro-rata basis.

The assets' residual values, estimaied wseful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on & prospective basis, ;

Individua) assets purchased during the year costing Rs 5,000 o« less are depreciated in full, in the year of purchase,

IAn item of property, plant and equipment and any significant past initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal, Gains or losses arisin

from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference berween the net
disposal proceeds and the carmrying amount of the asscts

Derecogunltion of Property, Plant and Equipment
d are recognized in the Consolidated Statemment of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

{e)  Intangible Assets

Intengible assets are stated a1 cost less acoumulated ization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated
wseful economic life, from the date that they are availablp for use, Residual Value of intangible assets are congidered as Nil.
The ainortization period and the amortization method arg reviewed at each financial year end.

Derecoguition of intangible assets

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are recopnized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss by comparing net dispesal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset.

(f)  Capital work In progress (CWIP)

The cost of assets not ready 1o put 10 use before the yearjend are disclosed under Capital work in progress,
CWIP includes product under development, constructioa of cafe including material/equipment in transit or received at site for use in projects, All revenue

expenses incurred during construction period, which are exclusively attributable ta acquisilipn!construction of property, plant and equipment or Products are
capitalized at the time of commissioning of such assets, :

(g Impairment of Assets

Al each balance sheet date, the Group assesses wh there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. [f any such indication exists, the Group
estimates e recoverable amount, If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the Profit and joss
Account to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the tecoverable amount,

(W) Foreilgn Exchange Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the exchhnge rates prevailing on the date of the transactions.

The foreign currency denominated monstary assets and liabilities are reponied using the closing rate and gain§ or losses if any, a1 the year end in respect of
these assets and liabilities, not covered by forward contracis, are recognised in Profit and Loss Account.

Exchange differences arising on repaymentof fiabilitis incumed for the purpose of acquiring Property, plant & equipment are adjusted with the carcying
amount of respective Property, plant & equipment,

Non-mongtary iteins denominated in foreign cwerency are stated at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.
(®  Revenue Recognition .

Sale of Products : Revenue from sale of goods is gnised when the significant risk, rewards and owenership of the goods have been transferred to the

customer for 2 consideration. Revenue represents the|net invoice value of the goods supplied and services rendered after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, output Gaods and Service Tax (GST) and otth duties.

Sale of Services : Sexvices revenue are recognised ad the service are performed. Servicss provided pursuant to a contract are sither recognized over the

contract period or upon completion of the elements spkcified in the contmct depending on the terms of 1he contract, Operating revenues from the integrated
Lougl:’sucs services /distribution and maintenance of vending machines are recognized when 1he services are rendered. Revenues include unbilled as well as
d smounts. . D
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

Note1 Significant Accounting policies and notes on uwnnts|-
Other Income : Revenue arising from the use by o
significant uncenainty as to measurability or collectabiti

of entesprise resources yiciding interest, royaities and dividends is recognised only when no
exists, These tevenues are recagnised on the following basis:

Interest : on a time proportion basis taking into accotnt the amount outstanding and the ratz applicable.

Royaltles : on an accrual basis in accordance with the s of the relevant agreement.
Dividend : when the owner’s right to receive payment |s established.

(]} Borrowiag Cosls
Borrowing Cost includes interest, amartisation of anciliary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement #f borrowing and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings {if any) to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing cost diretly atwibutablc to the acquisitions, construction or pradustion of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to ge1 ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the chst of the respective assets. All other borrawing costs are expensed in the period they occour,

() Employec benefils expense
Short-Term Employce Benefits

The undiscownted amount of short-term employee benefits expected 1o be paid in exchangé for the services rendered by employees are recognised as an
expense duting the period when the employees render the services.

Post-Employinent Benefits
(Aj 'Defined benefit plans i

The Group pays gratuity ta the employees who have corf\pleled five years of service with the Group al the time of resigumionfsuperannuation The gratuity is
paid 15 days basic salary for every compleied year of sepvice as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The liability in respect of gratuity is caloulated using
. the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the|period during which the beneiit is expected to be derived from employees’ services. The gratuity
tiability amourit is untunded and the unfunded accrued post is recagnised throuph & reserve in the Accounts of the Group exclusively for gratuity payment to
the employees.

The Group has introduced the policy tor the encashment of compensated absences. The benefit is payable when the employes retires ot leaves the Ciroup. The
Group is making the actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date to calculae the current service cost based on estimated number of leave encashment, as per
Group policy, as per AS-13 which is charged 10 the statement of profit and loss of the current year and cousidered in arriving the 10tal liability at Balapce
Sheet date by applying appropriate discounting rate apd Projected Unit Credit Method. The compensated abscnces liability amount is unfunded and the

wifonded accrued cost is recognised through a reservg in the Accounts of the Group exclusively for compensated absences paynient 10 the employees.
(Acturial report shewing it funded) :

(B) 'Defined contribution plans
Contribution lo Provident fund, a defincd contribution |plan are made in accordance with the statute and are recognized as an expensc when employecs have
rendered service entitling thet to the contribution. )

Group Contribution 10 state defined contribution plang namely Employees State Insurance are made in accordance with the stamie and is recognized as an
expense when employees rendered services ensitling Ihelm to contribution,

(0 Taxes on income ’ !
[ncome taxes cornprisc of current tax und deferred tax.
Curreni tax is detenmined as the amount expected to belpaid to/(recoverable from) taxation authorities, using applicable 1ax rates and tax laws.

In accordanve with Accounting Standard (AS) -22- “Accounting for Taxes on income” Deferred tax expense or benefit is recognised on timing differences
being the difference betwesn taxable income and acepunting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent
periods. Deferred tax assets anil liabilitivs are measureq nsing the tox rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date,
Deferred tax assels should be recognised and carricd forward only to the extent that there is reasonable ceetainty that suffcient fipure 1axable income will
be available against which such deferred tax assels can be realised. Whereas in case of unabsorbed deprecistion or carry forward of losses under lax laws,

deferred 1ax assels should be recognised only to the pxiens that there is virtual centainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable
incamne will be available against which such deferred tx assets can be realised.

The Group oflsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if it has a legally cnforceable right and these reiate to taxes on income levied by the same
goveming taxation laws, . . .

{m) Earning Per Share (EPS)
The Gmup rcports the basic and diluted Eaming Per Slrare in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 on “Eaming Per Shave”.

Bustc Eamtng Per Share is calculaied by dividing lhc nel profit or loss for the year by weighted average number of equily shares outstandini during the year.

Diluted Earning PPer Share is caleulated by dividing the net profit ot loss for the year by the weighted aw.ragc nnmber of equny shares uutstandtng during, thc
year as uljuq‘{ad for the effects ot't'ill dilutive potential pquity shares except whcre the regults are anti- dduhva -




Muhavria Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR201 2PTC047234)

Notes forming pTrt of Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1  Significant Accounting policies and notes on accountJ

(M)  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets . ) ]
Provision is recognized when there is present obligation|as a result of a past event that probably requires an cutflow of resources and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. :

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of: .
a present cbligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
a present obligation arising from past events, when no rzFable estimate is possible.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from palst events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the accurrence or non- gccurrence of one of
more uncertain future events not wholly within the coptrol of the entity. A brief description of the nawure of contingent asset, and where practicable, an
estimate of their financial effect, at the end of reporling period is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asseis afe reviewed at each balance sheet date,

I

|

(o)  Segment Reporting i
The Group identifies segtmenis based on the dominant spurce, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and management structure, The
operating segments are the segments for which separate [financial information is available and for which operating profit / loss amounts are evaluated
regularly by the Executive Management in deciding how 10 allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Group, Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment
assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the opemting activities of the segment,

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities which relate 1o[the Group as a whole and are not aliocable to segments on reasonable basis have been included under
“unallocated revenue /expenses / assets / liabilities”, '

(py Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted under Employse Stock Option Plan is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by refercnce o the fair value of the options. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on the nen-market vesting and service conditions. It recogmm the impact of the revision 10 original estimates, if any,
in statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment 1o equity,
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited

_ (CIN - ULS492HR2012FTC047234)

i Notes formlng1 part of Consolidated Financial Statements

{Amaount in Rs. Lakhs)

3 Reserves and Surplus ; Azt C Asat
! March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Securltles Premium
% Balance 8 per the last financial statements l ' 5,942.43 2084.78
’ Add: Premium on issue of Equity Shares ) S -
Add: Premium on issue of 0.001% Compulsory Convertible Pr?fetem Shares __3,757.50 31857.65
Closing Balance 49@,93 5.042.43

) Ewmployee steck optlon outstanding account :
i S Balance at the commencement of the year !

Employees' stock compensation expense : ’ 166.21] - -
Bakance iransferred to reserves (Secusity Fremium) : - -
Balance ot the end of the year o 166.21 -

. Surplus/(Deftcl) b the steicment of Profit and Loss !

| Balonce as per last financial stalements, : {2,300.76) {1,584.59)
Add: Profit{(Loss) for the year ‘ : {1,233.06) (716.17)

Net Profit! {logs) ln the statement of Profit snd Losa
Total Reserves and Surpius

3.533.82 300,76
s332311 XTI

4 Long-Term Borrowings

i As at Agat
! _March M, 2022 March 31, 2021
Secured H
Term Loan from Bank (refer note (n)) : . 138
Term Loan from Other Parties {refer note (b)) i 1.54 -
o . Working Capital Loan From Qther Parties (refer nots (1) ! : 20.78 3544
[ ) ECB Borrowing (refer node (d))} | 25.03 N
- Unsecured i
Inteycorporals Losn - 0.50
Loon from Directors . 5,00 5.00
L Total i . 52.75 7536 |
{a) Term Loan fram Bank of Rs. 5.1 Lakhs is d against respecfive vehicle fi d. The Joan is repaysble in 34 equal instalbnents of Rs. 0.1806 Lakhs each by the end
1541172022, '

(b) Term Loan from the other parties of Rs. 4.6 Lakhs secured againgt the vespective vehicle financed. The loan is repaysble in 36 menths payable in monthly instaliment of Rs. 0.1651
Lakhs each including interest, )

() The Secursd Working Capilal Loan lizs been sanctioned for Rs, ¢4 Lakhs from Other partics carrying interest @ 14% p.a. (Approx). The total tenure of the loun is 48 months . The
above loans is securcd against hypothecated property under second mank charge over asset financed under emergency credit line guarantee scheme of the borower ,

(G} in previous financial year 2020-21, the Joint Ventuve had inken g loan as ECB boerowing from NASA CORPORATION {acting on behalf and for account of Fuse Industries Co.,
Lid.), a company organized ond existing undes the laws of fapan, hang its principal offices at 784 Kanda-Sakumagashi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo, 101-0026, Japan, hereinafier referred to

as "NASA. Quarterly payments shall be made 1o NASA's bank nt on the 20th of every quarter staning from 20th May 2021 10 20th February 2026, The Machinery remnitis as

the property of NASA until the settlement of the total payment: JPY 1 1,439,200.The Tuvoice value of the Machine is JPY 1,14,39,700 which includes ECB Loan along with interest
payable on {LMachinery has been copitalized with the invoice vale.!

5 Other Long term linbllities

_ Asal Asal
l ' i March 31,2022 Marel 31, 2021
Seoutity Deposits Received 12.84 -
. 1
Tadal 12.84 -
6 Long-term provisiens As ol As at
P _ March 31, 2022 March 31. 2021
: Provision for Bmployee Benfits .
Grawity ' ' 89.54 27.45
Compensated absences : 5232 472
_ TFotal : 141.86 3217
7 Short Term Dorrowlngs Asal Assl
March 31, 2022 March 3]: 2021
Secured
Current Matarity of Long Term Bosrowings {refer Note-d {a).(b)&(c)) 17.65 17.03
Working Capita! Loan From Other Parties (refer Note-7 (a},(b)} f : 1,000.56 500.00
Unsccured
" Working Capital Loan From Banks 13.87 -
Total 1,037.08 517.03
{a) The Secured Workin Working Capital Loon has been sanctioned for Rs ﬂ 000 Lakhs from other partics carrying interest @ 16% p.a. {Approx), The 10121 tenure of the loan is 18 months.
The sbove loans is secured against the senior, secured, first 1

g 2 ive chorge over all th current assels of the Group & personal guarentes of the directors,

{b) The Secured Working Capiw) Loan has been senctioned for Rs.[1,200 Lakhs from ctber pasties corrying interest @ 15.50% p.a. (ﬁppmx)u The. 1ola| tenure of the loan is 18
monthe. The sbove Joans is secured ageinat the senjor, secured, first rankms. floating, exclusive charge over all the current assels ofﬂm Qroup. sy,

-
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Muha‘wira Enterprises Private Limited

{
Notes forming p

- U15492HR2012PTCO47234)

3  Trade Payables

art of Consolidated Financial Statements

Asat

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

As at

Dues of inicro emtorprises and small cterprises 48,79 1297
Dues of creditors other than micro eerpriecs and small eotetprises 624.46 333.25
Total . §71.25 J46.22

Note: Bascd on the information available with the Group, the balance dup to micro and small enterpises as defined urdes the MSMED Act, 2005 in the curvent ycar_is Rs: 46.79 Lakhs
{Previous year Rs. 12,97 Lakhs) which comprise amounts outstanding Fof not more than 45 days as at Balance Sheet dale and no intorest during the year has been paid or is payable under

the tcrms of the MSMED ae:,_zons‘

Trade Payables agelng schedule as on 31st March, 2022

Outstendlug for following perlods from due date of payment

Particalars !
: Less than | Year  1-I yeurs -3 Yerrs More than 3 Years Total
() MSME i 467 - . . 479
(ii) Others . i 586.50 9.6% 15.55 12.72 624.46
{iif) Disputed Ducs- MSME Co . i - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues- Oihers - - - -
Total : m” 9.69 1558 1172 67025
i
Trade Payables agelng schedule as on st March, 2021 [
- |
Particulars i Outstanding for following perinds from due date of payment
; Less than | Year  §-2 years 23 Years More than 3 Years Total
!
(i) MSME 12.97 - - - 12.97
(ii) Others ’: 20171 8.52 426 876 1325
(iif) Digputed Dues- MSME - . R . R
{iv) Disputed Dues- Others - - . . N
Taotal Md.68 2852 4,16 876 35,22
9 Other Current Llobilities Asat Agat
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Stawtory ducs 68.07 5278
Advance from Cuslomer 35.18 20.00
Advapce from Dircctors 041 -
Employce dues 59.43 4.72
Security Deposits Reccived 2114 23.7%
Onber payables 54.77 26.59
Total : 243.00 127.88 |
10 Short-term provisions : As at Asal
: March 31, 1021 March 31, 2021
Provision for Employee Denfits : ' '
=], TiTHTY 16.38 889
Compensaled absences 11,9 (7.33
Provizion for others - 40.00
Total 2134 6621
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
{CTV - UL5492HR2012PTCO47234)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

12 Non-Current Investments . _ As at As Bt

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Jnvesiment [n Equity Jastruments

3} In Associate Company
Unquoted Pully Pald up
50 (.Y, NIL ) Equity share fully paid up @ JPY 2,00,000/- per shiare (100 JPY ~ 67.42) in Blue Tokai Coffes Japan 67.42
(Including Goodwill of Rs, 67.421ckhs (P.Y. NiL)

Add: Shars In Pos1 Acquisition Profit! {Loss) of Associate

) 6742 -
i Total §7.42 -
Aggregate of quoted [ ts and morket value tlmeof - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 4742 -
o 13 Deferred tax Assei ( Net) : __Asat__ Asat
Deferved Tax Asels H
on Timing differsnce on depreciation and amortisationof tangible & intangible assels . 209.12 496.87 |
' on Provison Tor Grawity & © ted ab 42.6% 1518
o0 Can-y{orwnrd losses & Unabsotbed depreciotion ! 585.38 -
Net Deffered Tax Asiel i 837.19 512.05 |
14 Long Term Loans & Advances . ! . As at Asal
'- March 31,3022 | Mavch 31,2001 |
Unsecured, Considered good i .
Cepital Advances 58.03 118
Total T 58.03 T.18
15 Orher Now-Current Assels ‘ As at As at
. ; Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ungecur: nsldered pond !
Security Deposits i 336.39 26586
Fixed deposit haviog maturtty more than 12 mouths : 398 : 542
Tolal : ! ) 39037 27118
.: 16 Current Invesimenis i As ot As at
2 March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
; Tnvestment in Mututal Funds
: Units of DSP Ultra Short Fund - 498.31
[No. of Units- NIL (PY -17.886.955), NAV- NIUPYZ &54. 31’23) .
MV- NIL (PY-3,10,54,955.61)
Total - 498.83
i . 17 Invenioties As ut As Bt
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
. Raw Materials : 571.03 29714
; Stock In Trade ' . : 4095 451.24
i Stack of Packing Materials ‘ 48597 7898
Total 1,466,719 §17.36
(Raw material includes Goods in brensit Rs. 82.85 in CY (12 24 inP¥n
; (Stock in Trade inchuides Goods in transit Rs. $1.64 in CY (65.71 in PY))
' {Pocking Material includes Goods in bransit Rs. 0.73 in CY (15.93 4n PY)
i -!
' 18 Trade Receivables As at As at
. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good : 583.22 3510
Total

l . : £83.22 331,11




. ' Mubavra Enterprises Private Limited
: : (CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

Trade Repclvnbhes agetng schodule as on 31st Murch, 2022

87

' : . Particulers

Cutstanding for followlng perlods from due date of paymeat

g3 Thané ¢ Moaths- . ¥ Totsl
Not Due l..e;: onths 1 Veur 1-2¥esnn 2-3Years More than 3 Yeary
I
e e s et et — =
i) Considered Good 269.04 | 20842 24.04 45.68 1771 [7.95 58322
{i) Considered Doubtful - - - - - - -
ut o H
() Considered Good B - - - - - -
{i) Considered Doubiful - - - . - _ -
Tatal 269.04 . 208.82 24.04 45,68 17.71 17.95 581,22
Trade Receivables upelng schedule as on 33 March, 2021 _
Partloulars . i _ Outstauding for fullowing perivds from due date of payment _
Not Due LesgThawé 6 ’“‘"“?“ T 1-IYers -3 Years More than 3 Years Total
Months 1 Yeir -
_k: — m—
Undispuled Trado recejvables .
{i) Considered {oed 26,59 135.65 58,64 49.93 19.89 t0.40 5L
(i Considered Doubiful ' - : . . - - .
: ' u Ivables :
- (i) Considered Good - . . - B
i) Congidered Doubtful . - . . - . . -
Total 26,59 . 185.65 58.64 49.93 19.89 . 1040 =L
;
o 19 Cash and Bank Balonces E As at Ag#l
; _ March 31, 2022 March 11, 2021
i : Cash and Cash Equivalents
i Cash in hand 336 039
: Balances with Banks in Curient Account ' 299.6% §4.63
: 30308 5402
Utlier Bank Balancey
Balances with bank held as Fixed Deposits 1,574.04 S 41230
: (having matorizy more than 3 months but Jess than 12 morihs)
: . - | 1,574.04 4.0
! Tusal T 137709 47132
——— pg—

20 Short Term loans sud advances

As ol

As al

‘onsiderod

Moarch 31, 2022 .

March 31, 2021

, Unggeure :
: Advance 10 Supplier for Gioods & Services 480,72 1875
Losn und sdvance 1o employees 18,46 17.18
Treptest Aciounts 573 in
Balance with Government Authorities 317.28 [RENE]
| . Propaid Expense 48.72 ~ 5.60
L Total §70.91 316.09
21 Odher Current Assets i As wt As ot
— : _March 31. 2022 March M. 2021
Oiher Receivables §43 043
53Uy Congid .,
Security Ueposits 39.6% -
Totnl 48,13 0.43
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

12 Revenae from operation For the year ended For the year ended
Mapeh 31,2087} WMarch 31,3031 |
Sale of Coflee and other items 1.396.19 4.096.50
Total Té%.m 4,096.50

1} Oiher Income

| For the year ended

For the year ended

March M, 2022 March 31, 2421
Interest Income 2061 16.97
Income from Mutual Funds 2200 8.83
Miscellaneous Income 4]1.04 8.46
Total £3.65 34.26

24 Cost of materlals eonsumed

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2022

Inventory at the beginning of the year

LA

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Raw Materials 297,14 344,58
Packaging Materiuls 78.98 76.72
376,12 42330
Add ; Purchases
Raw Materials 2,7132.66 1.158.97
Direct Expenses 66,11 4542
Packaging Materials 49146 26272
3,290.23 1.462.11
Less: Inventory at the end of the vear
Raw Materials 5710} 0714
Packaging Materials 485.97 78.98
1L057.00 316.42
Total . 2,60%.35 1,514.29 |

25 Purchascs of stuck ln Trade

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Purchases of Stock in Trade 521.93 375,33
Total 521.93 37533 |

26 Changes I lnventorles of finlshed goods and work In progess and Stock In Trade

For the year ended

For the yeor snded

March 31, 2022 March 3, 2021 |
I tory af the heginning of the year
Stock kn Trade 451.24 290.73
451.24 290,73
Less: Inveniory at the end of the year
Steck Tn Trade 409.79 431,24
409.79 45124
Chiauge in Inventories 41.43 (160.51)
27 Employce Beneflt Expenses For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 Maysch 31‘ 2021
Salaries ond Wages 200312 £,201.82
Counbribution to Provident end other funds 2486 44.79
Stoff Welfare . 6.68 idl
Expenses on Employee Stock Oplion Scheme {Refer Noke -35) 166.21 -
Tobll . 2,100.87 1.250.02

28 Finance costs

For the year ended

For the yesr ended

Tuterest Expense

March 31,3032 §

March 31, 2029

interest on Borrowings 12833 70.26
Other Borrowing Cost 41.78 2597
Total 170,09
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

2% Qther Expenses For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2032 | March 31, 2021
Aggregator service charge ' 56492 | 27176
Business Promolion and training Expenses . 35338 208.52
Freight outwards and Transporfion 195.65 164.02
Power znd Fue) . 196.32 112.63
Rem ' 93515 48543
Cofe expenses 11515 54.53
Legal & Professionnd Fees 64.53 34.88
Website and Softwere Expenses .46 45.45
Repair and maintenonce 60.69 41,59
G3T Eupenses ) 6.99 20.61
VAT Expenses 432 -
Insurance Expenses 3c.67 38.19
Merchant charges 2745 23,83
Fines{ asset discarded - ) . - : 22.50
Trovelling, Conveyanue & Accomodation 48.61 20.57
Telephone & Communication Bxpenss 17.58 i4.20
Bank Charges ' 5.08 10.93
Bad Delts : 4741 9.38
Listing Fees - ) 872t . -
Offtice Expenses . : 8.08 384
Prinling & Sttionery (%) 165
Rates & Toxes 3848 18.60
- Desiguing : : 2.00 -
Miscellaneous Expensc: : 5178 43.87
Tots) - 285518 1,651.99
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Muhavrs Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR20I 2PTU4T234)
Notes fornaing part of C lidated Fh fa) Stat |

{Amaunt in Rk, Lakhe)

M Relaind Parly isclwiurd

- %) Numw of Ralsted gparthes und nyture of dps Wi Aham dring the yeaT/pravivws year:
Hawre oF rebatlanihly Mams of Ralvied Pariy
. Jaind Wenare Orlgamd Dripbag Privato Limivd
! AR to Company Bluz Tekai Coffer Iupan. ,
' . Foy Mankgomeal Puarwn Malthew Joseph Chitharanjan
i Ctwitiophus Knlowty
' ‘Nameais Ashans

| . Tonuarpothl Kobork
: U] Trawsscilenr duriog the yesr with ralubed piriler

s ot Venture Anmntiuie Ky Muangeman! Ferina
Fartieden . Yiar anded Your andal Yoar vodid Yaw ended Year eoded Yeur anind
|I 31 March 2012 A1 March 2881 1 Mareh 2022 31 March 1011 3 March 332 M March 2L
) Renuunerstion - . . - [ZET] [IEH
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Muhavra Entcrprises Private Limited
: {CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Cousolidated Financial Staterents

: {Amount in Rs, Lakhs)
: 15 Employee Beyefits '

The disclosures required under Accounting Standard 15 “Employec Bencfits”, the disclosures as defined in the Accounting Standard are gwen below related

1

0 holding company as there is no mployee benefits payable in subsidiary company and .Ioam Venture:

1in, tion Pl

Defined contribution plan recognized and debited 10 1he Consolidated Statemenit of Profit and Loss are as under:

Particulars Year ended 31 March, 2022 Vear ended 31 March, 2021
A Employer’s contribution to provident fund o 82,54 $1.82
B. Employer’s conlribution 1o siate plan
i} Employee state insurance 16.49 -

Defipet fit Pl

The holding company is providing the Compensaled Absence and Gratuity as defined benefits plans, The subsldmry company and Joint Venture has not
naintained any Gratuity Fund or made any contribution to any recognized fund,

The preseat value of obligation is determined based on actusrial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as

giving rise to additional unil of employee benefit entillemetit and measures cach uml separately 10 buil build up the final obligation.

Change In the prescnt value of defined ODLE ligation

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Compensated
Absence
p—

Gratuity .

Compensated
Absence

Gratuity

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of year

22.03

36.34

Interest cost

122

.01

Fast service cost

Current service cost

38.18

13.53

22.08

16,34

Benefits payd

(161}

{1.30)

Acluaria) (guin) £ loss on obligation

4.43

- 49.29

Presect value of oblipalion as at end of vear

64.27 |

96.92

22,05

36.34

Change in Fair Value'of Plan :&?sets

Fair valuc of plan asséts o1 the begim ung of th_y_-.ar

Iixpected rerum on plin assets

Lontnbunons

Bencﬁ'ipaid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

Achuarial (loss)fﬂin on plan assels

et Asset{Liabifity) Recopnised in the Balance Sheet

Preseut value of abl igation as at the end v f the year

Faic value of plaa assets at the md of the year

Tunded stams

Excess of sctual gver estimated
gradd ol —

[Unrecognized actuarinl {ginsy Josses

Nex (liubi;q)iassets recognized in Balance Sheet

64,27

99.92

22.05

36.34

Current f Non Current Bi furgnuon

Current oblipation

il.96

10.38

17.33

8.89

Nox Current oblisatioh

52.32

$9.54

4.72

2745

Net (liability)/assess recoenized in Balance Sheat

64.28

99.92 1

22035

36.24

Expense recounised in the Stalement of Profit & Loss

Current service cogt

38.18.

13.58

22.05

Past sorvice cost

Interes) wost

1,22

201 {

Tixpected return an plan dssets

Met sctnarial !gamjl 10zs 1e ized i the vear

443

49.20

Expenses recognized in the Slatement of "rof‘ t and Loss.

43.83

64.38

22.05

36,34

Actudrinl assunplions

Discount Rate

510 %o

5.10 % poa.

- 5,54 % Pra.

554 % p.a.

Expecwd Rate of incremse in compensation tevei

10%p.a.

l-

10 % p.a.

10 % p.s.

10 % p.a.

mraghk Assumption -

. Mortality
Retirement oge

TALM
{2012-14)

AL
QU12-14)

- TALM
(2012-14)

TALM
(2012-14)

5%

33

58

Atl.rmm\lwnhdr\‘!ul ate {34) ~ upto 58 )n:ars

19.28%

19.28% -

60%

58
60%

.The esnmatcs of fiture increase in compensauan levels, considered in actuarial valuauon. take account of inflation, seniority, promolions and other relevant

factors such as sipply and demand.in the employinent market, Discount rate is based on the gross redemption yield 031 medium to Jong term r:slc free
mvea.unmtr The tesm-of the risk fiee investimems has (0 be consistent with the estisated term of benafit obligations.




Mubavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)

Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Staicments

36 Earning Per Shure

92

{Amount in Rs, Lakhs}

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Ansunt in Rupees) (Amount in Rupces)
Face Value uity share ' s 10 ) ) 10
prormmsl;:::hmim—e'fo ordinary “harcholder " (12:33,06072) (7,16,16,829)
Weighted avernge mumber ofordw Shares 14,496 14,496
|[Eurning per share (Basic) (8,506,213 - (4,340.45}
Profit/{1ass) atirtbutable to ordinery shareholdar {1:2,33,06,022) {7,16,16,329)
Weighted aw:'aé_ﬁumbcr of ardinary Shares 14496 14,496
Weighted averags number of potertial equity Shares 13,958 3810
TTotal weighted averape nuraher of equity Share for DFS __28454 24,306
Earnw- pev share (Diluted) ~ - (4,333.60) (2,946, 47)

The Enfity's Ezcnings Per Share (BPS) is delerniined based on the net profit auributable to the shareholders' of the Eutily, Basic eamings per share is
computed usiug liv: weighted average numbar of sliares outstanding during the year. Diluted eamings per share is compaied qsmg the weighied average
number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares outsianding during the year including share options, excapt where the result woukl be snti-
dilutive. The {ompany has not cousidered effect of dividend on 0.001% Compulsarily Convertible prcfercnc\, share (CCPS) issued in 7Y 2021-22 while

-.alcumt'ng diluted vaming per shave.

37 I:mployu stocl Option Su.hemc

CThe Holdmg{ompan) initiated the "Employec Stozk Op(wn Scheme 2017" for all chg:hlc employees in pursuance oflhc special resolutlou approved by the
starcholders in the Annual General Mecting snd as amended on 2™ April, 2021, The scheme covers all directors and employeds {excep’ promaiers of those
beionging v (e promoier’s group, independent divectors and direstors whe <illier by himsel or through his relatives or through any body corperate, directly
o |nd|recty hoids moze than 10% of the oustinding Shares of the Holding Company). Under the Scheme, the Boardof Direclors, administers the Scheme and
grons sto-.k options w clighle directors ot employtm of the Holding Company. The Corrumitlee dstermines the employees cligible for ceceiving the ovtions
and the rumber of options to be granited subjest to overail limit of 824 equity shares of & face value of Rs. 10 each ottstanding at any poimt of time, The
visting period of eny cpliot granted shall not be gn‘:atcr tham forty eight monl.hs from lhc daté of the grant of aption. The Board decided the exercise price of

¥10 pér equity share of T 10 cach.

The Fair value at granf date is determined using Intcinsic Value method, which takes into account exercise p'rioe and ruarkes price.

I-'oilo-_.viqg Ewployee Slock oplion schame nrvangement,

Option Serizs Number Grant date Expiry Date Exereise Price Irinsic value al
grant date -
BSOP 2017 . 346 23-04.2021 23-04-2022 10 51,566
Dring the year no sharc opligns have been exercised by the employecs.
Movaments a share options during the year
: Particulars For the year ended - . Farthe yrar ended ,
3st Mnrch, 2022 31, March, 2021
\ Rumbar of I Exercise price Numiber of ™ | Bxercise ]Jll'iCl.'
: Optlons {iptions
Balsues st bepinning of year ' - ] . . -
Granted during the year 346 10 - -
Eaxereised durinjz the year . : N - -
Fxpired during the year R . N N N
Baliace et end of year - 346 i 1w -
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
38 Earning and expenditures in foreign Currency (On accrual basls)

Earning in (orelgn currency Year ended 31 Margh, 2022 Year ended 33 March, 2021
Export of goods (FOB value) : 53.56 22.27
Total . 51.56 22._27
Expenditure in foreign currency .
Purchase of stotk-in-irade and packing snaterial . 175.30 222.23
| Mochinery and equipment - 33.1% 5.76
Software 18.89 . 13.37
Qther expenses 18.23 45,32
Total 245,61 286.68
CIF ¥Yalue of Import .
|Purchase of Fixed Assels 0.13 41.55
[mport 6f Goods 2047 7.25
Total 20.60 48.79

39 Secgment reporting

The Group has identified two primary reporting scgments based on nawre of products sold viz.Coffec and other items & Merchandise. The information
regarding secondary reporting segments based on products/ services is not available,

Segment Revenue Year ended 31 March, 2022 Year ended 31 March, 2021
Sale of coffee - 4,634.09 2,700.53
Sale of merchandise and other items . 2,762.10 1,39597
, Total _7,396.19 4,096.50

Note: Details of segment assets, liabilites, expenses have not been given as the same is not seperately identifiable.

40 The figures for the corresponding previous ycar have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary, to make them comparable,
1i . _ 41 Analytical ratios are not relcvant at the Consolidated Financial Statement lovel and hence not disclosed here.

42  Additional Regulatory Information :
i No lmmovable Property are beld by the Group as on the date of balanee sheet.
i The Properly Plant & Equipment and intangible assets has not been revalued during the current financial year 2021-22.

iis  During the period, the company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of Joans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related partics,
iv. The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

v The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
vi  The Group has no transactions with any eolapany struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Compaties Act, 1956,
vii There are 2 charges of holding company to be registered as in case of veliicle loan gencrally bank is not asking for the same except that there were not any
charges or satisfaction yel 1o be registered with Registrar of Companies as on the date of balanee sheet,
i " viii As per provision of section 135 of Companies Act, the provision of Corporate Social Responsibility arc not applicable to the Group.
ix The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto cutrency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

The Group has not received any fund from any person ot entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Group shali ;

: (a) direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or cnlities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
P Beneficiaries);or
{b) provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
% The Group has not advanced or loaned or irvested funds to any ofher person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
* the Intermediary shall:

i (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries); or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate'Beneficinries.

As per our Repont of even date attached \ G
For Vinod Kumar & Associates

o[@/q on hehalf o Bard of D,Acﬁari
) R

Namrata ana
(Director) ' - {Director}
DIN : 06368646 DIN : 06368654
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT g | !

To the Members of _
Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Muhavra Enterprises Private :
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Standalone Balance sheet as at 31" March 2022, and the
Standalone Statement of profit and loss, and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

. and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March 2022, and
its loss and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the

~ Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

- responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially ineGpsistes
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or othefigis

materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude th
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We havih

this regard.
Head Difice: Corporate Difice: ( Nahru Mlace: | Mumbai: | Karol Bagh: Ghandlnarh
4695 Brij Bhawan GLDBAL BUSINESS SQUARE 503, Chiranjiv Tower. 305-306, 3" Floor, 174455, Triveni Plaza, - BCO-705. 1st Poor,
27A Ansari Road Building Mo. 32, Sector 44, J 43, Neheu Place Barnet, Palladium, Burudwara Agad, NAC Manimajra
Darya Ganj, Institutionet- Area Gurgaon, | " New Defii 110019, India Behind Express Zone, Karol Bagh, Chandigarh-160101. India
New Delhi-110002. INDIA 122003 India +91-11-2622-3712, OF Western Express New Demi- 110005 Tel : +91-172-507-7789.
Tel : +81-11-2328-8101 Tel : +81-124-4786-200 26205933 Highway, Goregaon (East), | Tel: +81.11-4504-4453 1 5077-790

Mumbai - 400063




Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are respousible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, loss
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error. ' '

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company ot to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that -
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgm

ent and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: : '

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those tisks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemnal
control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that -
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Ev'flluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accountng and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
fo modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have.sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were nccessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
_ far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and Standalone
Statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written repi‘esentatiohs received from the directors as on 31st March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March
2022 from being appointed as a director in ferms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) Being a Private Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 464(E) dated 5th June, 2015,
as amended by Notification No. GSR No.583(E) dated 13th June, 2017, issued by the Central

Government of India, reporting requirement prescribed in clause (i) of sub-sectio
143 of the Act is not applicable; and - -
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g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.

il

1ii.

iv,

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education &
Protection Fund by the company; and

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,

including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

o directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Company or

¢ provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries,

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities

("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall: _ :

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or

on behalf of the Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the

representations under sub clause (iv) (2) and (iv) (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed

final dividend for the year. Accordingly, reporting in this regard is not applicable to the
Company.
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3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors® Report under section 197(16).

The company is not a public company, accordingly provision of Section 197(16) of the Act is not
applicable to company. _ ' :

L For Vinod Kumar & Associates
i Chartered Ag gllmtants

. Partner

. M. No.: 511741
UDIN: 24 51\ FUIERPCY Y 2HY
Date: 26™ September, 2022
Place: New Delhi



Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the company on the
Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31% March, 2022, we report that:

) . - | o
(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full pasticulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained pmper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a programme of phiysical verification of its
Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased periodical manner, which in our

opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its business. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not hold any
immovable property. Thus, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and
equipment (including Right of Use assets) or Intangible assets or both during the year.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the

Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) -

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management are appropriate. The company has maintained the proper records of inventory. No

discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stock and the book records that were
10% or more in the aggregaie for each class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. Thus, paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the order is not applicable.

(iii)
(@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the company has not provided any guarantee or security to

companies, firms, limited liability partnership during the year. The company has made

investment during the year. Hence the reporting under 3(iii)(a)(A), 3(111)(3)(B), 3(ii)e),
3(iii)d), 3(111)(e) & 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.




(iv)

W)

(vi)

(vii)
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the. audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the Investment made in associate company are
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 & 186 of the Act, with

~ respect to the loans, investments, securities and guarantees made to the extent applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the
year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

- The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section

148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the Company.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of accounts in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year
by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, dufy of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31% March 2022 for a period of more than six months from
the date they become payable, except for the following dues:

Amount
N f St
| ame of Statute (in Lakhs)
Employees’ Provident Fund and Rs. 1.73
Miscellaneous Act, 1952 . T
Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 Rs. 1.82

(b) According to the information and explanations giiren to us, there are no dues of Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess or other material statutory dues which

have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any disputes, except for
the following due: ' '
Nature of- Nature of | Period to Demand Paid Forum where
Statute the dues | which the Amount Amount | Dispute is pending
: amount relates | (Rs.in (Rs.in
. lakhs) lakhs)
Income tax Act, | Income ,
1961 Tax AY.2016-17 |Rs.153.69 |Nil
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(vili)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinathn of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the income-
tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. :

(ix) , o
(@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
‘other lender. ' :

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the Standalone balance sheet of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company during the year.

{€) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the Standalone balance sheet of the company, we report that company has not taken any funds

from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary, associate
or joint venture,

- (f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the Standalone balance sheet of the company, we report that, company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary, associate or joint venture.

x) - |
(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable, '

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has complied with provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 while issuing 0.001% compulsory convertible preference shares during the year.
The funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

(xi) |
(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in

Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12)
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with ¢
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.




(xii)
(xii1)
(xiv)

(xv)

(i)

(xvii)
(xviii)

(xix)
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(c) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and acoorFling to the
information and explanations given to us, the company has not received any whistle blower
complaints during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not have an internal audit system
and is not required to have internal audit system as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and
hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the

'Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
“Order is not applicable. ‘

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 923.61 lakhs in the financial year 2021-22 and Rs.
595.55 lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year 2020-21, :

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)
of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and _
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that
this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx)  In our opinion and according fo the information and explanations giveli to us, there is no amount
required to be spent by the company under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act,
- 2013. Accordingly, clause 3 (xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Vinod Kumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

M. No. 511741

UDIN: 22SNFHIBERC Y)Y 2F4Y
Date: 26" September, 2022

Place: New Delhi
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PT @47234)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)}

Particulars Notes As at March 31,2022 As 8t March 31,2021
A.EQUITIY AND LIABILITIES ) ' '
1. Sharchoiders’ funds
(a) Share Capita) 2 3.1 265
(b} Reserve and Surplus 3 6,347.21 - 3,648.21
6,350.32 ;@so.sg
2. Non Curvent Ligbilitics
{2) Long-term borrowings 4 nn 36.82
(b} Other Long term liabilitics ) [2.84 -
(¢} Leng-term provisions 6 14].86 3217
17742 68.99
3. Current Liabilltles
(a} Short Term Botrowings ki 1,037.08 517.03
(b) Trade Payables 8
-Dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises 46,79 1297
-Dues of creditors other than micro entergrises and small enlerprises 613,95 33200
() Other Current Liabilitics 9 240.71 12931
{d) Short-teem provisions 10 2234 66.22
1,960.87 1,058,03
TOTAL $,438,61 | 4,777.88
B. ASSETS
1, Non-Curvent Agscts
(a) Property Plant and Equipnwent & Intangibls Assots
() Property, Plant & Squipments 11{A) 2,123.23 1,410.50
(ii) Intangible Asscts 11{B) 105.25 45.03
(i) Capital Work in Progress 11(C) - 3065
(i) Intangible asscts under development 11{D} 42.60 17.29
{b) Non-Curscent Investments 12 9742 30.00
(¢} Deferved Tax Assets (Net) 13 83892 513.00
(d) Long Terin Loans & Advances 14 58,03 7.18
{d) Other Non-Current Assels 15 390.37 271.28
) 3,662,582 2,325.33
2. Curvent Assets
{a) Corrent Investments 16 - 498 83
(b) laventories 17 "1,452.42 #2051
{¢) Trade Receivables 18 583,99 35110
(d) Cash and Bank Bolances 19 1,874,56 47038
(¢) Short-term loans and advances 20 866.69 31120
{6} Othzr current asscts n 48,13 0.43
4,825.79 2,453,585
TOTAL §,488.61 4,777.88

Nutes 1 to 41 form an integral pavt of these Financial Siatements

As per our Report of even dzte attached
For ¥inod Kumpr.& Associates
Chartercd Seaupans

P

Date: 2 L
Place: New Delhi

DIN : 06363646

DIN : 06368654




105

Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Not For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars ote March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1 [Encome
Revenue from Operations 22 7,380.90 4.097.35
Other Income 23 86.22 34.26
Total Income (A) 7,467.12 4,111.61
2 |Expenses:
Cost of Materials Consumed 4 2,609.00 1,524.66
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 15 521.93 366.95
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods work-in-progress and
Stockein-Trade 26 4145 {160.51)
{Employes Benefits Expense 27 2,199.99 1,250.01
Finance Costs . 28 170,10 96.23
Depreciation and Amortization expense 11 627.01 494.15
Other Expenses 29 2,848.27 1,649.82
Total Expenses (B) 9,017.75 5,221.32
3 |Profit{{Loss) before tax (A) - (B) (1,550.63) (1,089.71)
4  [Tax Expense
Current tax - -
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement - -
Deferred tax (325.93) (33&07}%
Profit/(Loss) after tax (1,224,70) (70%.64)]
Earning Per Equity Share (in Rupees) 3
" Basic (8,448.51) (4,895.41)
Diluted 4,304.20) (2,919.60)
Notes 1 to 41 form an Integral part of these Finaneial Statements
As per our Report of even date attached
For Vinod Kwuinar & Associates
Matthew
{Director) (Directot)
DIN : 06363646 DIN : 06368654

Place: New Drelhi
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - UL5492HR2012PTC047234)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

{(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

: For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 Margh, 2022 31 Mareh, 2021
A Cash Flow from opecating activities:
Profit/{Loss) before tax (1,550.63* (1,089.71)
Adjustments for
Depreciation 627.01 494,15
ESOP 166.21 -
Interest Expense . 170,10 96.23
Property, Plamt & Equipment Written off 22,50
(Profit)/loss on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - 0.07
lmerest Income (42.51) (25.79)
Operating Profit befove working capital changes (629.51) {502.54)
Adjustment for:
Ingrease / (Decrease) in Trade Payabks kN 67.07
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 110.90 {5.27
Increase / (Decrease) in long-term provisions 108,70 3217
Increase / {Decrease) in long-lerm Liablities 1284 -
Increase / (Decrease) in short-term provisions 43.39) 66.22
Decrease / (Increase) in Inventories (631.81) (106.59))
Decrease / (Increase} in Trade Receivables (232.89) {53.58)
Decrease / (Increase) in Long Term Loan and Advances {50.84)/ (41.44),
Dexrease / (Increase} in Short Term Loan and Advances {555.49) {73.51)
Decrease / (Increaae) in Other Non Current Assets (119.09)
Pecrease / (Increase) in Other Current Assels (47.70)) 24.70
Cash Generated/ (Used In) Operating Activities (1,132.48) (90.22)
TVax {expense)f Refund - -
Net Cash Inflow / (Qutflow) from Opernting Activities {1,762.3%) !592.76! |
B Cuash Fiow from [nvesting Activitics:
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipnent & Entangible Assets - 4.68
Purchase of Propersy, Plant & Equipment & Intangible Assets {1,401.23) (376.81)
Sale/(Purchase) of Investments 431.4] (528.83)
Interest Received 42.61 2579
{Investments) Realisation in Bank deposits (L,151.74) (422.30)
Net cash Inflove J(Qutllow) from Investing Activities (2,078.96) {1,297.45
C Cash Flow from Financing Activitles:
Proceeds/ (Repayment) from Borrowings, Net 505,94 (25172720
Interest paid ) (170,30 (96.23)
Jzsue Of Shares .45 0.75
Security Premium Money Received 3,757.50 3,857.65
Debentures application money received pending for ailotment - .
Net cash Inflow / (Ouiflow) from Financing Activitles 4,093.80 1,244.45
Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 25245 {64577
Cash and Cash equivalents (QOpening Balance) 48.08 693.84
Cash and Cash equivalents (Clasing Balance) 30052 | 48,08

Nates 1to 41 form an integral part of these Financlal Statements

Membership No 3 TH4 T
Date : l&'ﬁ
Place : New Delhi

fa -

Makhey
{Director)
DIN 1 06368646

(( oF and on Behalf'SS He Board of
{

'0 - /.
Y

{Director)
DIN : 06368654
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements
Significant Accounting policies and notes on accounts

Corporate Information .

Muhavea Enterprises Privete Limited is & private limited compeny incorporaied on 26 September, 2012 under the Companics Act, 1956 in Ind.i& The
registered office of the company is loacted at D-173, Sushant Lok-l, Gurgaon, Haryana-122002, India, The company is cngaged in the _thv._: business of
manufactoring, processing, distributing, marketing and sclling goods related to speciality foods and beverage products, including, but not limited to coffee
products (beverages, roasted beans, coffee powder and coffee products), chocolate products, and providing services such as saleable drink in a kiosk format ot
via delivery for personal and commgreial use, and any other business that may be conducted from fime to time, throughout India and overseas.

Basis of Preparation and presentation

Statcment of compliance

These financial siatements are prepared in accordance with e Generally Accepied Accounting Principles in India {*Indian GAAP") to comply with the
Acoowniting Standards specified wnder Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companics Aet, 2013,

Functional & prescutation currency -
These financial statements are presented in Indion Rupers (2), which is also the Company’s functional eurrency. All amounts have been rounded off 1o the
nearest lakhs or decimal thereof, unless atherwise indicated.

Basis of measurement

The financial stetemenis have boen prepared under the historicat cost convention on acerual basis except for Defined benefit obligation which have been
measured al fair value amount,

Current and non-curremt classification .
The Company presents asscts and Habilities in the balance sheel based-on current/ pon-current classification,
An agsct is iecated as current when it is; '
- Expeeted Lo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
- Held primarily for the purpose of irading,
- Expeeted to be realised within twelve months after the reporting peried, or
- Cash or cash cquivalent unkess restricied from being exchanged or used to sctrle a ability for at icast 12 months after the reporting peried.

Al other asees are classificd a3 non-current.

A Yiability is curvent when:

- It is expected 1o be settied in normal operating eyvele,

- 1t is held primanily for the purpose of trading,

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no wneonditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilitics as non-current,

Delcrred tax assets and Fabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilitics.

The operating eycle is thic time between *he acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
Iwelve months as its aperaling cycle,

Use of estimates and judgements *

The preparation of financial statements in confurmity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the appiication of accounting palicics amd weported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Allhough these cstimates me besed on the best
knowledge of current event and actions, so aciaal results may differ from thesc estimates,

Estimates and naderlying assumptions are reviewed on s ongoing basis. Revisions to apcounting cstimates are recognised in the period in which the cstimates
ure revised and in any future penods affected.

Changes In ing polici
The Company has consistently applied the accounting palicics set out below to 2l perids presented in these finanoial statements.

Signifieant accountinj: polocics

Inventories )

Inventory is velued at the lower of the cost or net realizable value, | :

Cost of iuventorics comprises of all cosls of purchase price, dutivs and 1axcs {other than refundable duties and taxes), cost of couversion and ather cosls
incunied in bringing the inventorics 1o their prescnt location and condition. '

Cast of raw material, packing materia), trading material and finished foods are determined on First in First out basis.

The compatison of cost and net realizable vatue §

s made on un iiem by item basis, The Company periodically sssesses the inventory for obsoleseence ond slow
maving stocks. . -
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
Lo ' (CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234) _
Lo Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Notel Significant Accounting policies and notes on accounts

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with bank. Cash cquivalent are short 1erm, highly liquid Investments that arc readily convertible into kn}om
amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant changes in valve, The company considers highly liquid investments as 8 cash equivalent only when it has
a short maturity of three month or less from the date of acquisition.

-{¢) TInvesiments

Investments that are readily realizeble and intended to be held for not more than 2 year are classified as current invesiments. All ather invesiments arc
classified as non current investments,

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value .

Non current Investments are valued at cost of acquisition. The carrying values of non current investments are reduced by the diminution (other than iemporary}
in the velue of investment.

(d) Propecty, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

ltems of propesty, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impaicment losscs, if any. Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment compriscs its purchase price, including import duties snd non-refundable purchase
taxes, afler deducting trade discounts and rebates, any divectly atiributable cost of bringing the item te its working candition for jits intended use and estimated
costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a sclf-construcied item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of maktials and direct labor, any other costs direstly auributable to
! .

bringing the ilem to working condition for its intended use, and cstimated costs of dismaniling and removing the ilem and restoring the site on which it is
located. ’

If significant paris of an itemn of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (nmajor components) of
property, plant and equipment, .

i Subsequent expenditure is capitatized only if it is prabable that the future economic benefits associated with the cxpenditure will flow 10 the entity.
| Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and eqnipment on 2 writicn down value method from the month in which cach asset is rcady to usc 10 allacate their
cost, net of their residual values (i.e. 5%}, over their estimated useful lives of as prescribed in Schedule [T of the companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the

assets where useful lifc is different other than those prescribed in Schedule I are used, based on technical evaluation by considering the namre & usage of
assots, expected physical wear & tear cie,

Depreciation on assets added, sold or discarded during the year has been provided on pro-rata basis.

The asscts’ residual values, estimated useful lives and dqﬁmciation method ate roviewed at the end of each reporting period, wilh the effect of any changes in
cstimate accounicd for on @ prospective basis.

Individual assets purchased during the year costing Rs 5,000 or less are depreciacd in full, in the yoar of purchase.
Derecognition of Property, Plant and Equipment

An itcm of propenty, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derccognized upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits ate
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecagnition of property, plant and equipment arc measurcd es the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the camrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when the asset is derccognised,

(¢) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Tntangible asscts arc amortized on a straight linc basis over the estimated
uscful ceonomie life, from the date that they are availabk: for use. Residual Value of intangible assels are considercd as Nil.
The amortization period and the amontization method are seviewed at cach financial year end.

; Derccognition of intangible assets

Gains or losscs arising from de-recognition of an infangible asset are recognized in the siatement of profit or loss by comparing net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assct,

(D Capital work in progress (CWIP)

“The cost of asscts not ready to put to use before the year end are disclosed under Capital work in progress. -
CWIF includes product under development, construction of cafc including material/equipment in transit or received at site For use in projects. All revenue

expenses incurred during construction period, which are exclusively attributable to acquisition/consiruction of prapenty, plant and equipment or Praducts arc
capitalized at the time of commissioning of such asscts,

{g) Impairment of Assets
At cach balance shect date, the company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, If any such indication exists, the Company

eslimates the recoverable amount. If the carrying amaunt of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the Profit and-loss
Account to the extent the earrying smount exceeds fhe recoversbls amount, LA
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234}
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Note1 Significant Accounting policies and notes on accounts

(h) Forcign Exchange Tranéaciio_ns )
Forcign currency fransactions ate accountcd at the exchange rates prevailing on the datc of the transactions.

The foreign currency denominsted monetaty assels and liabilities are reported using the closing rate and gains o losses if any, at the year end in respeet of
these assets and liabilitics, not covercd by forward confracts, arc recognised in Profit and Loss Account,

Exchange differences arising on repayment of liabititics incurred for the purpose of acquiring fixed assels are adjusted with the carvying amount of respective
fixed asscts,

Non-mongtary items denominated in foreign currency arc stated at the rate prevailing on the datz of the transaction.

(i) Revenue Recognition

Sale of Producis ; Revenuc from sale of goods is recognised when the significant tisk, rewards and owencrship of the goods have been transferred to the
customer for a consideralion. Revenue represents the net invoice value of the goods supplied and services rendered afber dedueting trade discounts and rebates,
output Goods and Service Tax (GST) and other duties.

Sale of Services ; Scrvices revenue are recognised as the service are performed. Services provided pursuant fo a contract are cither recognized over the
contract period or upon completion of the clemenis specified in the contract depending on the terms of the contract. Operating revenuss ftom the integraied

logistics services .r‘dlslnbuuon and mainiewance of vending machines are recognized when the services are rendered. Rovenues include unbilled as well as
billed amounts.

Other Income : Revenue arising from t]:c use by others of cnicrprise resources yielding interest, rayaltics and dividends is recognised only when no
significant uncertainty as 1o meuwsurabilily or collectability cxists. These revenues are recognised on the following basis:

Tnderest : on u time proportion basis taking into account the amount oulstanding and the rate applicable,
Raoyalties : on an accrual busis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agrecment.
Dividend : when the ewner’s right 10 receive payment is established.

{j) Borrowing Cosis

Bur'rowing Cost includes interest, amortisation of anciliary costs incwrred in connection with the arrangement of bomowing and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency botrowings (if any) 0 thc extent lhcy are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing cost dircetly anribuiable to the acquisitions, constmcuon ar production of an asset that ncoessarily takes a substantial period of time to gc: teady for
its intended us< or sale are capitalised ss pan of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occour.

(&} Employee bendfits expense
Short-Term Employee Denefils

The undiscounted amount of short-torm ¢mployee benefits expeoted to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees aru'moogniscd a3 an
expense during the period when the employees render the services. .

~ Post-Employinent Benelits
{A) "Defined benelit plans

The Company pays gratuity to the mployccs who have completed five years of serviee with the Company at the time of resignation/superannuation, The
gratuity is paid 15 days basic salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity A, 1972. The liability in respect of gratuity is
caleulated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread aver the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employces® services, The

gramity liability amount is unfunded and the unfunded acerued cost is recognised through a reserve in the Accounts of the Company exclusively for gratuity
payment 10 the employecs.

The Company has introduced the policy for the cncashment of compensated absences. ‘The benefit is payable when Lhe cmployee retives or Jeaves the
Company. The company is making the actuarial valuation at the Balance Sheet date 10 calculate the current service cost based on estimated number of leave
encashment, as per company policy, as per AS-15 which is charged to the statement of profit and loss of the current year and considered in arriving the 1otal
Yability at Balance Shoct date by applying appropriate discounting rat¢ and Projected Unit Credit Method. The compensated absences lisbility amount is

unfunded and the unfunded accrued cost is recognised through a reserve in the Accounts of the Company exclusively for compensated absences payment to the
cmployccs (Acturial report showing it funded)

(B) "Delined canlrlhutlon plans

Contribution 1o Provident fund, a defined contribution plan are made in accordance with the staste and arc recognized as an cxpense whed employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contribution.

Compuny Contribution to state defincd contribution plans namely Employees State Insurance are made in accordance with the statwie and is recognized as an
expense when employees rendered serviees entitling them to contribution.
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)

Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1

Note 1  Significant Accounting polleles and notes on accounls

) Taxes on income
Income taxes comprisc of current tax and dcfcn'ed 1ax,

Cummi lax is determined as the amount expected to be paid to/(recoverable from) taxation authorities, using applicable tax ratcs and tax laws.

In accordance with Accounting Slandard (AS) -22- “Accounting for Taxes on income™ Deferred tax expense or bemefit is recognised on timing differences
being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that ofiginate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods,
Diofested tax assets and liabilities are measurcd using the tax rates and tax laws that have becn enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet daie,
Defested tax assets should be recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be
available against which such doferred tax assefs can be realised. Whereas in case of wnabsorbed depreciation or cerry forward of losses under tax laws,
doforved tax assets should be recognised only to the extent that there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that suffivicnt future taxable income
will be available against which such deferred tax assels can be realised,

The Company offsets deferved tax assets and deferred tax liabilitics if it has a lcgally enforceable nght and lhcsc relate to taxes on income levied by the same
governing taxation laws.

{m) Earning Per Share (EPS)
The Company repotts the basic and diluted Earing Per Share in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 on “Earning Per Share”™,

Basic Eamning Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by weighted average number of equity sharcs ouistanding during the year.

Diluted Eaming Pet Share is caleulated by dividing the net profit or foss for the year by the weighted average aumber of equity shares outsianding during the
year as adjusted for the cffects of all dilutive potential equity shares except where the resulis are anti-dilutive,

(n)  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels

Provision is recognized when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of resoutees and a reliable estimate ¢an be
made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:
a present obligation arising from past ¢vents, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required o sentle the obligation;
a prescnt obligation atising from past cvents, when no reliable estimate is possible,

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrenee or non-oecurence of one or
mote uncertain future events not wholly within the conirot of the entity, A bricf description of the nature, pf contingent asset, and whete practicable, an estimate
of their financial effeet, at the end of reporting period is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Provisions, contingent liabililies and contingent assets ore reviewed al each balance sheet date.

(0) Sepment Reporting . .

The Company identifics segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and teturns and the internal orgunisation and management structure. The
operating segments ate the segments for which separaie financial information is available and for which operating profit / loss amounts arc evaluated regularly
by the Exceutive Management in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing perfonmance,

The accounting policies adopied for segment reporting are in fine with the accounting policies of the Company. Segment revenue, segment eXpenses, segment
asseis and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Revenuc, expensces, assets and liabilities which relaie to the Compa.uy; as 2 whole and are ot allocable to segments on reasonable basis have b;:cn inetuded
under “unallocated revenue fexpenses / assets f liabilities™,

{(p) Share-based payments

The fair value of options grantcd under Employee Stock Option Plan is recognised es an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is delermined by reference 10 the fair value of 1he options. The total expense is mcognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesling conditions are to be satisfied. Al the end of cach period, the entity reviscs its cstimates of the number of

options that are cxpecied to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the lmpacl ot‘ the rc\usmn 1o original estimates, if any, in
statement of profit and loss, with a corvesponding adjustment to equity. .
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: Mubhavra Enterprises Private Limited
‘ ’ (CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047224)
Notes forming part of Financia) Statements

{Amouni in s, Lakhs)

Fﬁhnm Caplial
Asat Asni
Partlculary March 51, 1032 March 31, 2421
. : . Humber Amount _Nuwber _ Amouwt
el Authorised
Equity Shates oT T 104 cach ) ' 2,20,000 22,00 2,20,000 2200
0,001% Compulsory Ci ibde Prefe Shercs of 2 10/~ each : 50,000 5.00 S0,000 5.00
. 3, 70,044 2780 170,000 37.00
i Icsued capitsl . -
' Equity Shares of T 19- cach 14,496 145 14,49 145
0.001% Scries A Compulsery C ible Prefe Sharcs of T 10¥- eoch 12,028 1.20 12,028 1.2
0.001% Series B Conypulsory C ible Prefc Shares of € 10/~ cach 4,537 0.45 - -
3!‘961 3.11 g.'s_n ) 2.65
Subscribed and Pald wp caplisl
Equily Shares of T 10/- cech - 14496 1.45 14,49 145
0.001% Seriey A Compttlsory Ci iblo Prok Sharca of T 1(¥- cach ' 12,028 1.2¢ 12028 1.20
0.001% Scrics B Compulsary C ible Pref Shaces of £ 10/~ each - 4,537 0.45 - -
: 31,061 3.11 26,524 1,68
7 4 Recomchiatlon uf mumber of shares Asat As at
| Mwehsim March3t,2e1 |
Number Amount Nomber Ampunt
Fqully Share - :
Sharcs cutstanding st the boginning of the year 14,496 145 ' 14,496 145
Shares issued during the year - - B -
. Shares bought back during the yoar - - - -
! Shares outstanding at the cnd of the year 14,496 .45 14,49% )45
1 [0.001% Serfes A Conspulzory Converiible P Shares
L : Shares outstanding &1 the beginning of the year 12,028 120 4,547 045
; Shares issucd during the year - - 7,481 015
: ' Shares bought back during the yeur . - - - -
I H . Sharcs outstanding a1 the end of the year 12,618 : 1.10 12,028 320]
. 1
i 0.001% Serbes B Compulsory Convertible Pref Shares
Shares outstending a1 the beginning of the year - - - -
Shares issued during the year 4,537 045 - -
Shares bought back during the year - . - .
Sharcs outsianding at the end of the year 4,837 D.45 . .
2 b} Detuils of sharehallary hulding neore Hiam 5% shares Is the conpany Asut Aiml
Mareh 31, 2022 Mareh 3, 2021
MNumber Percentage Number Parcaniags
[Equity Share —
Memrzta Asthans TA15 $3,91%] 7815 53914
Mati Chitharanjn ) 1,564 17.69%) 2,564 17.69%4)
Snow Leopard Momenium - LLP 2183 15.06% 318 15.06%|
Gowri Kirloskar 1456 10,045 1,456 10.04%]
14,818 06, 70% 14,018 96.70%
9.001% Compulsory C Prefe Shares = = =
Snow Leopard Momentum - 11 LLP ' pa 16.11%) 2669 21, 19%)
DSP Adiko Holdings Pvi. Lid. i,185 7.16% 1,186 9.86%4)
Shuchi Kothari 1398 8.40% 1.186 9.86%
Vistra ITCL {Indan) ) 134 . 8.29%| 874 T2%
. UTPL Corporak Trustces P Lid ) 1299 1.84% - -
: Z Nalivn Lab Growih Fund : 906 5A4M% - -
Eight 1 Morizen LLP 29 4.40%) 9 6.06%
Eiglt Innovale Fund | ™m A55%) 112 b.429%)
Yikramaditya Mohan Thepar Fansily Trust ) 666 4.03%| 668 5.55%
10,995 _ 66.3T% 4,084 §T.21%]|




Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIM - U15492HR2012PTCO47234)
~ Notes forming part of Finaucial Statements

(Amount in Rs. Lakhsy

2c) RIEM. Resteicton & preference of Shares
Equlvy Shares

Each holder af equily sharos is entitlod 1 one vote per shars, The Company declares and payt dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend (1F any) proposed by the Board of Dircetors is subjoct oo the approval of the
shareholders ia the cnsuing Annual Geaerad Meeting. In the event of Tiquidetion of the company, the helders of Equity shares will be entilled to ceceived all the remaining assels of th company, afiee sentemem of
liebilities and distribution of sl Prefensntin) The distributicen will be in proporion Lo the tmnber of Equily shares held by the sherce holder All the Equity Shares rank puripossu.

U,601%% Serles A Compubury Convertible Preference Sharis (CCPS)

Cach Compulsorily £ ible Pk Share issued boars an interes) rate of B.007% per antum . The tenure for redemption of Preference sharss is 20 years. The Sorics A CCPS shall be compulsorily .
ble 81 ths hon e of 323 ing that 1 Bquity Stire 16 bz issued for tath Serica A OCPS hold. The holder of the Series A COPS shall be cmiticd w reetive notics of and voie o s}l matiers st
are submitted to the voto of thi: Shareholders of the Company {including the Iwiders of Equity Shares). Holder of the Serics A CCPS will be able lo-exereisc voling rights on Ihe S¢ries A CCPS as if the same were

converied intg Equity Shares,

0.004% Serles U Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

Each Compulaorily C bt Prele Sharc issucd Bears an kst raie of 0.001% per wnaur . The Serics D CCPS shall b compulsoni iblc al the ion raio of 111 g that | Eyuiry
Shire 16 be feuod for cach Serics B CCPS held 1(x) Upon ocourunce of Instindional Funding Revad. (b) Upon cxplry of conversion date. {c} Upon happening onhc lmual Pubslic Offer {IFO), wlnchwca is carlicr.
The holdr of the Serics B CCPS shall be entitled 1o reccive notice of and vole on all matiers that ary submiticd to the vote of the Sharchelders of the Company (including the holilers of Equity Sharcs): Hebder of

. b Series B OCHS will be able t0 2xercise voring rights on the Series B COPS ua iT1he sorme were eonverted into Equity Shares.

Sobject 1o sdjutdments pruvided s peragraph Y below of Schedule ¥ of Shareholder's , the Strics B-1 CCPS shall be compulsoril ible at the ealin of 111 g that | Equity

Shore 10 be issued for 2ach Series B 1 CCP3 held: (8) upon the cccurronce of the Iusllt\.btmual Funding and. L)} upoa the exphry of the Conversivn Dalg; () upon happening of Initial Public Oﬂ'mnus (PO,
whichever is earliar, :

Dietaily of shares issusd pursuant w econcrmcl without payisent being received in cash, allotted as fuliy paid up-by way of bonus izsuea and brought back during the lest 5 yoars 1o be given for each ¢lass of shares.

v AgRreE Sh
T ) Share alloried) for conslderation viher tham cash Yeard ate No of Shuret) I
- 2920-21 201520 2618-19 21718 00417
Fauity sharc of ¥ 10 each fully paid were nlloncd W0 pursuant 1o the CS0Ps v '

A Ly the smployes withaul | being 1¢ocived in cash . - 28

Ouhor than the above nmnllonod iesues, ncither the Company has issued any sharcs pursuant fo 2 contract Wilhout payment being recefved I cash nor has there been 2ny buy-back of shares in the curment year and
prececding five yoan.

1 ¢) Detuils of Shares held Ly the promioters of {he company as on veorting dute:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Kunie of Promoters No.of Uquity Sharch % ofEquitySheret  Neuof Equity Shares % of Equicy Shacer c"““t‘;::’"‘" the
Equity Sharcs of Rs, 11) each fully pald , ) N
Nemr Asthana 7815 5391% 1818 $391%
Mait Chithatanjun 2,564 17.69% 2,564 17.60%,
Murgh 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020 i
Hawse of Promoters . No.of Equity Sharen % of Equity Shares  No. of Equity Shaves % of Equity Shares * C1onEe during e
Equity Shares of R, 10 each fully paid -
Nainrats Asthona 1815 5% 1815 5.91% .
Mot Chitharenjan 2,564

17.69% 564 17.60%




Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTCO47234)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

. Azt Asal
; March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sceurity Doposils Recelved 12.84 -
Todal 12.34 -
& Long-term provislons Asn Asan
Msreh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i_ Provision for Employes Benfits .
Gratuily 8954 2745 |
Compensated abspnces 5232 472
Total 141.56 32.17
7 Shovt Term Borvowings Asat Asal
March 31, 2432 March 31, 2021
Sepured
Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowinga {rafer Note-d {w),05)&(c)) 1165 1702
Working Capital Loon From Other Partios {refer Note-? {a)&(b)) 1,000.55 500.00
Uusecured
Warking Capilal Loan From Danks 18.87 -
Total — i 1,037.0% 517,03
(s) The Sceured Working Cepital Loan has been sanclioned for Ro. 10,00,00,000 from oiher parties carvying interest (@ 16% p.6. (Apprrox). The Wil Ipnure of (he lann is +8 months, Tho above loans is socured

i " (Amount in R, Lakhs)

3 Reserves and Surphes A1 st Asm
March 31, 2022 - March 31, 2021
Secucliles Premlum
Balance ax per the Inst Anancial atatements 594242 2.034.78
Add: Promium on issu¢ of Equity Shama ) - -
Add: Premium on issuc of 0.001% Compulsery C bk P Sharcs 3,757.50 1,857.6%
- Cloging Balance 0,699.93 S.Nﬁ
Employee stack aptlon sutstanding account
Balwnce at the commencoment of the year
Employesy’ stock comy ion exp 16621 -
Bulsnce ferred 1o {Security Premium) z Z
Balance at the end of the year 166.21 -
Surplue/(Deficli) in she statement of Frofit and Loss
Bulonoe & per lost financial stskments, (2.294.20) (1,584.59
Add: Profit(Loss) for the year 1,224.10) (709.64)
Net Frofilf {loss) in the starement of Profit and Losy 3151893 52.194.23!{
Tolel Reserves and Surpl 6,347.21 364821 |
4 Long-Term Borrowlag: As ot Anat
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Seeured
‘Term Loan from Bank (refer note (1)) - 138
Term Loan from Other Patica {reRer note (b)) 194 -
Warking Capital Loan From Other Parlies {refor note {¢)) 2078 3544
Totsl 12,71 3682

(8) Term Laan from Bank of Rs. 5,010,000 it scoured against tive vehicle fi

d. Theloan & payable in 34 equal install

of Rs. 18,0604~ cach by the exd 1571172022,

(b) Term Loan froe the other partics of Rs. 4,60,000 secursd against 1he respective vebicle fi

d. The loan is repayable in 36 manths payable in monthly installment of Rs. 16,5104 cach inchoding interest.

(¢) The Sceuced Working Cepilal Loan has been sanctioned for Rs. 44,00,000 from Other parties carrying interest @ 14% p.a. (Approx). The tote] 1enure of the losn is 48 months . The wbove loans is secured
apainst hypothocated property under sccond mnk charge over asscet financed under emeegeney credil fine gusrantee schene of the borrawer .

% Other Long 1erm lisbidities

against the senior, socured, first mnking, Aoting, cxclusive charge over all the current assels of the

& penonal g of the di

(L) The Scu_:ml Working Capilal Loan has been sanctioned fof Ra. 12,00,00,000 from other parlies camying interest @ 15.50% p.a. (Apprex), The total tenure of the loan is 18 months, The above loans is
securod against the senior, secured, firit eanking, Goaling, exclusive charge over afl the current assels of the company,
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
i ’ (CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
| Notes forming part of Fingneial Statements

(Amount i, Rs. Lakhs)

' T Trede Fayobles v ot A ar
March 31, 1012 Mavch 31, 2021
Duse of mitro enlerpriics and small enlerpri , 46,19 1257
Duea of creditons nther tham mitro enferprisea and small snterpra 613.95 33200
Total j - . 560,14 MaH7
. . Nole: Based on the ink i ilablo with the the balance duc lo miceo and smail enterprises us dofincd under the MSMED Acl, 2006 in the curreni vear s R, 46,7%- (Provious year Rs. 12.974)
i which comprise amounis gutstanding for not more than 45 days as al Balance Sheel daie and no interest during the year has been paid of s payable under ¥ae toems afthe M3MED Acl, 2004,

Trade Payables ageing schedude as on 3ist March, 2022

: Particulars . B Qatstanding for Rollowing peripds from due daie of peyment
Lass than ] Year - 1-2 ywany Yo More than 3 Vears Total
. i 15) MSME . : 1579 .. . . 4679
(i) Others 576,00 .58 15.55 1572 1395
] {iiiy Disputed Dues- MSME R R . . B
. 1iv) Disputad Ducs- Gibers - : N - ] ;
Tota) 61288 9.58 Y1555 127 660.74

Trode Puyables ageing scheduk us s 315t March, 2021

i Perticulars . Outstanding for folluwing perieds from dos date of payment
Ltks Lhan | Yesr 1=2 years 23 Yours More than 3 Yenrs Total
(1} MEME 1297 - - - 1297
(i) Chers ) 29047 .32 4.26 376 31200
v i) Disputed Ducs- MSME - - - " - -
’ {iv) Dispuled Dues- Gthers ’ - - B - -
. Total 30343 2852 . 4.16 : 4.76 . Jaa.y7
. 9 Other Currest Llabilities Acwl Asat
' March 31, 1021 Murch 31, 2023
Stabutory dues 6161 SLI
Anlvance from Cuslomes : 005 1130
Employes ducs i 5941 461
- Seeurity Deposits Reecived ' . 2444 M
: Other paynblcs ) 53.50 26,31
__Tousl ) 240,71 129.81
. : 1D Short-term previsions I Asai Asnt
. C . 3 Msrch 31, 202} Margh 3§, 2021
Provision for Employee Benfils
_ Grwuity . : 10.38 549
! Cempenseicd sbaencis L% 1732
: Provision for athers - 4).00
; ) Toaal 11,14 6622
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
{CIN - U15492HR201 2PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

{tunount iv R, Lakhs}

[ oo As et Agat
12 Non-Current Investments March 21, 2022 March 31, 2021
(7
{i) In Subsidiary .
Unguoted Fully Pald wp
49,099 (P.Y, 49,999) Equity share fuly paid up @ Rs. 40/ per shire in GAC Enlerprises Privato Limited . 500 500
(i) 1w Foint Venture )
Unquoted Fully Pald up .
1,50,000 (P.¥, 2,50,000) Equity shase Folly paid up @ s, 104 per share in Origami Dripbag Privaic Limiled 25,00 2500
(i} In Asgogiate Company
Ungested Fully Paid up
~ S0(P.Y. NTL) Equity sharc fully paid up @ JPY 2,00,000+- por shaw {100 TPV = 67.42) in Bluc Tokai Coffes Japan . £7.42 .
Total 97.42 %
Aggregate aniount of quoted lavestments and masket value thereef - -
Aggrogate amuunt of unquoled Investmonts - . 9742 30.00
13 Deferred tax Asset { et } AL al Asat
: March 11, 2022 "~ March 31, 2021
Deferred Tox Asants @
on Timing difference on deg jom and isaionof tangitle & intangible assely 21085 15346
on Provison for Gretuity & Compeasated absences 4269 jRAY
an Carryf d locges & Unabsorbed doproeioli 58538 344.35
Mot Deffered Tax Asset §38.92 $13.00
14 Leng Term Losns & Advances Asat Asat
Wiwrch 31, 20212 Mureh 33, 2021
n sl
Capital Advancea 58.03% 718
Total 5803 7.18
15 Other Non-Corrent Asyets As st Asat
March 31, 2022 " Masrch 31, 2021
Unggrured, Conslfered gogd
Security Deposits 386,39 26586
Fixed deposit having maturicy more than 12 months 398 542
Total - 390,37 270,18
16 Curvent luveiunents As sl As nt
March 31, 2022 March 3t, 2021 -
Inveatmernt lu Mututsl Fends
Unils of DSP Ulra Short Fund . 498,83
(Mo. of Units- NIL (PY -17.886.955), NAN- NIL(PY-2,854.3123}, :
MV- NIL (PY -5,10,54.953.67) ]
Total - 498.33
17 Invemiaries As i Ar sl
Murch 31, 2022 March 5t, 2021
Raw Matorialy 55838 90,39
Stock In Trade 409.79 4514
5tock of Packing Materisls . 484.25 . 7498
Total 1,451.42 320.61
(Raw muterinl fnchides Gooda in transil Rs. 82.85 Takhs in CY {Kx, 123.24 takis in PY)}
(5lock in Trade includes Goods in trunsit Ra, BF.64 lakhs in CY (Rs, 65.71 lakhs in PY}}
(Packing Maieris] includes Goods in transit Ra. 0.73 Jakhs in CY (R, 15.93 lakhs in PY))
13 Trade Recelvables As al Az at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered pood 56399 351,19
Total 563.99 351,10
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - Ut5432HR201 2PTC047234)
Notes fortning part of Financial Statemenis

Trade Revelvables ageing schedule a3 on 3hst March, 2021

(Amount i Rs. Lakks)

Particylars Ouulull'l;;!nr followkag periods frem dus date of payment
Net Doe Lest Than & 6 Months - t-2Yenrs 1+:3Yoars More than 3 Years Totsl
Mgaths 1 ‘i’nr'
[ ade recelrahdes 1
(i) Considered Good 260.89 108.65 442 ' 45,68 17.11 17.95 $83.99
(3) Considered Doubiful T . - N - . B
Dizpyi 11 H
() Contidered Good - - - - - - -
(i) Considered Doubtiul - - - - - - -
Total 269.89 208.65 112 4568 1.7 17,95 543.99
‘Trade Receivihies apeing scliedule 53 on 3151 March, 2021
Particulars Quisianging fer foflowing periods from due dnte of payinent
Less Than 6 & Mowths - j
Wot Due Manthe I Year 1-2Years 1-3Yan More than ¥ Years Todat
. ——.
Yadlanyted Trade recelvalies ; :
() Considered Good 26.5¢ VB5.65 54.64 49.93 1939 10.40 351.1%
(3) Considesed Doubthul - . . . - .
e eceivalies ! ’
" (i) Conliidorod Good - . ' . . A A _
(i) Cunzidered Doubiful - : - - . . . .
Total 2659 195.65 53,54 49.93 1939 1nAb 351,10
19 Cagh sud Bank Batwnces N Asat AS ut
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2621
Cash sad Caah Equivalents
Cuh in hund 1.3 439
Dalunces with Uanks in Corent Account 297.1% 474640
pb.52 .04
Quher Bank Balances °
Hulances with bank held s Fixed Deposits 157404 A3
(hawing maiurity more than 3 inumbs but less than 12 menths)
- ) 1S54 . 4
Total 1, 374.50 47095
20 Shor! Tevw Joans andl widvonzes As w1 A% at
: : _ March 31,2072 March 31, 2021
u red . .
Advance to Supplicr for Goods & Scrvices 486,48 H
Loan and advanee to cmployees 1 223 1718
Imprest Accounts 5T 138
Balance with Governmert Authoriticy W90 100.74
Prrpoid Bupense 4B.72 154
Totsl Ri6.69 11 1.2¢
21 Other Curreny Aspets Atat As at
Mareh 31, 2023 Mareh 33, 2021
Other Peccivables bas | 043
Dnsceyred, Considered pnod
Seoiyity Deposits B 3968 -
Totul 4813 .41
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements
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(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

22 Revenue from operatlon

For the year snded For the year ¢nded
MnﬁM}_ March 3L, 2421
Sak of Coffece and othsr fiima 7.380.90 4.097.35
Total 7,380,90 4,097.15
23 Qiher Income For the year ended For the yesr ¢nded
March 31, 2012 March 31, 2021
——p—
Intgrest Income: 20.61 1657
Incame from Mulua) Funds 2200 BB
Misccliancous Income 43,61 B.46
Totul #4612 34.26
24 Cost of msterials conpnmed Foe the yasr ended For Lhe year ended
¥ March 11, 1022 March 31, 2021
Trivewtary at the beginnlng of the year
Raw Malcrils 29039 34658
Packaging Matcrials TE9R 6.7
36937 42310
Add : Purchme
Raw Malerials 269747 1.15%.07
Direct Expenses &5.66 4542
Packaging Materialy 51913 266.3%
3,182.26 Lat0.74
Less: Taventory at the end of the year
Raw Materials 558.38 290.39
Peckaging Materisly 484,25 7898
1,042,63 36937
Totl 2,609.40 1,524.66
25 Purchases of stock ln Trade For ihe yesr ended For the year ¢nded
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
——
Furchascs of Stock in Trade - 521.93 36695
Total 511.53 36695

26 Changes Ls inventories of finished goods and work bn progess and Steck Im Trade

For the year ended

For the ended

March 31, 2012 March 31, 3021
Invemiory ai the baginnlog of the year
Stock In Trade 451.24 290.73
4514 2073
Less: Invemlory el the end of the yeay
Stock In Trado 409.79 45124
409.19 451 24
Change In Invemlerics 41.45 (160,51}
27 Employee Denefil Expenses For the year ended For the year eaded
Murch 31, 2022 March 3, 3021
Salarics and Wages ,002.23 120082
Contributitn bo Providont and olkecr fonds 24.86 44.79
Smff Wellare 6.68 34l
Expences on Empluyes Stock Option Scheme (Refor Hote -35) 166.24 -
Taolnk 2,199.99 1,250.01
’?s_Fhmce ctats Far the year ended For the year emded
Muarrh 31, 2022 Merch 31, 2021
Interest Expense :
Interest on Borrowings 1233 T0.26
Qther Bormwing Cosl 41.78 2597
Total -

$6.23



Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
{CIN - U154921{R2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

{Amount in Ke. Lakhs)

1% OQiher Expenses For the year ended Farthe yose vpded |
March 31, 1423 EM

Aggregalor service charge Sﬁ.u FEEE)
i Businass Pronvotion and ireining Expenses wn 08.52
' Freight ourwards wnd Transportion 195.59 160,93
Power wnd Fuel 195.12 11263
Rent 03,52 485.13
. Cale cxpenges 11515 54.53
i Legat & Professiomal Foes 611 J4)
' : Website and Saflwere Expenses ny 4538
Repair snd insintmunce 6050 159
GST Expenaes §99 2061

YAT Expenacs 432 -
Irsurance Expenses 30,58 110
Mercham chargus 21.45 23583
i . Fixed azset discorded . 20,50
! Travelling, Conveyance & Accomodstion 48,50 2,57
Telephone & C iealivn Exp 17.58 )a.20
DBank Charges .66 1083
Bod Debie 4741 238

Listing Frey 672 -
i Oflice Exponsey £.0% i
Printing & Swionery 619 1435
Rutes & Taxes IEAB kS5
Misesllanaous Expenyes §1.28 42
Tatal L5827 1,6499%
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
{CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234}
Noles forming part of Financial Statements

M Relnted Purly DHatlpanre

a) Nawo of Refaced pariles snd nature of relationships with thers during the yedr/proviows year:

Nature of velatlonshlp Naw of Related Porty
Wholly owned subdidi GAC prises Private Limited
Jolot Venture Origami Driphag Private Limited
Assoclate Company Blue: Tokei Celfoe- [apan (W.e.f- 10t Macch, 2022)
Koy Menagement Peeson Muithew Joseph Chilharenjun
Christopher Kolenary
Nomanie Asthans

b) Transaciens doring the your with related parlics

{Amouni in Rs. Lakhs)

\i!lolly owned subsidlory Jeint Ventore Aztotlete Key Managemest Penca
Particalars Year ended Year ended Yesr ended Yenr ended Year ended Year ended Year ecnded Year onded
31 March 2022 31 Murch 2021 31 March 2032 3 Maxch 2021 31 March 2022 N March 2821 3) March 2022 31 March 2021
Renunerstion - - - . - - $8.56 41.47
Purchase of Gouds . ) - 1062 16 . -
Renial Inconoe 1.00 - 3.50 - “ . - -
Expertse Recovery . . 11.52 . - . . .
Investiment in Equity chares - . 6742 -
Sale of Products -~ - 5.69 + - - —_ -
Toun) 3,04 - 914 363 6743 - £9.56 41,47
¢) Dutssandlag babanees with related parties
Wholly owued sobsldiary Joint Vemure Associnie Key Management Person
Puniiculan  Aeat Asat o Asmt Asel Ao Asat A
3151 March, 2022 31st Merch, 2021 3151 March, 2022 31¢f Maveh, 2021 3isi Murch, 1922 31 Murch, 2021 st erell.ibl_? 3141 Murch, 2021
Bulsnce Receivable/Paysble) 1.06 . 2151 6.47 . . . -
Towsl 306 - 1151 6.87 . - - -
31 Paymests te Auditor
Particulars Forihe yeet ended  For the yeur ended
Murch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Payment 10 Audlior ss* -
4. Stamtory Audit
Standalone Financial Slatement 4.00 . 1.70
Consolidated Finuncial § 015 -
o Tax Audit 1.25 0.50
. Tranfer Priting Audi .20 -
Total 6.20 2,10
* Auditors ion (included in legal tnd p | charges and excludes goods and service tax) ’
32 Contingend Liabikiy
Paniculnrs . Asal At nl
31 Mareh 2022 31 Marehk 2021
Tncome Tax Matters (AY 2016-17) 153,69 15360
Qier yaauners (Nel of Provision of estimated. |ial|i1i‘_lz! - 2000
Total

153,49 e
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

Empl its

The disclosures required under Accounting Standard 15 *Employec Benefits™ are given below:

Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plan recognized and debited 1o he Statement of Profit and Loss are as under:

121

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars Year ended 31 March, 2022 Year ended 31 March, 2021
A. Employer's contribution io provident fund 82.54 51.82
B. Employer’s contribution to state plan
i) Employee state insurance 16.4% -

Defined Begefit Plon

‘The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as
giving risc to addivional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately 1o build up the final cbligation.

Change in the present value of defined Obligation

31 March 2022 3 March 2021
Particulars Cu:f:::::ed Gratoity Fund Cor::::::cd Gratuily Fund
Present value of obligation a5 at the beginning of year 22.05 36.34 - -
Interest cost 1.22 2.01 - -
Past service cost - LR - -
Current service cost 38.18 13.58 22.05 36.34
Benefits paid ) {1.61) {1.30) - -
Actuueial (gain) / loss on obligation 4,43 49.2% - -
Present value of obligation as at end of year 64.27 99.92 22.08 36.34
Change in Fair Value of Plan Asseis
Fair value of plan asscis at the beginning of the year - - - -
Expected return on plan assets - - - -
Contributicns - - - -
Benefils paid . ; - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - - - -
Actoarial (loss)/gain on plan assets - - - -
Net Asset/(Liability) Recognised.in the BDalance Sheet
JPresent value of ubigation as at the end of the year 64,27 99,92 22.05 36.34
|Fuic value of plan assels at the end of the year - - - -
lFunded starus - - - -
|Excess of actual over estimated - - -
|Unrecognized actuarial {gains)/ losses - - - - .
Net (liability)/assels recognized in Balance Sheet 64.27 99,92 22.05 36,3
Current { Non Current Bifurpation
Current abligation 11.96 10.28 17.33 §.89
Non Current obligaiion $2.32 89.54 4,72 2745
[Net (liability)/assels recognized in Balance Sheet 64.28 99.62 22.05 36.34
Expense recognised In the Stat of Profit & Loss
(Current service cost 3818 13.58 22.05 36.34
Past service cost - - - -
Tnlerest eost 1.22 2.01 - -
Ex retum on plan assets .- - - .
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the year 4,43 49,29 - -
Expenses recognizad in the Statement of Profit and Loss 43,83 64.88 22.05 36:34
Actuarin) assumptions ]
Discount Rate 6,10 % p.a, 6,10 % p.a. 5.54 % p.a. 5.54 % p.a.
Expecied Rate of increase in compensation level 10%pa | 10 % p.a. 10 % p.a, 10 % p.a.
Demographic Assumption
: Mortality TaLM TALM TALM TALM
: {2012-14) 2012-14) 2012-14) 2012-14)
Retirement age 53 55 58 58
Aftrition/Withdrwal rate (%) - upto 58 years 19.78% 19.25% 60% 0%
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

(Amount 1n Rs. Lakhs)

The estimates of future increase in compensation levels, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant
factors such us supply and demand in the employment market, Discount rate is based on the gross redemption yicld on medium to long term risk free
investments. The term of the risk free investments hus to be consistent with the estimated term of benefit obligations.

Earning Fer Share

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars ‘March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

{Amount in Rupees) (Amount in Rupees)
Face Value per equity share AR 10| 10
Profit/(Loss) auributable to ordinary sharcholder (12,24,69,590 (7.09,63,822)
Weighted average number of ordinary Shares j 14,496 " 14,496
Earning per share (Basic) (8,448.51) (4,805.41)
Profit/(Loss) unributable to ordinary shareholder {12,24,69,597) T (7,09.63.822)
Weighted average number of erdinary Shares i 14,496 14,496
Weighied average number of potentia) equity Shares 13,958 | 9,810
Tolal weighted average number of equity Share for DPS 28,454 24,306
Earning per shore (Mlluted) (4,304.20) (2.919.60)

" Foilowing Employee Stock oplow scheme arangement:

The Entity's Earnings Per Share (EPS) iy determined based on the net profit attributable 1o the shareholders' of the Entity. Basic earnings per share is
computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year, Diluted carnings per sharcl is computed using the weighted average
number of common and dilutive common equivalent shares vuislanding during the year including share oplions, except where the result would be anti-

dilutive.The Company has not considered effect of dividend on 0.001% Compulsarily Convertible preferonce share (CCPS} issued in FY 2021-22 whils
calculating diluted carning per share, .

Eumpieyee Stock Option Schemw

The Company initiated the "Employee Stock Option Scheme 2017 for alt eligible employees in pursuanee of the special resoluiion approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting and as amended on 22™ April, 2021, The scheme covers all directors and employces (except promoters or those
belonging 1o the promoter's group, independent directors and divectors who-cither by himsef or through his relatives or through any body corporate, directly or
indirecty holds more than 10% of the ousianding Shares of the Company). Under the Scheme, the Board of Dircctors, administers the Scheme and grants
stock options to cligble directars or employees ofthe Company. The Committee determines the cmployees eligible for receiving the optious and the number of
options 1o be granted subject to overall imit of 824 equity shares of a face value of Rs. 10 cach outstanding at any point of time. The vesting peviod of any

optioa granted shall not be greater than foriy ctght tronths from the date of the grant of option. The Board decided (he exercise price of YL per equity share
of 110 each.

The Fair value ai grest date is determined using Intrinsic Value method, which 1akes into account exercise price and market price.

* Intrinsic value M
Optivn Series Nunber Grant date Expiry Date Excrcise Price grant date
A {in Rupecs)
ESOP 2017 346 23-04-2021 23-04-2022 10 51,566
During the year no share options have becn exsicised by the employees,
Movemeats in share options during the year -
s For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars H
AT 3st March, 2022 31st Mireh, 2021
Number of L " Number of -
Opii Exercise price Options Exercise price
Baiance at beginning of year . - - - -
Crended during the year 346 10 - i
Exercised during the vear - - . .
Expired during the year - - N N
Balonce af end of year 346 | I0 -




Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234) _
Notes forming part of Financial Statements -

36 Esrning and expenaditures in forelgn Currency (On accrual basis)
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s

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Earning In foreign currency Year ended 31 March, 2022 Year ended 31 March, 2021
Export of goods (FOB value) 53,56 2327
Total 53.56 2227
Expenditurc In foreign currency Year ended 31 March, 2022 Year ended 31 March, 2021
Purchase of stock-in-trade and packing material . 175.30 222.23
Machinery and equipment 13,19 5.76
Software 18.89 13.37
Total 227.37 241.36 |

© 37 Segment reporting

The Company has identified two primary reporting segments based on nature of products sold viz.Coffee and other items & Merchandise, The information
regarding secondary reporting segments based on products/ services is not available.

nt Revenue Year ended 31 March, 2022 Year ended 31 March, 2021
Sale of coffee 4,634.00 2,700.53
Sale of merchandise and other items 2,7146.91 1,396.82
Total 7,380.91 4,097.35

Note: Details of segment assets, liabilities, expenses have not been given as the same is not seperaiely identifiable.

38 Disclosure as per Accounting Standards (AS) 27, "Finaacial Reporting of Interests i Joint Ventures”,

Name of Joint Venture Origami Dripbag Private Limlted i

Particulars Year ended 31 March, 2022 Year ended 31 March, 2021
Assels 143,34 123,28
$0% Share of the ¢company in Joint Venture 71.67 61.64
Liabilitics 105.97 85.54

50% Share of the company in Joint Venture 52.88 2.7

Income 113.04 5.56
50% Share of the company in Joint Veniure ' 56.52 2.78

Expenses 111,67 15.93

50% Share of the company in Joint Venture 55.84 1.91

39 Previous Year figurcs have been recognized/ reclassified whenever considered necessary.
r \




Mubiavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR201 2PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

B ] Ratios
' Particulars Numaoraior D March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 % Variance Reason for Variance*

CuiTent ratio Curreat agscts Currert Yabilities 246 232 6.17%

Dcbt-cauity ratio Totai Debt Shareholdet's equity 0.17 0.15 10.01%

Debt Servico Coverage Ratio |2 Ting dvailabie for debt {1y 0 oo viee 0.63) (0.64) 0.93%

service (1)
_ ROE has in¢rease during the year, since FY 21
Returr on equity Net profit after tax Average shuzeholder's (0.24) 039 28.34%|was significantly hit by Covid-19 acd FY 22 was
: eauety S not that muck effectod with Covid restrictions

Inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold (2) Average inventory 279 2.26 23.73%

Trade receivable umover o, - it satos Average trade receivable 1402 12.63 11.01%

ratio (in titnes)

Since company is in coffes industry, and it needs
. murnover rai to procure the invnetory in the first 6 months of
'l?ra::pa ;’ vle 1240 INet credit purchase Average Tade payables 7.53 590 27.69%) year. Thercforc company has purchased the large
(in times quantity of coffee beans duc to which ratio has
. £0DE up.

]‘\ﬂ cepitz] kumover ratio {in Net sales Averege working capital 347 3.63 4.50%

timzs) G}
Nct profit ratic Net profits afier tax Net sales (0.17) {0.17) 4.20%)

Retum on capital employed | Soyning OoMOre ISRt | opiigt oy (4) (0.19) ©.24) 20.83%

. Income generated from ! 9

Retwr on investment invested fands (5) Average Investment (5) 0.03 9.03 5-12/5.

* I{ variance is more than 25%

{1) Esrning available for debt service : Net Profit aftér Taxcs + depreciation + Interest on Term Loan + Other Adjustment [ike doss on sale of fixed assets
(2) Cost of goods sold: Sale - Gross Profit -
(3) Working Capital : Curtent Assets -Cunﬁll Liabilities
{4} Capital Emploved : Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt +-Deferred tax liabiligy
{5) Income gcmrated from invesiecd funds include interest on fixed deposit and reatised/ unrealised gain on Mutuzl Fund

{6} Investmes include Fixed Deposit

[P ——

ar b WS BB

o kAL e



125

vi
vii

viii
ix

xi

As per our Report of even date atiached
For Vinoed Kumar & Assoclates

Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
(CIN - U15492HR2012PTC047234)
Notes forming part of Financial Statements

{Amount in Rs, Lakhs)

Additional Regulatory Information
No Immovable Property are held by the Company as on the date of balance sheel.
The Property Plant & Equipment and intangible assets has not been revalued during the current financial year 2021-22.

During the period, the company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related pames
The company has not been doclared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The company has no transactions with any company siruck of f under section 248 of 1he Companies Act, 2013 or section 564 of Companies Act, 1956,
Thete are 2 charges 10 be registered as in case of vehicle loan generally bank is not asking for the same except that there were not any charges or satisfaction
yet 10 be registered with Registrar of Companies as on the dale of balance sheet.

As per provision of section 135 of Companies Act, the provision of Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the company.
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Viriual Currency during the financial year,

The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
wriling or otherwise) that the Company shall :

{a) direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries);or

{b) provide any guarantes, security ot the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds 1o any other person or entity, including foreign entities (lntcrmedmnes) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall: .

(3) directly or indirectly Jend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Uhimate
Beneficiaries); or

(b) provide any guaramee, sceurity or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries.

\1\(‘ r h
u”_ors\ iy
-3

{Director)
DIN : 06368646 DIN : 06368654
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+91 11 24330402, +91 9811551960

office@spngce.in
www.spngco.in

'NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Yo the Members of Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited
feport on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Jpinion

¥ have audited the accompanying financial statements of Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited {“the Company”),
«hith comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31% 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss account and Statement
-+t {"ash Flow for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
uolicies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”},

i our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the aforesaid financial
-~taternents give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”} in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
-1ate of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and its profit & its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

Wwe conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified
ander section 143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Zesponsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
11 accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
«thical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Aules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and

e Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

nasis for our audit opinion on the financial statements,

Other Information

Yhe Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the “Director’s report” but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Lur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
inowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

© . that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134{5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Cumpanies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
(. ompanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for

.afeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting pelicies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiakcontrols that were operating effectively
fur ensuring the accuracy and completenéss of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation

of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

¢y preparing the financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the Company’s abillty to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

‘The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

iJur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

- As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit, We also:
» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the finaicial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentlonal omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management '
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures and

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
representation, :

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We aiso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of india in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in ‘Annexure A’ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and behef were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of accounts;

d. Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Companies (Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2006 (as amended) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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f.

This report does not include Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i} of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Report on internal financial controls’), since in our
opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the said report on internal
financial controls are not applicable to the Company basis the exemption available to the Company
under MCA Notification No. G.S.R. 583 (E} dated June 13, 2017, read with corrigendum dated July 13,
2017 on reporting on internal financial controls over financial reporting;

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2022;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

(i} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For SPNG & Co.

. Chartered

{Partner)
Membership Number: 534747

r‘&—-{‘(‘} ' kﬁ
( -

'G'i ;u.u '_/
[ S

UDIN: 32 ¢34 U3 mpizvlkd Coog

Place: New Delhi

Date:'—_e,o]oq; L5
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS OF
SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED.

The annexure referred to in Paragraph (1) under the heading of Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
af the Independent auditors’ report on the Accounts of SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED {the Company)
for the year ended March 31, 2022. (CARO 2020)

(i)

(it}

{iii}

{iv)

(a)

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

o The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, Including quantitative
details and Situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and refevant details of right-of-use assets.
» The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

{c)

(d)

(e)

The
the

records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
property, plant and equipment by which all Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased
manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, plant and
equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification Is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties {other than immovable properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in the standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment {including right- of-use
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No Proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March

31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohlbition) Act, 1988 {as
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder

company is not maintaining a proper stock register for the manufacturing process undertaken during
FY 2021-22.

Based on the information and explanation received and the records of the Company examined by us the
Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms Limited Liability Partnerships
or other parties. Hence clauses 3{iii) {a), {b), (c), {d), (e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on the information and explanation received and the records of the Company examined by us the
Company has no such transactions in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security covered

under the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, Hence clause 3 {iv)of the Order
is not applicable.
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{viii)

(ix)

(x)

Based on the information and explanations received and the records of the Company examined by us the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public, nor have they accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits. Hence clause 3{v) of the Order Is not applicable.

In our opinion the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act.

{a) Based on the information and explanations received and the books of accounts examined, the
Company has been regular'in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax,
provident fund, employees ‘state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues, to the appropriate authorities where applicable
and there were no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year concerned
(i.e. 31-03-2022) for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

{b) Based on the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by
us, there were no statutory dues outstanding as on 31-03-2022 for a period of more than six months

from the date they became payable which have not been deposited with appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute.

Based an the information and explanations received and the books of accounts examined there were no
instances of transactions not recorded in the books of accounts which were surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1861), Hence clause
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on the information received and the records verified:

(a) The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

{b} The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender, -

{c} In our opinion the term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d} Funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes

(e} The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the

obligations of its associates. The Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint ventures.

{f} The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its associate
companies. The Company does not have any subsidiaries or joint ventures.

During the year the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

~ {including debt instruments. Further the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private

placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the
year. Hence clause 3{x) of the Order is not applicabie,
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(xif)

(xiii)

-~ (xiv)

{xv)

{a) Based on the information and explanations received and the records of the company examined no
fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

{b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by auditorsin
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government;

{c) Based on the information received and the records of the Company examined there were no whistle-
blower complaints received during the year by the Company

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence clause 3 (xii} of the Order is not applicable.

Based on the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company examined by us,
all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

The in our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internai audit system
and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Based on the information and explanation received and the records examined, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

(xvi) Based on the information received and the records of the Company examined by us:
(a) the company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct,

1934,

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities withouta valid

Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934;

{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company {CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve

Bank of India.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting under clause {xvi){d) of

(xwvii)
{xviii)

| (xix)

the Order is not applicable.

The company has not incurred cash loss during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year. |

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly clause (xvul) of
the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial Habilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable
of meeting its Kabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of

;fr
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one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a

period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due,

(xx) Considering the Company’s net worth for the year section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding

expenditure to be incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) is not applicable. Hence Clause
(xx) of the Order is not applicabie.

(xxi)  The Company does not have any subsidiaries. Hence clause (xxi} of the Order is not applicable.

For SPNG & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Ve

Pranav Arora

(Partner)

Membership Number: 534747

UDIN:QQ SR\ Boitwrd tyor

Place: New Delhi

Date: ‘-_e,o/o Q/ 2023
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{All amount in INR Thousands unless otherwise stated)

Notes March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.}
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders® funds *
Share capital 3 100,00 100.00
Reserves and surplus 4 5.460.45 4.548.39
9,560.45 4,648.39
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 12,346.16 6,654.76
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 6 . .
: 12346.16 6.654,76
Current liabilities . i
Short-term borrowings . 7 4,951.19 “
Trade payables 8
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises ) T
* Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 2,152.51 4,383.26
small enterprises ' _
Other current Habilities 8 17,147.53 6.860.93
. 24,251.22 11,746.19
" TOTAL 46,157.83 23,049.35
Assets
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 9 15,566.53 10,279.82
Intangible assets ’ 15.36
Capiral work in progress . - - 109.06
Deferred tax assets (net) ; ) 10 1,188.22 11592
Loans and advances 11 - -
. 16,754.75 10,520.15
Current assets .
Trade receivables 12 9,335.11 3,660.63
Inventory ’ 13 4,276.81 338446
Cash and bank balances ) 14 22838 223138
Loans and advances 11 14,329.5% 2,000.44
Other current assets 15 1,232.29 1,1622%
29,403.08 12,529.20
TOTAL 46,157.83 23,049.35
Summary of significant accounting policies 21
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For SPNG & Co. For and on behaif of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited
ICALFt tration No.: 036919N

L

&

Pranav, Mitali Singh
Patiner - : : Director
Membership No.: 534747 o DIN : 08241627 DIN : 08241628

Place: New Delhi
bate, =xo)a) 22
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(Al amount in INR Thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finaneial statements,

As per our report of even date
For SPNG & Co.

Membership No.: 534747

Place: New Delhi
Date: ‘Zo} o5 ’D- 2

Notes March 31,2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Amount{Rs,) - Amount(Rs,)
Income
Revenue From Operations 6 1,07,758.85 41,781.25
Other Income 17 ~ 1,198.04 12.96
Total Income () 1,08,956,89 41,794.21
Expenses
Cost of Material Consumned 18 31,343.06 $.809.40
" Changes in Inventories of finshed goods, work-in-progress and product for sale 18b 65433 {1,139.75)
‘Employes benefit expenses 19 34,205.09 11,776.32
Other expenses 20 30,3093 15,104.82
Depreciation and amortization expense 2 3,859.64 1,792.29
Finance Costs 2 ) 616.89 - 23.16
Total Expenses {If) 1,01,488.94 - 36,366.24
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (I- 1) 7,461.95 5,427.97
. Tax expenses
Curtent tax (3,628.20) (1,417.33)
Deferted tax (cradit) ~{1,072.31) (11592)
Total tax expense (2,555.89) (1,533.25)
Profit for the Year 491205 3,894.72
Earnings per equity share ; ) .
Basic: Normninal value per equity share Rs.10 23 491.21 339,47
Summary of significant accoumihg_@iicies 2.1

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

hd ‘\ﬂ

-

Suchali Jain . Mitali Singh
Director Director
DIN : 08241627

DIN : 08241628
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3 Share capital
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 )
Number _Amount (Rs.) Number Anqount (R
Authorised shares :
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 10.00 10000 10,00 100.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-wp shares
Equity Shares o Rs, 10each 10.00 100,00 10.00 10000
. 10,00 100.00 10.00 100,00
{a) Reconciliation of the shares dimg at the beginning and at the end of the year
Equily shares
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 )
Nuniber Awount (Rs.) Nugaber Amount (Rs.)
At the beginning of the period 10.00 100.00 10,00 100.0¢
Issued during the period - ' - - -
Qutstanding at the end of the period 10,00 100,00 10.00 100.00
(b} Termsirights attached Lo equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share,
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to rective remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of al)
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares hield by the sharchalders.
() Shares held by holding company and ita subsidiaries
Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its holdi pany and their subsidiaries are as belqw:
' ‘ March 31,2022 March 31,2021
. Numiber Amount Nuguber Amount
No Sharsholding by Holding/ Group Companies
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of Sharelolder March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
No. of shares held % of Holding No. of shares held % of Holding
Equity sharey
Suchali Jain 5.00 0% 5.00 50%
Mitali Singh 5.00 50% 5.00 50%
(&) Details of shaves held by Promolers at the end of the year
f i i -
Name of Shareholder Change in :::;e:“l':‘ug patiern of _ % of Holding #s at % of Holding as t
No. of shares helg M2reh 31,2022 No, of shares helg 12Tl 31,3022
Equity Shares
Suchaii Jain No Change 500 0% 5.00 50%
Mitali Singh Mo Change 500 0% 5,00 5%
- 4 Heserves and surplus .
31-Mar-22 March 31,2021
. : Amownt (Ra,) Amownt (Rs.)
Surplus in the sistement of profit and 10ss
Balance a5 per last financial statements 454835 653,67
Net Peofit for the year 491205 1,854.72
Todal reserves and surplus 9,460.45 4,548.39

Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

" Notes to the imancial statement for the year ended March 31,2022

(All amount in INR Thousands unless otherwise stated)
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Suchalis Contecfionery Private Limited
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
(ANl amount in INR Thousands unless otherwise stated)

Long term horrowings

March 31,2022 March 31,2021
_Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)

" Secured loang
- - From "YES Bank Ltd. 2,180.70 2,654.76
Loans From Directors
Suchali Jain 6,552.68 2,500,00
Mitali Singh 3,606.69 1,500.00
Qiher loon & advances
CREDIT CARD NOXXXX 9894 610 .
Total 12,346.16 6,654.76
6 Deferred tax linbilities:
: March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Amount (R} Amount (Ra.)

Deferred tax asset/ liability

Fixed assets: lmpact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation charged for die financinl reporting

Dieferved tax asset

Jmpact of expenditure chargc& to the statement of proft and loss in the
current year but allowed for tax purpose on payinent basis,

‘Net deferred tax Babilities »

Short term borrowings

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amount (Rs.} Amount (Rs.)

~ Secured loaus (Overdraft)

HDFC Bank Led 4,951.19 -
Totnl 495119 -
Other current liabilities
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Amovnt(Rs) _ Amount(Rs.)
Trade Paynbles
= Total outstanding dues of micro emerprises and small 722.52 -
= Total cutstanding dus of creditors other than micro enterprises 1,429.99 4,885.26
and small entesprises )
2,152.51 488526
Gther liabilities
Audit Fees Payable 400.00 -
Provision for Income Tax 3,628.20 1,417.33
Statutory dues payable 1,342.37 970,58
Salary payable 505784 2 866.65
Qther Payables 215193 30.00
Advance received from Customers 1,576.37 157637
Bonus & Ex-Gratia Payable 964,05 -
Leave Encashment Payable 968.68 -
Grashity Payable 1,023.08 -
17,147.53 6,860.93
Total 19&&1 11‘146.19
The disclosures relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been fumished to the extent such parties ltave been identificd on the
basis of the intimation reccived from the suppliers regarding their starus under the Micro, Small and Medium Development Act, 2006, There is
o interest paid/payable as st March 31, 2022
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amoynt Amount (Rs.
The principal amount and the 1 t due th ing unpaid to any supplier as at the end of sach acconnting
i)  Principal amount due to micro and small enterprise 72252 -

iy Interest due on above

iif) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amaunts of
the payment made to the supplier beyand the appointed day dusing each accounting year,
*

i) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2008,

¥) The amount of interest accrued and cemaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year,

vi) The amount of Farther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
intercst ducs as above arc actvally paid

expenditure under section 23 of the M|
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Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

Notes to the tinancia! statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount in INR Thousands unless otherwise stated)
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Deferred tax assets:
| March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.}
Deferred tax asset! liability
Fixed assets; Lmpact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation charged for the financial reporting, 246.59 . 11592
Deferred tax asset
Tmpact of expenditure charged to the staterment of proft and loss in the )
current year but allowed for tax purpose on payment basis. 041,64 -
Net deferred tax asset 1,188.22 115.92
Loans and advances
Non-current Current Non-current urrent
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021

Other loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.} __Amount (Rs.}

Balance with government authoritics - 2,469.33 - 188.11

Advance Tax'TDS Receivable/TCS Receivable - 351030 - 1,204.00
Advance 10 Employess - 42,74 43.74
Other advances
[nvestment in Mumbai (Lower of cost and Market valug) - B 641.60
Prepaid expenses - 7.907.62 - : 11.99
Total - 14,329.99 - 2,090.44
Trade Receivables

March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Amount (Rs.} Amount (Rs.)

Due for 2 peried more than six months

Unsecured, considered doubtful 9.335.11 3,660.63
: : 9,335.11 3,660.63
Due for a period less than six months
Unsecured, considered good - -
Total - 9.335.11 - 3,660.63
Inventories
' Current Current
March 31,2022  Mareh 31, 2021
Amount (Rs)) Amount (Rs.)
Inventories
(Valued at cost or NRY unless otherwise stated}
Raw Material 3,736.46 2,193.50
Finished Goods 536.63 1,190.96
Packing Materials 372
Total Inventories _g&éﬁ;&lc i 3.384.46
Cash and bank balances )
Non-current Current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31,2021
Amount {Rs.} Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amount {Rs.)
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts - - 222689
Paytm ' 7372 4.1
Cash in hand . 139.49 . 0.39
Imprest account 15.67
- 228.88 - 2,231.38
Qther Current assets
Non-current Current Non-current Current
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31,2021  March 31,2021
Amount (Rs. Amount (Rs. Amount (Rs. Amount (Rs.
Advance 1o Suppliers 2558 - 2558
Security Deposit 1,170.00 - 570.00
Lift Charpes Receivable ~ - ' 530.00
Receivable from Subscribers 3670 - 36.70
: - 123229 - 1,162.29
gs/ - . 1,162.29




Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited
Notes to the financial staterent for the year ended March 31,2022
(Al ainount in INR Thousands unless otheiwise stated}
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16 Revenue From i

Morch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
_ Amount (Rs.) _Awmount (Re)
. fro rations
IS‘:I.:T: (eiood:! ¥ 1,07,758.85 41,781.25
Taotal 1,07,758,85 41,781.25
17 _Odher incoms
March 31, 2022 Mavch 31, 2021
Amount (Rs.} Amount (Bs.)
Other Income 1,198.04 12.96
Total 1,198.04 12.%
18 Cost of Material consumed
. Mavrch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
. Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.}
Tnventory at the beglnning
Raw Matecial 2,193.50 12.88
Packing Materials -
: 2,193.50 12,88
Add Purchase
Raw Material 25,639.03 10,990.02
Packing Materials 3,250.72 -
32,889.75 10,990,02
Less Inventory at the end
Raw Materisl 3,736.46 2,193.50
Packing Materials ) 372
Totsd TL06—— ssog

18b Changes in Inventories

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
. Amount (Rg.} Amount (Rs.)
Inventory at the end of the year
Finished Goods ) 536,63 1,190.96
. : 536.63 1,190.9%
Less Inventory at the beginuing of the year
Consumption 1,150.96 5L.21
" _1,190.96 51,21
(IncrenseVdecrease in inventories
Finished Goods 654.33 (1,139.75)
Total 654,33 (1,139.75)
b~ Aoein
Particulars As 2t 31.03,2022
Less then I year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 yesrs
i) Raw Material ’ 3,736.46 . . -
i} Packing
Material in
iii) Finished
Goods 536.63 . -
‘Particulars T Asar31.032021
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 1-3 years More than 3 years
i) Raw Materiat 2,193.50 - - .
i) Packing
Materis] .
1ii) Finished
Goods 1,190.96 . . )
12 Employee benefit expenses
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
— Amount (Rs. Amounit
Salanes & Wages 2762772 10,877.34
Contribution to PF & ESIC 2,002.31 31643
Bonus 1,219.35 86.52
Gratuity 1,028.08 -
Leave Encashment 968.68
Staff welfare exponses 1,358.95

34,205.09
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20 Other Expenses

March 31,2021

March 31,2022
: Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
Advertising expenses - 25506
Business promotions - 175.71
" Lepal and professional fees (refer note below) 233295 _836_ 18
Delivery expenses 1,672.22 824.15
Power and Fuel 3,826.02 2,163.11
Freight outward & Cartage 287.06 6522
Stock and spare parts consumed 139.63 404.92
Insurance expenses 54.29 188.54
Miscellaneous expenses 143.33 823.54
Packaging and Handling 380.17 1,574.27
Printing and Stationery . 72.85 27.78
Credit Reversal Due to Exempt sal 3,287.95 11,095.08
Diwali Gifis . 70.00
Bad debts (Amount is Jess than 11akhs) - 390
Donations - 11.30
Sale commission 2,207.65 44,88
Late fees on TDS & Taxes 199.93 23.60
Rent 9,018.45 5,046.79
Office expenses 1,451.18 226,69
Telephone expenses 4697 27.29
Repair and Maintenance 640.47 37824
Sundry/Housekeeping expenses 789.62 201.43
Commission 517.30 363.05 -
Travelling and Conveyance 1,694.31 114.51
Marketing Expenses 914.30 11.25
Discount 61.73
Round off ) 0.43
Interest 23328 86.17
Rates & Taxes , 99.18 -
Software & Website charges 24542 -
Fees & Subscription 555.42 -
30,809.93 15.104.82
Payment to Auditors (Included in Lega) and professional Expenses): .
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
Audit Fees 400.00 70.00
Reimbursement of expenses - -
400.00 70.00
21 Depreciation and amortization expense
_ - March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i Amount (Rs.} Amount (Rs.)
Depreciation on tangible assets 3,859.64 1,788.46
Amortization on infangible assets 3.83
3,859.64 1,792.29
22 Finance Costs
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Amount (Rs.) Amount {Rs.)
Bank Charges 146.34 23.16
Bank Interest. 204.55 -
QD-Processing Fee 265.50 -
: 61689 23.16
——— —— —}




23 Earnings per share (EPS)
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The following reflects the profit and share data used in the basic EPS computations:
. March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs))
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS 4,912.05 3,804.72
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS 10.00 10
389.47

‘Basis EPS

491.21
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Notes fo the financial statcmtent for the year ended March 31,2022

" (Al amount in THR Thousands unless otherwi:f.e stated)

24

16

27
23

Related Party Disclosure

#)  List of Related parties
iy Key Management Personnel

Suchali Jzin - Director

Mitali Singh - Director

B Transactions with Key Managerial Personmel:
C ion of key ial | of the

= add

Ly ¥ A L

as expense during the reporting period,

Nature of iransactions For the year ended For the year ended
) - Maych 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Suchali Jain 242157 233578
- Mitali Singh 3,475,790 2,100.00
Total 5,903.07 _i,_eﬁ
Balange outsianding ay the end of the year
Natore of transactions For the year ended For the year ended
M, 31, 2032 arch 31, 240,
Remunaration Payable 2,138.31 1,521 .40
To1a) A ____1,921.40
"¢} Transactions with Related Parties"
The details of the related party transnmons emued into by the Company, for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as fallows.
@ Loans & Advamces during the period
Nature of tranyactions For the year ended For the year ended
: March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Suchali Lain 4,226.35 2,500.00
Milali Singh 3,606.69 1,500.00
Totat 7.833,04 4,000.00
Loans & Advance Repaid during the year
Natwre of tramsactions For the year ended For the year ended
’ March 31, 2[}_22 March 31, 2021
Suchali Jain 173.68
Mitali Singh £,500.00
Tatal L673.63 -
(ii) Purchase of Goods
Nature of transactions For the year ended For the year eaded
. March 3], 2023 Mareh 31,2021
Total h -
{iii} _Sale of Goads :
Nature of transactions For the year ended For the year ended
: March 31, 2022 March 31, 202]
Toral - -
d) _Ouvistanipg Loans Ii ted Parti
Particulary . As at March 31,2022 As at March 31, 2021
Suchali Juin 6,552.68 2,500.00
Mitali Singh 1,606.60 1.500.00
Toral 10,159.36 £.000.00

As at 31st March, 2022, the g of the Company has not

iled its inpot vax eredits in GSTR-YB and books of accounts with the GST portal for

the FY 2021-22 1ll September 2022, Therefore, the actual quantification of amount for the difference in input GST credit as per books and GSTR-3B with
GST portal is not been done and the impact of this difference cannat be ascertgined.

The manag: of the company has not il ‘itsclodugbalaneeofdebwrsmdueditmasmenﬁomﬁmhebooksormumFuﬂher,uo
firmation bas been received by the y. The differences if any, hes not been quantified due to insufficiem data and reconciliation.

The of the coenpany has not ph Ny verified the closing stock. Hence, stock register is oot available review.

The Joan account of di is kept sep from di ions and other Mo
be recorded in these accounts, :

The Company has pald Rs. 7800.00 {in 1b ds) to four i in the month of March 2022, 1owards lhe technical service fee for developmen of
brand, e-commerce technical support and advisory, et hnical advise for ioprovising the products, etc for the period starting from 3151 March
2022 till 315t March 2026. The agreement with each consultant is available in reconds for verification. The said amoont inclodes an advance payment of
Rs. 7794.66 (in thousands) for Fy 202223, 2023-24,2024-25 and 2025-26 which has been provided as prepaid expenses in the balence sheet as at 3 Lst
March, 2022, Further, the TDS at the rate of 2% has been deducted & deposited on the 1012l amount of Bas. T800(in thonsands) .

excepl inlerest and repaymentiniroduction
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Suchalia Condectionery Private Limited
Nates to the fnancin) statement for the year ended March 31, 2022
Al amount in INR Thousands unless otherwiss sisted)

Disclowsre of Rafics
The following Lables ize fhe rati is; YT oy
rel
Ratio |Mumerator | Demominator March 31, 2022
Currem rtic Current Assels Current Liablities 1.212 1.067 13.67%)
: X ’ K ) .
Retom o Equity ratio Nt Profit aier uxes Av$ageshmeholdea’s 0.69! 1.442 2.05%)|
28,13 . 16,
Taventory Tumwover ratio mofﬁuods&ldor Average Inventory 3,131 24.231 0%
. . 9.347] 4142 125.6T%
Trade anbbwfm Net Credit Purchiase sverags Trade payables
i Py 5 12340 34.3
Trade Receivable Tumoves Ratio Nt Credit Sales. Avecge Acenunts 16.58¢ 34
i Working Capital (Current 20917 53.360 -60.30%
Met Capital Tumover Ratio et Sales Assals- Current
Liablities
Net Profit ratio - [Net Profit sertaxes  [Net Sales 0.046 0.6%3 -5110%
Dbt Equity Ratic [Total Debt Sharehiolder's Equity L2 1432 DR0%
L Eamirig belore Inlerest and - 034) 0.480 -29.01%)
Return on Capital Employed yoces Capitsl employed

1. Reetum on Equity ratio: The Ratio has reduced because of increase in Average Sharholder Capital on eceount of Profils

2, Teade Payable Tumover Rafio: The ratio has increased siote company is paying off its creditor more frequenily -

3, Trade Receivable Tumover Ratio : Increase in sales and delblors on account of expansion of business resulted in higher irade receivable tamoier ralic
4. tlet Capiral Tumovar Ratho : Increased Working capital and quick vecavery from debwors has baen reason for variance

5, Met Profit ratio; Opening of nevw branches end increased business promotion has resulted iz reduced profits

6. Retumt on Capital Employed: The variante is on aceount of increased capital employed and increase in business promotion expenses,

31 Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on 31st March, 2022

Purticulars Outstanding for following pericds Fom due date of pryment (Amount in TNR)

Less than 6 months 6 mmonths -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 9.114.08 221.03 . - 8.335.11
(m[f 5. puted Trade K .- bl idered doublful R . _ N _ ~
(i) Disputed Trade Recsivables considered good - ; . ) .
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables considerad doubiful - - . - . .
(v)Provision for Trade Recaivables ~ considered doubiful . - . - . -
Trade Reccivables ageig schedyle as oty 3s¢ March, 203]
Parficutars ] Ouisianding for Falowing periods froim gue Gale of payment (Amout in INK]

than & months § -l 1.2 yews 2-3 years Maoye than 3 Total

{§) Undisputed Teade receivebles ~ considered good 3,660.63 . . . 3,660.63
(i) Undispated Trade Receiuables — considered doubtful . . ) ) .
{iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered pood . . . .
(i\")DiSpufﬁdTl’%ﬂcn ekl 3 A A el . .

A darhis

(3Provision foc Trade Receivables - consid I .

31 Teade Payable ageing schedule as on 3136 March, 2022
Particulars Oulstandug for following periods from due date of payment (Amount i INK)

Less than { year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mocethan3ysars  Towl
() Total outstanding duss of MSME 1252 . - . 72252
(1) Tedal cutstanding dves of creditors other than MSME 1.424.49 B - - 1,429.99
(iDisputed dues of MSME f

{1¥y Dlsputed dues of creditors othsr than MSME

Trade Paynble ageivg schedule as oo 31t Murch, 2021

I Al
Particulars Quistanding for followang periods from due date of payment (Amount in INK)
155 than 1 year 1-2 yeaes 2-3 years Morg than ¥ years Told
) Totad outstanding dues of MSME ) . R . .
(i) Tots outstanding dues of creditors other than MSME 442216 263,10 - 4,885,236
(ii}Dispuled dues of MSME - .

{iv) Disputed dues of creditors other than MSME

M3

i e -




Suchakis Confectionevy Private Limited .
Nates to the tinancial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 -~
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Company has 3 Cash Credit (CC) limif from bank on the basis of security of current assets, the drawing power for which started in June 2021. The
Jiscloswre of samve has been given in the table helow:

Amoumul of Reason for Variance
. . Amount as per books Amount as per Statement Variance
Monih of Filing Statement Filing Stafis 1 goo ciesDebtor-Creditors)  |( StocksDebtor-Creditars)
July 2024 Filed 2.600.30 5,851.36 1,748.94 | The Variance is on account of improper book
sMufmzzo" ] ng_r:;ed 8 ]6;,62 - Jkeeping & record maintenance at the end of
] e 2 i 7448 841119 1218031 ihe  management of th  Comsany.
October 202 Filed 4,648.29 10.448 48 4,159.8) IR ~ilia1;§: of dabtors and uadito;.;ngould
Hovember 2021 Mot Filed 6,010.28 : . not be leted of dons by the
December 2021 Filed 18,0657 24,904.65 (6,835.04) t, on monthly basis due to non
Jawary 2022 Filed 20,131.13 277264 (164150 ceceipt / non realisation of invaices on time.
e SATATY T agement of the Company hes also
February 2022 Filed 17,787.25 12,274, 31288 (hifed its book keeping wod
13,484.13 (6577 95| "mintenance fron one consultant to ancther,|
N 77 | due 10 which the accounting wes haufled and
N i d. Afos, The Company hes opencd|
Filed 6,506.14 two branches during the year, due 1o which
the segregation of stock could oot take place
March 2022 on month 1o month beasis,
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Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

- Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022

34
(i)
(i)

(iii)
(iv}

")
vi)

(vii)
(viii)

{ix)

@
(ix)

(xii)
{xiii)

{xiv)
(xv)

(xvi}

(All amount in INR Thousands unless otherwise stated)
Other Statutory Information
No proceeding have been initiated or pending against the company under Benarni Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules therevnder,

The Company does not have any transaction with companies Struck Off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or under section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has not been declared as 2 willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender. :

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments undet the Tncome Tax Act, 1961.

During the year company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of
Companies Act, 2013,

The Company have not traded or mvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The company does not have.any Charges or Satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the Statory Period.
The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intennedmnes) with the-

-understanding that the Intermediary shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company {Ultimate Beneficaries) or '

b) provide any gurantec, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficaries
The company has not received any fund from the person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Fundmg Parties) with the understanding that
the (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficaries) or

‘b) provide any gurantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficaries

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or dlscloscd as (such as,
search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agrcements are duly
executed in favour of the lessee) held in name of the Company as at 31st March 2022,

During the year, the company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant & Equipment.

The provisions of clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable to .
the Company.

No scheme of Arrangement has been approved by Competent authority in terms of Sections 230 to 237 of the Compames Act, 2013 in rcspcct of the
Company,
The provision of Corporate social résponsibility is not applicable on the company as per section 135 of the Companies Act 2013.

Previous year figures have been regrouped and reclassified.

As per our report of even date

For SPNG & Co,

For and on behalf of the Board of Pirectors of
Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

|,

r 2
Suchali Jain Mitali Singh
Director Director
Membership No.: 534747 DIN : 08241627 DIN : 08241628

Place: New Delhi
Date: =% o/e«fg;\
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2022

10

Corporate Information

Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited is a private limited company incorporated in India. The
company is engaged in the the business of manufacturing, processing, distributing, marketing and
selling goods related to specialty foods and beverage products, including, but not limited to bakery
and coffee products and providing services such as saleable drink in a kiosk format or via delivery -

- for personal and commercial use, and any other business that may be conducted from time to time,

throughout India and overseas.
Basis of'Preparat'ion of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The Company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material aspects with the accounting standards notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read fogether with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. The financial statements
have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost convention. The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees unless otherwise stated.

The accountmg policies adopted in the preparatlon of financial statements are consistent with those
of previous year.

The management has determined its operating cycle, as explained in the schedule III of the .
Companies Act, 2013, as twelve months having regard to the nature of business being carried out
by the Firm. The same has been considered for classifying assets and liabilities as ‘current’ and
‘non-current’ while preparing the financial statements.

The company is a small and medium-sized company (SMC) as defined in the General Instructions
in respect of Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013,
Accordingly, the Company has complied with the Accounting Standards as applicable to an SMC.

2.1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

(b) Property plant and Equipment
- (i) Property Plant and Equipment
_ Property Plant and Eciuipment, are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciétlon and’

accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price. Any trade
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
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Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2022

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property plant and equipment are measured '
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component /part of the asset
separately, if the component/part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset
and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset.

Property, plant and equipment held for sale is valued at lower of their carrying amount and-
net realizable value. Any write-down is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(ii) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment’s has been provided on Written Down Value
method on the basis of useful life of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on assets added, sold or discarded during the year
has been provided on pro-rata basis.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic
life. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of Property, Plant & Equipment’s are measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

(iii) Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset

~ isrequired, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or -
groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valie of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

i

“

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over
its remaining useful life.

(c) Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of finished goods comprises
purchase cost, freight

NG,
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selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of goods and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

(d) Government Grants and Subsidies
Grants and Subsidies from government are recogaised when there is reasonable assurance that
(i) the company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grants / subsidy
will be received. Government grants/ subsidies received towards specific Fixed assets have
_been deducted from the Written Down value of the concerned Fixed assets.

(¢) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. '

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
- exchange for providing services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
. parties.

(i) Sales are recognized when the substantial risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are
transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract and are recognized net of trade discounts,
rebates and gst taxes.

(i} Dividend from the investments is recognised when the company’s right to receive payment is
established. '

(iii) Interest Income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “Other
income” in the statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Other items of ‘revenue are recognised only when there are no uncertainties in the
ascertainment/ realisation of income.

(f) Foreign Currency translation

a. Initial Recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to
the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

b. Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at
the reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction. '

¢. Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting the
Company’s monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized
as income or as gxpenses in the year in which they arise.

i s rr————

————,
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| (g) Retirement and other employee benefits

" Provident Fund
Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contrlbutlon scheme, The
Company has no obligation, other, than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure,
when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for

© service received before the balance sheet date exceeds thé contribution aiready paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.
If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the
balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity '
The Gratuity Act, 1972 are not applicable as the firm has less than 10 employees at the end of
Financial Year March, 2019 and in the absence of obligation in respect of gratuity disclosures

as required by the Accounting Standard 15 on ‘Employees Benefits’ are not applicable for the
year,

- Compensated Absences
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next 12 months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such absences as the

additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date. '

(h) Borrowing Cost
Borrowing Cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with
the arrangement of borrowing and exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings (if any) to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

- Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisitions, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are

capltahsed as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period they occur. :

() Investments

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are

classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as non-current
investmenis.

Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value. _ :
Non-current Investments are valued at cost of acquisition. The can'ymg values of non-current
investments are reduced by the diminution (other than temporary) in the value of itvestment.

(j) Income Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences between taxable
income and accounting income for the year and reversal of tlmmg differences
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Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are

recognized for deductible timing differenices only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty

that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets

can be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward

tax losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is virtual certainty supported by -
convincing evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It recognizes

unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually

- certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which

' . such deferred tax assets canbe realized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company
writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer
reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income
will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is -
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may
be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to the taxes on income levied by same govemmg taxation laws

(k) Leases

Operating Leases

 Where the Company is lessee:

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership

of the leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized
v as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
() Earnings per Share

The Company reports the basic and diluted Earmning Per Share in accordance with Accounting

Standard 20 on “Earning Per Share” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI).

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit /(loss) attributable to equity
I shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
. . the year,

Diluted Earning Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the
- weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects
. of all dilutive potential equity shares except where the results are anti-dilutive.
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(m)Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event,

it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best

estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at
- each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

(n) Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured rehably The company does not recogmze a
contingent liability but discloses its existence m the financial statements.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of financial statements comprise cash at bank and
in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.
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ANNEXURE 6

Swati A Gupta & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Office: -B-1808, Ace City, Greater Noida West, Uttar Pradesh-201306
(M): +91-9999343605
Email: caswatigp@gmait.com

To,

The Board of Directors,
Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
Plot 320, Udyog Vihar, Phase II, Gurgaon , Haryana - 122008

Dear Sirs,

We hereby certify the provisional Unaudited Standalone financial statements of Muhavra Enterprises Private
Limited which comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the

period then ended 31%* December 2022. Kindly note the effect of deferred tax/liability has not been taken in the
provisional financial statements.

The Company is responsible for the preparation of the financial information. We have not expressed an opinion
on the standalone financial statements as well as any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In preparing the financial staternents, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting.

Respectfully submitted

For and on behalf of Swati A Gupta & Associates

UDIN 23538815BGZAGC1310



Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
Provisional Statement of profit and loss for the year ended December 31, 2022

For the year ended For the year ended

December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
Incoine
Revenue from Operations 91,89,77.124 73,80,90.217
Other Income 25,851

Total Income (A)

%1,90,02,975

86,21.596

74,67,11,813

Expenses:

Cost of Materials Consymed 37,71,94443 31,72,37.832
Ernployee Benefits Expense 25,53,82,887 21,99,98,827
Finance Costs 3,30,20,894 1,70,09,651
Depreciation and Amortization expense 3.67.79.448 6,27,01.453
Other Expenses . 33,26,96,034 28,48,26,842
Total Expenses (B) 1,03,51,73,705 90,17,74,605
Profit/(Loss) before tax (A) - (B) {11,61,70,730) {15,50,62,792)
Tax Expense - -
Current tax - - -
Less: MAT Crédit Entitlernen - -
Deferred tax i - (3.25.93.194)
Profit/(Loss) after tax (11,61,70,730)

(12,24,69,598)
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
Provisional Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2022

December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022

Amount (Rs.)) Amount (Rs.)
Shareholders’ funds
Share Capital 3,27.160 310,610
Reserves and Surplus 6$8,96,12,949 634721018
SubTotal 68,99,40,109 $3,50,31,628
Non Current Liabilities
Long term borrowings - 22,72,034
Other Long term liabilities - 12,83,921
Long term provisions 3.16,62,099 1,41,86,464
SubTotal 3,16,62,099 1,77,42,419
Current Liabilities:
Short Term Borrowings 20,17,38,127 10,37.07,501
Trade Payables 5,05,10,605 6,60,73.741
Other Current Liabilities 1,17,30,635 2,40,70,963
Short Term Provsions 10,00,000 22,33,507.
SubTotal 26,49,79.367 19,60,85,712
Total Liabilities 98,65,81,575 $4,88.59,760
Assets:
MNon-Current Assets
Tangible assets 32,49.73,073 21,23,22,778
Intangible Assets 2,85,78,938 1,54,85,225
Non-Current Investment 2,87,53,99¢ 97.41,9%0
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8,38,92,910 8,38,92,080
Long-term Loans and Advances 5,88,62,988 4,48,38,914
SubTotal 52,50,61,899 36,62,80,988
Current Assets:
Current Investments ©) -
Trade Receivab_les 9.56,11,36] 5,83,98,965
Inventories 25.08,22,009 14,52,41,803
Cash and Bank Balances 3,08,71,836 18,74,56,055
Short-Term Loans and Advance: 6,10,38,404 8,66,69,138
Other Current Assets 2.31,76,067 48,12.814
‘SubTotal 46,15,19.67¢6 48,25,78,774
Total Assets 98,65,81,575 84,88.59,760
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Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited -
Provisional Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2022

December 31, 2022 March 31§, 2022

Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs,)
Shareholders’' funds
Share Capital 327,160 310610
Reserves and Surplus 68,96,12,949 63,47,21,018
SubTotal 68,99,40,109 63,50,31,628
Non Current Liabilities .
Long term borrowings - 22,72,034
Other Long term liabilities - 12,83,921
Long term provisions 3,16,62,099 1.41,86464
SubTotal 3,16,62,099 1,77,42,419
Current Liabilities:
Short Term Borrowings 20,17,38.127 10,37,07,501
Trade Payables 5,05,10,605 6.60.73,741
QOther Current Liabilities 1,17,30,635 2,40,70,963
Short Term Provsions 10,00,000 22,33,507
SubTotal 26,49,79,367 19,60,85,712
Total Liabilities 98,65,81,575 84,88,59,760
Assets:
Non-Current Assets
Tangible assets 32,49,73.073 21,23,22,778
Intangible Assets 2,85,78,938 1,54,85,225
Non-Current Investment 2,87,53,9%0 97,41,990
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8,38,92.210 8,38,92,080
Long-term Loans and Advances 5,88,62,988 4,48,38.914
SubTotal 52,50,61,89% 36,62,80,908
Current Assets:
Current Investments ©) -
Trade Receivables 9,56,11,36l 5,83,98,965
lnventories 25,08,22,009 14,52.41,803
Cash and Bank Balances 3,08,71836 18,74,56,055
Short-Term Loans and Advance: 6,10,38,404 8,66,69,138
Other Current Assets 2,31,76,067 48,12,814
SubTotal 46,15,19,676 48,25,78,774
Total Assets 98,65,81,575 84,88,59,760




Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited
Provisional Statement of profit and loss for the year ended December 31, 2022

Income
Revenue from Operations
Other Income

Total Income (A)

Expenses:

Cost of Materials Consumed

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortization expense
Other Expenses

Total Expenses (B)
Profit/(Loss) before tax (&) - (B)

Tax Expense
Current tax
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement
Deferred tax

Profit/(Loss) after tax

For the year ended
‘December 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Amouynt (Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
91,89,77,124 73,80,90,217
25,85 86,21,596
91,90,02,975 74,67,11,813
37,72,94,443 31,72,37,832
25,53,82,887 21,99,98,.827
3,30,208%4 1,70,09,651
3,67,79,448 6,27.01.453
33,26,96,034 28,48,26,842
1,03,51,73,705 90,17,74,605

(11,61,70,730)

{11,61,70,730)

(15,50,62,792)

(3,25,93,194)

(12,24,69,598)
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ANNEXURE 7

Swati A Gupta & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Office: -B-1808, Ace City, Greater Noida West, Uttar Pradesh-

201306(M): +91-9999343605
Email: caswatigp@gmail.com

To,

The Board of Directors,

Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

Plot No-321, Udyog Vihar-2, Sector-20 Gurgaon HR 122016

Dear Sirs,

We hereby certify the provisional Unaudited Standalone financial statements of Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

- which comprises the Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period then ended

315t December 2022. Kindly note the effect of deferred tax/liability has not been taken in the provisional financial statements.

The Company is responsible for the preparation of the financial information. We have not expressed an opinion on the
standalone financial statements as well as any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting.

. Respectfully submitted

pN eg -
Date: -09'" February 2023
UDIN: 23538815BGZAGK6048
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Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited
Provisional Balance Sheet as at 31st December, 2022

- {All amovnt in INR Thousands unless otherwise stated)
) December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.}
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital 101 100
Reserves and surplus 22,302 9,460
22,403 9,560
Non-current liabilities
Long-term bomrowings 1,794 12,346
Deferred tax liabilities (net) . -
1,794 12,346
Current liabilities
Shont Temm Provisions 2,154 -
Short-term bomowings 13,411 4,951
Trade pavables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 23,000 2,153
enterprises :
Other current liabilities 25,499 17,148
64,064 24,251
TOTAL 88,262 46,158
Assets
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 22,348 15,567
Intangible assets - -
Capiral work in progress . -
Deferred tax assets (net) 1,188 1,188
Loans and advances - -
. 23,536 16,755
Current assets
Trade receivables 39,921 9,335
nventory 6,427 4277
Cash and bank balances 938 229
Loans and advanices 14,840 14,330
Other current assets 2.598 1.232
: 64,725 29,403

TOTAL

88,262 46,158




. Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited '
. Provisional Statement of profit and less for the year ended December 31, 2022

161

N e

(All amount in INR Thousands unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
Amount (Rs.) Amount {Rs.)
Income
Revenue From Operations 1,52,124 1,07,759
Other Tncome 931 1,198
Total Revenue () 1,53,056 1,08,957
. Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 61,044 51,343
Changes in Inventories of finshed goods, work-in-progress and product for sale (223) 654
Employee benefit expenses 46,310 34.205
Other expenses : 34,184 30,810
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,233 3,860
Finance Costs 1,226 617
Total Expenses (II) 1,44,%72 1,641,489
Profit/ (L.oss) before tax (I- T1) 8,284 7,468
Tax expenses
Current tax (2,154) (3,628)
Deferred tax {cradit) - {1,072)
Total tax expense 2,154) {2,556)
Profit for the Year 6,130 4,912
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Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited
Provisional Balance Sheet as at 31st Decamber, 2022

- {All amount in INR_Thousands unless otherwise stated)

December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
Amount (Rs.)  Amount (Rs.)

Equity and liabilities

Shzreholders’ funds
Share capital or 100
Reserves and surplus 22,302 9,460
: 22,403 9,560
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 1,794 12,346
Deferred tax liabilities {net) - -
: 1,794 12,346
Current liabilities
Short Term Provisions ' 2,154 -
Short-term borrowings 13,411 4,951
Trade payables ' '
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 23,000 2,153
enterprises :
Other current liabilities 25.499 17.148
: ' 64,064 24,251
TOTAL 38,262 46,158
. Assets
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 22,348 15,567

Intangible assets

" Capiral work in PHORIEss - -
Deferred tax assets (net) 1,188 1,188
Loans and advances

23,536 16,755

Current asscts ;
Trade receivables 39,921 9,335
Inventory _ 6,427 4,277
Cash and bank balances - 938 229
Loans and advances 14,840 14,330
Other current assets ' ' 2,598 1,232
: 64,725 29,403
TOTAL 88.262 46,158

_




Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited
Provisional Statement of profit and loss for the year ended December 31, 2022
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(All amount in INR Thousands unless otherwise stated)
ISancs e )

“For the year ended  For the year ended
December 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
Amount (Rs.) Amount (Rs.}
Income
Revenue From Operations 1.52,124 1,07,759
Other Incotne 931 1,198
Total Revenue (1) 1,53,056 1,08,957
Expenses .
Cost of Material Consumed 61,044 31,343
Changes in Inventories of finshed goods, work-in-progress and product for sale {223) 654
Employee benefit expenses ' 46,310 34,205
Other expenses 34,184 30,810
Depreciation and amottization expense 2,233 3,860
Finance Costs 1,226 617
Total Expenses (IT) - 1,44,772 1,01,489
Profit/ (Loss) before tax (I- 1T) 8,284 7,468
Tax expenses
Current tax (2,154} {3,628}
Deferred tax {credit) - (1,072)
Total tax expense (2,154) (2,556)
Profit for the Year 6,130 4,912
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Private and Confidential

Valuation Report
Of
Shares
of

MUHAVRA ENTERPISES PRIVATE LIMITED AS AT 30" NOVEMBER 2022

Prepared by:
SUBODH KUMAR
(IBBI REGISTERED VALUER)
Registration No: IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705

Contact Details
Office:
210, 2nd floor Wadhwa Complex,
Street No-10, Laxmi Nagar New Delhi-110092

Date: 17-12-2022

Page 1 of 12 :
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Private and Confidential

Date: 17-12-2022

To

The Board of Directors

Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited -
D-173, Sushant Lok - |, Gurgaon HR 122002

Dear Sir,
Subject:- Report on Valuation of Fair Value of Shares

|, Subodh Kumar, Registered Valuer under the Companies Act, 2013 and having its IBBl Regn. No.
IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705 (hereinafter referred to as (“Registered Valuer”) has been mandated by the
Board of Directors on behalf of the Company, Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited, a Company
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and having its registered office at D-
173, Sushant Lok - |, Gurgaon HR 122002 (hereinafter referred to as “Private Limited Company”)
for valuation of its Shares for the purpose of proposed issuance of Shares in accordance with the
requirement of Sections 42 & 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 20i3.

Shares means Equity Shares and Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares {CCPS)

The scope of services is to conduct the valuation of Shares to determine the fair value in accordance
with internationally accepted valuation standards/ICMAI Valuation Standards for the limited purpose

of compliance under the Companies Act, 2013 and may not be used for any other purpose.

Based on the Discussion with the management, we have considered the valuation cut- off date as

closure of business hours of 30t November 2022.

" Scope of the Report:

-Qur scope of services under this letter is restricted to the services specified in scope of work as

above and does not cover any other services including, illustratively, the following:

* Legal advice, opinion and representation in any form.
* Accounting and taxation matters, opinion and representation in any form.,

» Any other certification services. Reliance would be placed on the information that may be provided
by the Company.

Page 2of 12
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Private and Confidential

Company Background information:

Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited ("MEPL" / "Company") was established in 2012 vide registration
Number 047234 in Haryana.

Muhavra Enterprises Pvt. Ltd, operating under the brand name Blue Tokai Coffee Roasters, is India’s
largest specialty coffee company. The Company sources coffee beans through direct-trade
relationships with more than 30 Indian coffee estates, have roasting facilities in Delhi, Mumbai and
Bangalore, and operates a network of 54 stores across the country. The company's mission since it
started in 2012 has stayed simple: introduce customers to the estates they directly buy great-tasting
coffee from, roast the beans with care, and make high-quality coffee more accessible through the

cafes and website. The company uses Arabica specialty-grade beans, the world’s highest-quality
coffee beans.

Blue Tokai Coffee Roasters follow a simple set of beliefs —
- Transparency.
- A culture of constant learning,
- Focus on quality and best industrial practices.

Business operations are majorly split into the following segments —
- Roasting and supply of coffee beans and ancillary products to B2B and B2C
customers
- Services provided through an ever-growing chain of 54 operational stores
- Participation in Events & Outdoor Catering.

Yision:

Par¢ | - Become the leader in India by using a physical infrastructure of stores.
Part Il — Scale store shelf consumer products in india and alter the B2B Landscape
Part lll - Bring Blue Tokai Coffee Roasters to the world.

The registered office of the MEPL is situated at D-173, Sushant Lok - |, Gurgaon HR 122002. The

current Directors are Christopher Leigh Kolenaty, Matthew Joseph Chitharanjan, Namrata Asthana,
Shuchi Kotrhari and Shivam Shahi.

Page 3 of 13
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Capital Structure: -

The Share Capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis is as under:

“Type of Capital ST “ Amtin INR

I Paid up Share Capital
Comprises 14,496 Equity Shares of INR 0 each. 3,27,160

Comprises 18,220 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of INR
10 each.

. We understand from the management that 18,220 CCPS are convertible into 17,494 Equity Shares
of INR 10 each on a fully diluted converted basis. Also, as represented by the management, the
company has proposed to increase the ESOPs by 1,666 ESOPs that are convertible into 1,666 Equity

shares after vajuation date. Accordingly, the Capital Structure of the Company for valuation
purposes would be as under:

Sk Type of Capital : No. of
No.

: _ _ Shares

Equity Shares 14,496
2 Preference shares on a fully diluted and converted basis 17,494
3 Not exercise and outstanding ESOPs 2,012

Sources of Information:

For the purpose of arriving at the Valuation, we have essentially relied on the information provided
to us by the Management of the Company which we believe to be reliabie and our conclusions are

dependent on such information being complete and accurate in all material respect.

Our valuation exercise is based on the following information received from the Management:
a) Provisional financial statements of the Company for the Eight months ended November 30, 2022.

b) Projected Financials Statements of the Company for the period from financial year 2022-23 to
financial year 2026-27. '

¢} Discussions with the Management on various issues relevant for the valuation including the
prospects and outlock of the Company / industry, expected growth rate and other relevant
information relating to future expected profitability of the business, etc.

d} Such other information and explanations as we have required and which have been provided by
the Management,
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Valuation Assumptions

Valuation under DCF method is based on management certified Provisional financials for the Eight
months ended 30t November, 2022 and projections for FY 2022-23 to FY 2026-27 (“explicit
period”) as provided to us by the Management.

For the explicit period, free cash flows from the Share have been arrived at as follows:

Profits after Tax as per the projections have been considered.

Depreciation & amortization on fixed assets have been added.

Increase in borrowings has been added and decrease in borrowing has been reduced.

Fund requirements for incremental working capital and capital expenditure have been reduced

from the cash earnings of the respective years.

> The cash flows of each year are then discounted at the Weighted Average Cost of Capital
(WACC). WACC is considered as the most appropriate discount rate in the DCF Method,

" since it reflects both the business and the financial risk of the Company. In other words,
WACC is the weighted average of the firm's cost of equity and debt. The WACC is worked
out using the following parameters:

v ¥ Y V¥

o Cost of Equity is worked out using the following formula:
*  Risk Free Return + (Beta x Equity Risk Premium) + Company specific premium;
s The risk-free rate of return is taken at 7.28% based on Indian government bond rate
for 10 years;
(Source: https:/icountryeconomy.com/bondsiindia?dr=2022-11)
 Industry Beta is considered as 1.00 since we don't find any exact comparable
Company;
«  Company specific premium of 3.00% has been considered based upon size of the
Company; |
Based on the above, WACC works out to 17.53% as per calculation given above;
After the explicit period, the business will continue to generate cash. In DCF Method,
therefore, perpetuity value is also considered to arrive at the enterprise value. For arriving at |
the perpetuity value, we have considered a growth rate of 5.00% based on management
estimate.
> The discounted perpetuity value is added to the discounted cash flows for the explicit period
to arrive at the enterprise vajue, :
> Appropriate adjustments have been made for cash and cash equivalents to arrive at the Share
Value.
»  Since, MEPL is an unlisted Company, discount for lack of marketability has been considered at
the rate of {0%, on the Share Value,
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Procedure a ed and valyation met s) followed for the assignment:
l. Approach Considered in our Yalue Analysis:

General Principle for Valuation

There is no single definition of the term ‘Value’ that is suitable for all purposes or at all times. The
value of a particular asset may vary according to different valuation methodologies that are adopted
to ascertain the value for a specific purpose. Valuation of securities is an inexact science. It may

sometimes involve a set of judgments and assumptions that may be subject to certain uncertainties.

Selection of Valuation Methodology

The objective of the valuation process is to make a best reasonable judgment of the value of the
shares of the Company. There are a number of valuation methodologies to value companies /

businesses using historical and forecast financials of the company. Commonly used valuation

methodologies are as follows:
4 Net Asset Yalue (NAV) Method

The asset based valuation technigue is based on the value of the underlying net assets of the
business, either on book value basis or realizable value basis or on replacement cost basis. The net
asset value ignores the future returns the asset can produce and is calculated using historical
accounting data. This valuation approach is mainly used in the case where the business is to be
liquidated i.e. it does not meet the going concern criteria or in case where the assets base dominate
earnings capability. It is a growing company and its substantial value lies in the future earnings.

Therefore, in the present case, we have not used NAV Method for the valuation.

+ Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) Method

Under DCF Method, the projected free cash flows of the Company/ business are discounted at a
~ discount rate which reflects perceived riskiness of the projected cash flows in order to arrive at
their present value. Then, the terminal value of the Company/ business is calculated based on the
free cash flow of the last year of the forecast period, which is based on the future long term growth
of the revenues. This terminal value is then discounted to get the present terminal value. The
present value of free cash flows for the projected period and present value of terminal value is added
to arrive at the enterprise value. Thereafter, adjustment for non-operating assets/liabilities, surplus

Cash and Cash Equivalents is made to arrive at the fair value of the Company/business.
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-& Market Price Method

~ The market price of share quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as the value of share
of the Company, if such shares are frequently traded subject to speculative support that may be
- inbuilt in the value of such shares. Shares of not traded on any stock exchanges and therefore,
Market Price Method is not relevant for the present valuation exercise. Hence, we have not

considered this method for the valuation.

= Comparable Company Multiples (CCM) Method

Under CCM Method, value of shares of a company/business undertaking is arrived at using multiple
derived from valuation of comparable companies as manifest through stock exchange valuation of
listed companies. This valuation is based on the principle that market valuations, taking place
between informed buyers and informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant to the valuation.
Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for difference between the

circumstances.

Based on the financial projections shared by the management, we are of the view that, the Company
is proposing to invest Huge amount for expansion of business in next few years, which will have
substantial positive effect on its revenue as well as profitability and market capitalization. ¥We have
not found any listed peers which can be compared with other company for considering its projected
business model in coming few years due to nature of business, geographical differences and
comparable size of the business at valuation date. Therefore, this method is not suitable in the

present case and accordingly we have not considered this method for our valuation exercise.

Il. Basis for arriving at Fair Value of Shares:

Based on the discussions in the preceding paragraphs w.r.t valuation methodologies as well as
regulatory requirements, we have. considered DCF Method for the evaluation of Shares of
considering it as most appropriate method in the present case and assigned 100% weightage to this

approach.

Under DCF Method, the value of per shares is based on its capacity to generate cash flows. There is
some uncert:aiﬁty associated with these cash flows. Thus, the challenge in valuing firms by using the
DCF method is more perceptual than conceptual. The Value of per shares is INR 1, [4,689.00 based
on the present value of the expected cash flows from its assets. These future cash flows are

estimates based on certain parameters which are subject to various assumptions.
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1Il. Valuation of shares

We have formed an opinion on the Fair Value of a Shares is INR 1,14,689.00 based on the
information provided by the Management of the Company and our opinion is on Valuation Date as

per Annexure.

The valuation is subject to the information as made available to us by the management of the

Company and no specific audit has been carried on the same.

Disclaimer/Limitations on the Valuation of Shares

Our report is subject to the scope of limitations detailed hereinafter. As such the report is to be
read in totality and not in parts. This report has been prepared solely for the purpose set out in this
report and should not be made available to any other person, distributed, published or reproduced
(in part or otherwise) in any other document whatsoever, without our written consent save and

except for the limited purpose of this report.

Our study did not include the following:-
* Any audit of the financial statements supplied by management and available at MCA site,
Carrying out a market survey / technical and financial feasibility for the Business of.
» Financial and Legal due diligence of

» Any other assurance advisory services in connection with the cash flow and valuation.

Our valuation is based on the premise that the information provided to us being complete and

accurate in all material aspect.

Our value analysis is based on the information made available to us by the management of the
Company and the information obtained by us from public domain as mentioned in the report. Any
subsequent changes/modifications/revisions (either positive or negative) to the financial parameters

and other information provided to us, may alter the result of value analysis set out in this report,

positively or negatively.

Our work did not constitute an audit in accordance with indian GAAP/ International Financial
Reporting Standards and all other applicable accounting practices and procedures and

examination/review of internal controls or other attestation or review services. Accordingly, we do

not express an opinion on the information presented.
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It may be noted that in carrying out our work we have relied on the integrity of the information
provided to us by the management of the Company and other than reviewing the consistency of

such information, we have not sought to carry out an independent verification, thereof.

We have reviewed the information made available to us for overall consistency and have not carried
out any detailed tests in the nature of audit to establish the accuracy of such statements and
information. Accordingly, we assume no responsibility and make no representations with respect to

the accuracy or completeness of any information provided by management of the Company.

We have not carried out any independent verification of the accuracy and completeness of all
information as stated above. We have not reviewed any other documents of other than those stated
above. We have not made any independent verification of the physical assets of and accept no

responsibilicy for the same.

It should be noted that for the purpose of determining Fair Value of Shares as on Valuation date, we

have not considered the impact of any events on the valuation of which have occurred post the date

of the valuation except mentioned in this report.

Our scope of work does not include verification of data submitted by the management of the
Company and has been relied upon by us as such.

We understand that the management of the Company during our discussions with them, would have
drawn our attention to all such information and matters, which may have had an impact on our
valuation. In this report we have included ali such information and matters as was received by us
from the management of the Company.,

This valuation report should not be regarded as a recommendation to invest in or deal in any form
of securities of the Company and should also not be considered as its final share value.

The Management or related parties of its Shareholders and its subsidiaries/ associates/ group
companies are prohibited from using this report other than for its sole limited purpose and not to

make a copy of this report available to any party other than those required by statute for carrying
out the limited purpose of this report.

We have not verified the authenticity of the actual purpose for obtaining this valuation report and
have done a pure mathematical calculation based on the information provided to us by the

management of the Company. This report is issued at the request of BOD for the purpose as
mentioned in the first Para of this report.

Page 9 of 13



173

Private and Confidential

—

We will receive a fee for our services in connection with the delivery of this Valuation Report from

and our fee is not contingent upon the result of proposed transaction and suitability of valuation to
the company and other stakeholders.

This report is not meant for meeting any other regulatory or disclosure requirements, save and
except as specified as above, under any Indian or Foreign Law, Statute, Act, Guidelines or similar
instructions. We would not be responsible for any litigation or other actual or threatened claims.

This report can be used and relied upon by A% Emerging Fund Il LLP, the subscriber to the Shares.
In no event, wili valuer and its employees, be liable to any party for any indirect, incidental,

consequential, special or exemplary damages (even if such party has been advised of the possibility of
such damages) arising from any provision of this engagement.

SUBODH KUMAR

. (Registered Valuer)
IBBI Regn- IBBI/RV/05/2019/11705
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Private and Confidential

(E) Estimated, Figures in INR Crores
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Share Valuation Calculation:- .
Figures in INR Crores except no of shares

H &

Present value of FCFE : : -89.86
520.15

o

it
Less: Discount on lack of marketability @ 10%

S U
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Cost of Capital and Weightage Cost of Capital Calculation:-

Cost of equity
Risk Free Rate

Assumption
Yield to maturity on Government Securities based on current traded value.

The levered {equity) Beta of a scrip is a measure of relative risk to market,

Beta
arithmetically computed as covariance of equity and market return divided by variance
of market return {over a long historical data run) followed with certain adjustments.
Equity Risk Premium = Beta * (Market Risk Premium)
Market Risk Premium is equal to the difference of average market return and risk free
rate _ :
Cost of Equity =Risk Free Rate + {(Equity Risk Premium*Beta)+ Company specific risk premium (o)

Estimated Corporate Tax Rate

Current corporate tax rate

Comp’s Pre-Tax Cost of Debt

Cost of debt provided by the Management

Comp’s After-Tax Cost of Debt

Pre-Tax Cost of Debt*(1-Tax Ra‘ti)

Target Debt-equity ratio

Debt-equity ratio of the Company

Weighted Average Cost of Capital (*“WACC”)

{Debt/Total Capital)*(After-Tax Cost of Debt)+(Equity/Total Capital)*(Cost of Equity)

7.28%

1.00

[ 7.25%

13.00%

[17.53%

Terminal Value = Present value of Free Cash flow (for last year of explicit period} * {1 + G)
{Discount Factor - G)

Where,

Discount Factor = Weighted Average Cost of Capital, and;
G = Estimate of average long term growth rate of cash flows in perpetuity assumed to be 5%.
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Valuation Report
Of
Equity Shares
Oof

SUCHALIS CONFECTIONERY PRIVATE LIMITED AS AT 30™ NOVEMBER, 2022

Prepared by:
SUBODH KUMAR
(1BBl REGISTERED VALUER)
Registration No: IBBI/RV/05/2019/1 1705

Contact Details
Office:

210, 2nd floor Wadhwa Complex,
Street No-10, Laxmi Nagar New Delhi-110092

Date: |7t December, 2022
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Date; 17t December, 2022

To

The Board of Director

Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

Plot No-321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20 Gurgaon Gurgaon Hr 122016

Dear Sir,

Subject:-Report on Valuation of Fair Value of Equity Shares/Convertible Securities.

l, Subodh _Kumar, having a Registered office at 210, 2nd floor Wadhwa Complex, street No-10,
 Laxmi Nagar New Delhi-1 10092, Registered Valuer under the Companies Act, 2013 and having its
IBBI Regn. No. IBBI/RV/05/2019/1 1705 {(hereinafter referred to as (“Registered Valuer”) has been
mandate by the Board of Directors on behalf of the Company, Suchalis Confectionery Private
Limited, a Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and having its
registered office at Plot No-321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2,Sector-20 Gurgaon Gurgaon Hr 122016
{hereinafter referred to as “Private Limited Company”) for valuation of its Equity Shares for the
purpose of proposed issuance of Equity Shares/Convertible Securities (hereinafter referred to as

“Proposed Investors™) in accordance with the requirement of Sections 42 & 62(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

The scope of services is to conduct the valuation of Equity Shares to determine the fair value in
accordance with internationally accepted valuation standards/ICMAI Valuation Standards for the
limited purpose of compliance under the Companies Act, 2013 and may not be used for any other
purpose. Even though the Fair value proposed here is said to true and fair as per underlying
guidelines of valuation but the valuation done here is not in accordance with rule [ {UA of Income

tax rules and it may be relied upon in any such Income tax matters with required modification as per
said rules, '

Based on the Discussion with the management, we have considered the valuation cut- off date as
closure of business hours of 30t November, 2022.

Scope of the Report:

Our scope of services under this letter is restricted to the services specified in scope of work as

above and does not cover any other services including, illustratively, the following:

* Legal advice, opinion and representation in any form;

» Accounting and taxation matters, opinion and representation in any form;
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» Any other certification services. Reliance would be placed on the information that may be provided
by the Company. We will not independently verify the accuracy of data provided to us for review,
The valuation in the present case involves valuation of Equity Share of the Company is not envisaged

pursuant to the Scheme. Therefore, this valuation is performed on a limited scope basis.

Company Background information:

Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited ("SCPL" / "Company") established in 2018 vide Corparate
Identification Number is (CIN) U15490HR208PTC07609! in Haryana.

The registered office of the SCPL is situated at Plot No-321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2, Sector-20
| Gurgaon Hr [22016.

The Share Capital and holding structure of the Company, on a fully diluted basis, as on 30t
November, 2022 is as under:

Paid up Share Capital 1,01,500
10,150 Equity Share of INR 10 each

Also, there are 639 ESOPs which are assumed to be convertible into 639 Equity Share of INR 10
each, ‘ .

Sources of Information;

For the purpose of arriving at the Valuation, we have essentially relied on the information provided
to us by the Management of the Company which we believe to be reliable and our conclusions are

dependent on such information being complete and accurate in all material respect.
Our valuation exercise is based on the following information received from the Management:

a) Extract of Provisional financial statements for the period ending November 30, 2022.

b) Extract of Projections of the Company comprising of Balance Sheet, Profitabilify statements for
FY 2022-23 to FY 2026-27 as provided to us by the Management to this report.

c) Discussions with the Management on various issues relevant for the valuation including the
prospects and outlook of the Company / industry, expected growth rate and other relevant
information relating to future expected profitability of the business, etc.

e) Such other information and explanations as we have required and which have been provided by
the Management.

For the purpose of our value analysis, we have used the following information that is available in
public domain
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For the purpose of determining Risk free rate, yield on 10 years Government of India
Securities/Papers (10 Year GS) has been considered.
{Source: RBI Monthly Bulletin- November, 2022).

For calculation of Market Return, we have considered the Compounded Annual Growth Rate
(CAGR) of BSE Sensex 500 for the period starting from |% February, 1999 to 30™ November, 2022,
{Source: BSE Website)

¢ We have considered global beta of 1.00.
+ Company specific premium of 3% has been considered.

Procedure adopted and valuation method(s) followed for the assignment:
I. Approach Considered in our Value Analysis:

General Principle for Valuation

~ There is no single definition of the term Value' that is suitable for all purposes or at ali times. The
value of a particular asset may vary according to different valuation methodologies that are adopted
to ascertain the value for a specific purpose. Valuation of securities is an inexact science. It may

sometimes involve a set of judgments and assumptions that may be subject to certain uncertainties,

Selection of Valuation Methodology

The objective of the valuation process is to make a best reasonable judgment of the value of the
shares of the Company. There are a number of valuation methodologies to value companies /
businesses using historical and forecast financials of the company. Commonly used valuation

methodologies are as follows:
% Net Asset Value {NAV} Method

The asset based valuation technique is based on the value of the underlying net assets of the |
business, either on book value basis or realizable value basis or on replacement cost basis. The net
asset value ignores the future returns the asset can produce and is calculated using historical
accounting data. This valuation approach is mainly used in the case where the business is to be
liquidated i.e. it does not meet the going concern criteria or in case where the assets base dominate
earnings capability. It is a growing company and its substantial value lies in the future earnings.

Therefore, in the present case, we have not used NAY Method for the valuation.
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% Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) Method

" Under DCF Method, the projected free cash flows of the Company/ business are discounted at a
discount rate which reflects perceived riskiness of the projected cash flows in order to arrive at
theif present value. Then, the terminal value of the Company/ business is calculated based on the
free cash flow of the last year of the fdreéast period, which is based on the future ‘Iong term growth
.of the revenues. This terminal value is then discounted to get the present terminal value. The
present value of free cash flows for the projected period and present value of terminal value is added
to arrive at the enterprise value. Thereafter, adjustment for non-operating assets/liabilities, surplus

Cash and Cash Equivalents is made to arrive at the fair value of the Company/business.

+ Market Price Method

The market price of equity share quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as the value of
equity share of the Company, if such shares are frequently traded subject to speculative support that
may be inbuilt in the value of such shares. Equity Shares of not traded on any stock exchanges and
therefore, Market Price Method is not relevant for the present valuation exercise. Hence, we have

not considered this method for the valuation.

-4 Comparable Company Multiples (CCM) Method

Under CCM Method, value of equity shares of a company/business undertaking is arrived at using
multiple derived from valuation of comparable companies as manifest through stock exchange
valuation of listed companies. This valuation is based on the principle that market valuations, taking
place between informed buyers and informed sellers, incorporate all factors relevant to the

valuation. Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for difference between the

circumstances.

* Based on the financial projections shared by the management, we are of the view that, the Company
is proposing to invest Huge amount for expansion of business in next few years, which will have
substantial positive effect on its revenue as well as profitability and market capitalization. We have
not found any listed peers which can be compared with other company for considering its projected
business model in coming few years due to nature of business, geographical differences and
comparable size of the business at valuation date, Therefore, this method is not suitable in the

present case and accordingly we have not considered this method for our valuation exercise.
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Il. Basis for arriving at Fair Value of Equity Shares:

Based on the discussions in the preceding paragraphs w.r.t valuation methodologies as well as
regulatory requirements, we have considered DCF Method for the evaluation of Equity Shares of
considering it as most appropriate mechod in the present case and assigned 100% weightage to this

approach.

Under DCF Method, the value of per equity shares is based on its capacity to generate cash flows.
There is some uncertainty associated with these cash flows. Thus, the challenge in valuing firms by
using the DCF method is more perceptual than conceptual. The Value of per equity shares is INR
47,272.00/- (Rupees Forty Seven Thousands Two Hundred Seventy Two Only} based on the
present value of the expected cash flows from its assets. These future cash flows are estimates based

on certain parameters which are subject to various assumptions.

The Fair Value of Diluted Equity Shares of INR 47,272.00/- (Rupees Forty Seven
Thousands Two Hundred Seventy Two Only} per Equity Share of INR 10 each as per
Discounted Cash Flow Method is as under:

(E) Estimated, Figures in INR Lakhs except no of shares
)

HAK AR ] ] 1 D24 1)

| 111.77 413,79 859.03 1,585.76 | 2,408.14
34.4] 66.75 86.74 103.73
250.00 200.00 200.00 | 200.60
219.21 482.36 678.27 | 955.92
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
T R AT AT R " - N B
p 0 0 EC 5448 00 43 .4 34 )
DISCOUNTING PERIOD 0.33 1.33 2.33 3.33 433
DISCOUNTING FACTOR 0.9476 | 0.8062 | 0.6860 0.5837 | 0.4966
H' . ; | 6.9 56,98 36 b y
NTY {1,225.91
' 477352
oA _ 6 0.73
h - b 00U
LESRabOANIIOR] ' 2190002 [
A ) ry f il
A f P 0 f 4

Il Valuation of equity shares

We have formed an opinion on the Fair Value of Equity Shares of INR 47,272.00/- (Rupees Forty
Seven Thousands Two Hundred Seventy Two Only) per Equity Share of INR 10 each, based

on the information provided by the Management of the Company and our opinion is on Valuation

Date.
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The valuation is subject to the information as made available to us by the management of the

Company and no specific audit has been carried on the same.

" Disclaimer/Limitations on the Valuation of Equity Shares

Our report is subject to the scope of limitations detailed hereinafter. As such the report is to be
read in totality and not in parts. This report has been prepared solely for the purpose set out in this
report and should not be made available to any other person, distributed, published or reproduced
{in part or otherwi'se)' in any other document whatsoever, without our written consent save and

except for the limited purpose of this report.

Our study did not include the following:-
. Any audit of the financial statements supplied by management and available at MCA site.
Carrying out a market survey / technical and financial feasibility for the Business of.
¢ Financial and Legal due diligence of

¢ Any other assurance advisory services in connection with the cash flow and valuation.

Our valuation is based on the premise that the information provided to us being complete and

accurate in all material aspect,

Our value analysis is based on the information made available to us by the management of the
Company and the information obtained by us from public domain as mentioned in the report. Any
subsequent changes/modificationsfrevisions (either positive or negative) to the financial parameters
and other information provided to us, may aleer the result of value analysis set out in this report,

positively or negatively.

Our work did not constitute an audit in accordance with Indian GAAP/ International Financial
Reporting Standards and all other applicable accounting practices and procedures and
examination/review of internal controls or other attestation or review services. Accordingly, we do

not express an opinion on the information presented.
It may be noted that in carrying out our work we have relied on the integrity of the information

provided to us by the management of the Company and other than reviewing the consistency of

such information, we have not sought to carry out an independent verification, thereof.
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We have reviewed the information made available to us for overall consistency and have not carried
out any detailed tests in the nature of audit to establish the accuracy of such statements and
information. Accordingly, we assume no responsibility and make no representations with respect to

the accuracy or completeness of any information provided by management of the Company

We have not carried out any independent verification of the accuracy and completeness of all
‘information as stated above. We have not reviewed any other documents of other than those stated
above. We have not made any independent verification of the physical assets of and accept no

responsibility for the same.

It should be noted that for the purpose of determining Fair Value of Equity Shares as on Valuation
date, we have not considered the impact of any events on the valuation of which have occurred post

the date of the valuation except mentioned in this report.

Our scope of work does not include verification of data submitted by the management of the

Company and has been relied upon by us as such,

We understand that the management of the Company during our discussions with them, would have
drawn our attention to all such information and matters, which may have had an impact on our
valuation. In this report we have included all such information and matters as was received by us

from the management of the Company.

This valuation report should not be regarded as a recommendation to invest in or deal in any form

of securities of the Company and should also not be considered as its final equity value.

The Management or related parties of the its Shareholders and its subsidiaries/ associates/ group
companies are prohibited from using this report other than for its sole limited purpose and not to

make a copy of this report available to any party other than those required by statute for carrying

out the limited purpose of this report.

We have not verified the authenticity of the actual purpose for obtaining this valuation report and
bave done a pure mathematical calculation based on the information provided to us by the

management of the Company. This report is issued at the request of BOD for the purpose as

mentioned in the first Para of this report.
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We will receive a fee for our services in connection with the delivery of this Valuation Report from
and our fee is not contingent upon the result of proposed transaction and suitability of valuation to

the company and other stakeholders,

This report is not meant for meeting any other regulatory or disclosure requirements, save and
except as specified as above, under any Indian or Foreign Law, Statute, Act, Guidelines or similar

-instructions. We would not be responsible for any litigation or other actual or threatened claims.

In no event, will valuer and its employees, be liable to any party for any indirect, incidental,
consequential, special or exemplary damages (even if such party has been advised of the possibility of

such damages) arising from any provision of this engagement.

SUBODH KUMAR
(Registered Valuer)
IBBI Regn- IBBI/RV/05/2019/1 1705
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Statutory Auditor’s Certificate to confirm that the Accounting Treatment contained in the Scheme of
Arrangement between Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited and Suchalis Confectionery Private

Limited isin conformlty with the accountmg standards prescribed under section 133 of the Compames
- Act, 2013 - . )

I To,
‘The Board of Directors
L MUHAVRA ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED,
: D-173, Sushant Lok - [, Gurgaon-122002

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 1% February, 2023.

2. We, the statutory auditors of Muhavra Enterprises Private Limited (“Transferee Company”), have
examined the proposed accounting treatment in the books of the Transferee Company, with regard to as
specified in clause 19 under part B of the proposed Scheme of Arrangement (“the Scheme”) between
the Transferee Company and Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) and
their respective shareholders and creditors in terms of provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with the
applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) with reference to its compliance with the
. applicable Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 (“AS”) as notified under section 133 of the
~ Companies Act, 2013, (“Applicable Accounting Standards”), read with rules made thereunder and+
other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company at its meeting held
on 20® December, 2022 and is subiect to approval of National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT?) and
statutory and regulatory authorities, as may be applicable.

Manage:hent’s responsibility

- The Board of Directors of the Transferee Company are responsible for the preparation of the Scheme
and its compliance with the Act and other relevant laws and regulations, including the applicable
accounting standards read with the rules made thereunder and other generally accepted accounting
principles as aforesaid. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation of the Scheme,

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Pursuant to the requirements prescribed under Section 232 of the Act, our responsibility is_only to
examine and assess whether the proposed accounting treatment in the books of the Transferee Company
specified in in clause 19 under part B of the Scheme as reproduced in annexure-1 is in conformity with

. the applicable Accounting Standards and in line with the Generally Accepted Acoountmg Prmmples in

India. Further our examination did not extend to any other parts and aspects of -]
nature in the aforesaid Scheme.

~ Head Office: Corparate Dffice: . Nehey Prage: Mumbai: Karol Bagh: Chandigark:
4696 Brij Bhawan GLOBAL BUSINESS SOUARE 503, Chiranfiv Tower, 305-308, 3" Foor, 174/59, Triveni Plaza, . 800-708, 15t Floor,
214 Ansar_i Road Building No. 32, Sector 44, | 43, Nehey Place Garnet Palladium, Burudwara Read, NAC Manimajra
Darya Ganj, Institutional Area Gurgaon, New Delhi 110019. India Behind Express Zone, Karo! Bagh, Chandigarh-160191. India
New Delhi-190002. INDIA 422003, India +91-11-2622-3712, OFf Western Bxpress New Delhi- 110005 Tel : +91-972-507-7789,
Tel: +91-11-2328-8101 Tel : +91-124-4786-200 2622-8933

Highway, Goregaon (Eastd, | Tel: +91-11.4504-4453 5077-790
Mumbai ~ 400063 .




5. We conducted our examination of the proposed accounting treatment in the books of the Transferee
Company referred in paragraph 4 above in accordance with the Guidance Note on “Report or Certificate
for Special Purposes” (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
in so far as applicable for the purpose of this certificate. The Guidance note requires that we comply

with the ethical requirements of the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. : :

6. Wehave complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, “Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements”.

7. Nothing contained in this certificate, nor ahything said or done in the course of or in connection with
the services that are subject to this certificate, will extend any duty of care that we may have in our
capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements of the Transferee Company.

Conclusion

8. Based on the examination, procedures performed as specified above and according to information and
explanations received by us, pursuant to the requirements of proviso to sub-section (7) of section 230 of
the Act, we confirm that the Accounting Treatment contained in the aforesaid Scheme is in compliance

with the applicable accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act and other Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India.

Restriction on Use

9. The certificate is issued at the request of the Company pursuant to the requirements of Section 230 to
section 232 of the Act for onward submission to the NCLT. Our examination relates to the matters
specified in this certificate, and does not extend to the Transferee Company as a whole. Accordingly,
we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other
party to whom it is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. We

have no responsibility to update this certificate for events and circumstances occurring after the date of
this certificate. : '

For Vinod Kumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Membership No:511741

UDIN: 23511741 BGTHFS9673
Place: New Delhi

Date: 10% February, 2023
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Annexuare-1

. “19. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

19.01 Recognizing that the Amalgamation is lo be considered as an “amalgamation in nature of merger”
as defined by paragraph 29 of the Accounting Standard on “Accounting for Amalgamations”
issued under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 which has been notified through
notification no. G.S.R. 432(E) dated 23rd June, 2021 on Accounting Standards, (“AS-14"), the
accounting treatment in respect of assets, liabilities and reserves of the Transferor Company shall
be governed, subject to the provisions of this paragraph, in accordance with what is described in
AS-14 as “the Pooling of Interests Method". Accordingly, all the assets and liabilities of the
Transferor Company shall be recorded at their respective book values in the books of the
Transferee Company.

19.02 As on the Appointed Date, the reserves, surplus and balance in profit & loss account of the
Transferor Company will be merged with the respective reserves, surplus and balance in profit &

loss account of the Transferee Company in the same form as they appeared in the financial
statements of the Transferor Company.

19.03 The difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued (plus any additional
consideration in the form of cash or other assets) and the amount of share capital of the Transferor

_ Company shall be adjusted in reserves.
19.04 If, at the time of the Amalgamation, the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company have
 conflicting accounting policies, a uniform set of accounting policies should be adopted following
the Amalgamation. The effects on the financial statements of any changes in accounting policies

should be reported in accordance with Accounting Standard (4S) 5 ‘Net Profit or Loss for the
Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies’."”
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u SCHARTERED ACOOUNTANTS

independent Auditor’s Certificate on the proposed accounting treatment contained in
the Scheme of Amalgamation

To,

The Board of Directors

Suchalis Confectionery Private Limited

Plot No. 321, Udyog Vihar Phase-2,

Sector-20, Gurgaon - 122016

1.

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of the Draft Amalgamation
Framework Agreement {the “AMA”) dated January 11,2023 with Muhavra Enterprises

Private limited {hereinafter referred to as “the Company” or the “Transferee
Company”).

At the request of the management of your company, we have examined the proposed
accounting treatment specified in clause 19 of the Scheme of amalgamation of Suchalis
Confectionery Private Limited (hereinafter referred as the “Transferor Company”) with
the company and their respective shareholders (hereinafter referred to as “the
scheme”) in terms of the provisions with sections 230 to 232 of Companies Act, 2013
with reference to its compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards specified

under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014 and other generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Management’s Responsibility

. The Responsibility for the preparation of the Scheme and its compliance with the

relevant laws and regulation, including the application of Accounting Standards as
aforesaid, is that of the Board of Directors of the Companies involved in the scheme.
This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an

appropriate basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.



190

%’ %le (?l SCO 823-824, 1 Floor, Sec-22A,Chandigarh

Associates P: 0172-4644607, E: rgachd@gmail.com, W: rgaca.org

“CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Auditor’'s Responsibility

4, Pursuant to the requirements of the Act, our responsibility is to express reasonable
assurance in the form of an opinion based on our examination and according to
information and explanations given to us as to whether the proposed accounting
treatment contained in Clause 19 of the scheme is in compliance with Section 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 between the companies and shall follow the method of
accounting as prescribed for the Pooling of interest method under Accounting Standard

14 as notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, r.w. Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013,

5. We performed procedures in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Reports or
Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
india. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control {SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

7. Areasonable assurance engagement includes performing procedures to obtain sufficient

appropriate evidence on the reporting criteria. Accordingly, we have performed the
following procedures in relation to the Certificate:

» Obtained the Scheme as provided by the Company.

¢ Read the proposed accounting treatment as specified in clause 19 of the
scheme, .

¢ Validate the proposed accounting treatment as specified in Clause 19 of the
Scheme with accounting treatment as prescribed under Accounting Standard
14 as notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 is in

conformity with the accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013,

Our examination did not extend to any aspects of a legal or propriety nature covered
in the Scheme. Further, our scope of work did not involve us performing any audit
tests in the context of our examination. We have not performed an audit, the
objective of which would be to express an opinion on the specified elements,
accounts or items thereof, for the purpose of this certificate. Accordingly, we do not
express such opinion. Nothing contained in this certificate, nor anything said or done
during, or in connection with the services that are subject to this certificate, will
extend any duty of care that we may have in gur capacity as the statutory auditors
of any financial statements of your company.,
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Opinion

8. Based on the procedures performed by -us as described in paragraph 7 above and
according to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the proposed
accounting treatment specified in clause 19 of the scheme, as such, is in compliance
with Accounting Standard 14 as notified under the Companies {(Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 r.w. Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013. '

Restriction on Use

9. The certificate is addressed to and.provided to the Board of Directors of your company
solely for the purpose of onward submission to Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal.
Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any purpose

or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may
come without intimating to us.

For Rajiv Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 011106N

DHRUV e,
GOEL" Trossrsosaa
CA. Dhajv Goel

Partner

Date: 10.02.2023 M.No.549569

Place; Chandigarh UDIN; 23549569BGPNEB9904
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